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Mumbai 400 001                                       Bandra-Kurla Complex, Bandra (East) 
                                                               Mumbai – 400 051 
 
Scrip code : 532707                                 Trading Symbol : DYNPRO 
 
Dear Sir, 
 
Sub : Annual Report for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2025 
 
Pursuant to Regulation 34(1) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, we are submitting herewith Notice of Annual General Meeting (including e-voting 
instructions) along with Annual Report 2024-25 of the Company, which is also being sent through 
electronic mode to the members as per the circulars from Ministry of Corporate Affairs and Securities 
and Exchange Board of India.  Important details with regard to AGM are as under : 
 
Sr. No. Particulars Details 

1. AGM Details Day : Monday 
Date : 22nd September, 2025 
Time : 3.00 P.M. (IST) 
Through Video Conference/Other Audio Visual Means 

2. Cut-off date for e-voting Friday, 12th September, 2025 
3. Remote e-voting start time, 

day and date 
9.00 a.m. Thursday, 18th September, 2025 

4. Remote e-voting end time, 
day and date 

5.00 p.m. Sunday, 21st September, 2025 

5. E-voting website of CDSL https://www.cdslindia.com 
The Annual Report containing the Notice of Annual General Meeting is also uploaded on the 
Company’s website at www.dynemic.com 
 

You are requested to take the same on your record. 
 

Thanking you, 
For Dynemic Products Limited 
 
 
Varsha Mehta 
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 
Encl : as above 
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I am truly optimistic as I share the progress and purpose that continue to define Dynemic’s jour-
ney. The year 2024-25 has been marked by transformation, steady advancement, and the ability 
to adapt to challenges. The food color and dye intermediate market is experiencing growth, driven 
by increasing demand and a focus on sustainable coloration solutions. The market is seeing a shift 
towards plant-based and clean-label ingredients, impacting the demand for both natural and syn-
thetic dyes.  While synthetic dyes still hold a share of the market, there’s a growing trend towards 
sustainability and transparency in their production, with a focus on biodegradable options and 
digital transparency.

Despite challenging external conditions, we demonstrated resilient growth in 2024-25, Revenue 
from Operations stood at INR 36,742 Lacs in FY 24-25 showing an increase of 29% in comparison 
with FY 23-24 i.e. INR 28,378 Lacs.  PBITD for FY 24-25 stood at INR 4,828 Lacs which was INR 
3,259 Lacs in FY 23-24, supported by PAT of INR 1499 Lacs.  We will continue to focus on our key 
pillars: increasing output; a customer-first approach that strengthens our market presence; and 
disciplined cost and fund management to drive sustainable growth.  The Board of Directors of your 
Company, after considering the financial performance has decided not to recommend dividend for 
the FY 24-25.

To meet the working capital requirements the Company has come up with Preferential Issue in FY 
23-24 by issuing 350000 shares and 400000 convertible warrants.  During the year the Company 
converted the warrants into shares and raised the balance amount of Rs. 655.56 Lacs.  

As we look ahead, our focus remains on scaling responsibly, innovating with purpose, and growing 
in a sustainable manner. Expanding global alliances while upholding operational excellence re-
mains central to our strategy. Supported by a well-balanced business model and a culture rooted 
in ownership and integrity, we are optimistic about Dynemic’s promising future. The groundwork 
we have laid enables us to pursue opportunities with ambition balanced by humility. 

I sincerely thank our teams, customers, partners, and shareholders for their consistent confidence 
in us. United in this journey, we are geared to win and geared for growth.

“All you need is the plan, the road map and the courage to press on to your destination.” — Earl 
Nightingale

DIN : 00045845
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Corporate Information

Board of Directors
Bhagwandas K. Patel	 –  Managing Director
Rameshbhai B. Patel 	 –  Joint Managing Director    
Dixit B. Patel	 –  Joint Managing Director    
Vikash G. Jain             	 – Independent Director 
	     (wef 01.04.24)
Iyengar Padmanabhan 	 – Independent Director   
	    (wef 01.04.24)
Rashmi K. Otavani      	 – Independent Director 
	 (upto 12.06.25) 
  	

Committees of Directors
Audit Committee

Vikash G. Jain
Bhagwandas K. Patel

Iyengar Padmanabhan                           

Nomination and Remuneration Committee
Vikash G. Jain   

 Iyengar Padmanabhan                                      
Rashmi K. Otavani

Stakeholders Relationship Committee
Iyengar Padmanabhan                                                            
Bhagwandas K. Patel

Rashmi K. Otavani
Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

Bhagwandas K. Patel
Vikash G. Jain

Rashmi K. Otavani
Risk Management Committee

Bhagwandas K. Patel                                  
Dixitbhai B. Patel

Vikash G. Jain
Company Secretary

Varsha Mehta                                   
Chief Financial Officer 

Ankit Shah 

Registered Office
B-301, Satyamev Complex-1, Opposite Gujarat High Court, S.G. 

Highway, Sola, Ahmedabad – 380060.                                         
Telephone No. : 079-27663071, 9924011755  

Email : cs@dynemic.com Website : www.dynemic.com

Plant Location                                         

Unit-1 : 6401, 6402, 6415, 6416, 6400, 6400/1,
GIDC Estate, Ankleshwar – 393 002.

Unit-2 : 3709/6, 3710/1, 3710/3, GIDC Estate,
Ankleshwar – 393 002.

Unit-3 : D/3/3/1, in  Dahej-III Industrial Estate, Tal : Vagra,
Dist : Bharuch, Gujarat 

CONTENTS

Corporate Information ..................................................................	3

Notice ............................................................................................4

Boards’ Report ..............................................................................	18

Annexure A – Conservation of energy, etc. ...................................	24

Annexure B – CSR activity .............................................................	25

Annexure C – Secretarial Audit Report .........................................	27

Annexure D – Statement Pursuant to
Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 .................................	30

Annexure E - Management Discussion
and Analysis ..................................................................................	31

Corporate Governance Report ......................................................	34

Standalone Auditors’ Report ........................................................	45

Financial Statements ....................................................................	54

Auditors’ Report on Consolidated
Financial Statement ......................................................................99

Consolidated Financial Statements ............................................	105



4 ANNUAL REPORT 2024-2025

DYNEMIC PRODUCTS LIMITED
Regd. Office : B-301, Satyamev Complex-1, Opposite Gujarat High Court,

S.G. Highway, Sola, Ahmedabad – 380 060.
CIN : L24100GJ1990PLC013886

Notice
Notice is hereby given that the 35th Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held through Video Conferencing / Other Audio Visual Means on 
Monday, September 22, 2025, at 3.00 p.m. to transact  the following business :

Ordinary Business :

1.	 To receive, consider and adopt the audited financial statement of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2025, the reports of 
the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon; and the audited consolidated financial statement of the Company for the financial year ended 
March 31, 2025 and the Report of the Auditors thereon.

2.  	 To  appoint  a Director  in  place  of   Shri Dixitbhai B. Patel,  (holding DIN No. 00045883),  liable to retire  by   rotation in terms of Section 
152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and,  being  eligible, offers himself for re-appointment and in this regard, pass the following resolution as 
an Ordinary Resolution:

	 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, Shri Dixitbhai B. Patel (DIN: 00045883), who retires by 
rotation at this meeting and being eligible has offered himself for re-appointment, be and is hereby re-appointed as a Director of the Company, 
liable to retire by rotation.”

Special Business :

3.  	 To ratify payment of remuneration to the Cost Auditors of the Company for FY 2025-26

    	 To Consider and if thought fit to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:-

    	 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 (3) and other applicable provisions, if any,   of the Companies Act, 2013 and the 
Rules made thereunder, the Remuneration payable to M/s Anuj Aggarwal & Co., Cost Accountants Ahmedabad (having firm registration No. 
102409), appointed by the Board of Directors as Cost Auditors to conduct the audit of the cost records of the Company for the financial year 
ending 31st March, 2026, amounting to Rs. 1,15,000 (Rupees One Lac Fifteen Thousand only) (apart from reimbursement of out-of pocket 
expenses incurred for the purpose of Audit), be and is hereby ratified and confirmed.

4. 	 To re-appoint Shri Bhagwandas K. Patel (DIN : 00045845) as a Managing Director of the Company for the further period of 5 years w.e.f. Sep-
tember 1, 2025

     	 To Consider and if thought fit to pass the following resolution with or without modification as an Special   Resolution:-

	 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 196, 197, 203 read with Schedule V and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the 
Companies Act, 2013,  and Regulation 17(6)(e) of SEBI Amended Listing Regulations, the relevant provisions of the Articles of Association of 
the Company and all applicable guidelines as applicable from time to time, Shri Bhagwandas K. Patel (DIN : 00045845) be and is hereby re-ap-
pointed as Managing Director of the Company for further period of five years with effect from September 1, 2025 and upon re-appointment 
as a Managing Director his office shall not be liable to retire by rotation, on the following terms and conditions as set out hereunder :-

	 Salary :

	 Gross Salary Rs. 795575/- (Rupees Seven Lacs Ninety Five Thousand Five Hundred Seventy Five only) per month (in the scale of Rs. 795575/- to 
Rs. 2000000/-), Bonus, Encashment of leave and Gratuity as per company’s rule. 

	 Commission :

	 Commission at the rate of 1.5% to 3% on the sale of products which are not manufactured by the Company, which is exclusively handled by 
the Managing Director.

     	 Commission @ 2% of the net profit of the Company, as calculated for the whole financial year.  

          	 Period :

	 From 01.09.2025 to 31.08.2030

      	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to vary, alter, increase, enhance or widen the scope of remuneration and 
perquisites to the extent specified in Schedule V and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Act, as amended from time to time.

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the payment of above remuneration to be paid to the Managing Director will be subject to the conditions pre-
scribed under second proviso of Section II(B) read with Section II(A) of Part A of Schedule V and sub-section 3 of Section 197 of the Act, and 
such remuneration will be payable for a period of three years w.e.f 01.09.2025 to 31.08.2028 and the payment of remuneration thereafter 
during his tenure will be subject to the approval of the shareholders.
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	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, pursuant to regulation 17(6)(e) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2018 consent of the Members be and is hereby accorded for payment of remuneration to Shri 
Bhagwandas K. Patel (DIN: 00045845), Managing Director, notwithstanding that the annual aggregate remuneration payable to Shri Bhagwan-
das K. Patel, Managing Director , Shri Dixitbhai B. Patel , Whole Time Director and Shri Rameshbhai B. Patel, Whole Time Director, exceeds 5% 
of the net profit of the Company as calculated under section 198 of the Companies Act in any year during the tenure of his appointment.

      	 SITTING FEES : As long as Shri Bhagwandas K. Patel functions as the Managing Director, he shall not be paid any sitting fees for attending the 
meetings of the Board of Directors / Committee thereof.

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in the event of the Company not earning any profit / earning inadequate profits during any financial year during 
the currency of the tenure of Shri Bhagwandas K. Patel, as Managing Director, the remuneration payable shall be as per limit prescribed in 
Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013.

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts and deeds as may be expedient  to give effect 
to this resolution.”

5. 	 To re-appoint Shri Rameshbhai B. Patel (DIN : 00037568) as a Whole Time Director designated as a Joint Managing Director  of the Company 
for the further period of 5 years w.e.f. September 1, 2025

     	 To Consider and if thought fit to pass the following resolution with or without modification as an Special   Resolution:-

	 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 196, 197, 203 read with Schedule V and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the 
Companies Act, 2013,  and Regulation 17(6)(e) of SEBI Amended Listing Regulations, the relevant provisions of the Articles of Association and 
all applicable guidelines as applicable from time to time, approval be and is hereby accorded to the re-appointment of Shri Rameshbhai B. 
Patel, Whole Time Director designated as a Joint Managing Director of the Company, for a period of 5 (five) years with effect from September 
1, 2025, on the terms and conditions including remuneration as set out in the Explanatory Statement annexed to the Notice convening this 
Meeting, with liberty to the Board of Directors (hereinafter referred to as “the Board” which term shall be deemed to include any Committee 
of the Board constituted to exercise its powers, including the powers conferred by this Resolution) to alter and vary the terms and conditions 
of appointment and / or remuneration, subject to the same not exceeding the limits specified under Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013 
or any statutory  modification(s) or reenactment thereof. Upon re-appointment as a Whole Time Director designated as a Joint Managing 
Director his office shall be liable to retire by rotation and the reappointment as such director shall not be deemed to constitute a break in his 
office of Whole Time Director designated as a Joint Managing Director.”

      	 Salary :

	 Gross Salary Rs. 762300/- (Rupees Seven Lacs Sixty Two Thousand Three Hundred only) per month (in the scale of Rs. 762300/- to Rs. 
2000000/-), Bonus, Encashment of leave and Gratuity as per company’s rule. 

      	 Period :

	 From 01.09.2025 to 31.08.2030

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in the event of the Company not earning any profit / earning inadequate profits during any financial year during 
the currency of the tenure of Shri Rameshbhai B. Patel, as Whole Time Director designated as a Joint Managing Director, the remuneration 
payable shall be as per limit prescribed in Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013.

	 SITTING FEES : As long as Shri Rameshbhai B. Patel functions as the Whole Time Director designated as a Joint Managing Director , they shall 
not be paid any sitting fees for attending the meetings of the Board of Directors / Committee thereof.

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the payment of above remuneration to be paid to the Whole Time Director designated as a Jt. Managing  Director 
will be subject to the conditions prescribed under second proviso of Section II(B) read with Section II(A) of Part A of Schedule V and sub-sec-
tion 3 of Section 197 of the Act, and such remuneration will be payable for a period of three years w.e.f 01.09.2025 to 31.08.2028 and the 
payment of remuneration thereafter during his tenure will be subject to the approval of the shareholders.

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to do all acts and take all such steps as may be necessary proper or expedient 
to give effect to this Resolution.”

6.  	 To   consider   and  if  thought  fit,  to  pass  with  or  without modification(s), the following resolution as an Special Resolution :

	 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 150 & 152 and other applicable provisions of Companies Act, 2013(“the Act”) , 
if any, read with Schedule IV of the Act rules of Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors),2014 (the rules) and Regulation 25 
of the SEBI LODR, Regulations (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof), Ms. Avani V. Patel, (DIN : 07774901), who 
was appointed as an Additional Independent Director of the Company, w.e.f. 13/08/2025 under Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
the Articles of Association of the Company, and who holds office till the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting and who is eligible for 
appointment as an Independent Director pursuant to Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI LODR Regulations and in respect of whom the Company 
has received a notice in writing from a member proposing her candidature for the office of Directors, be and is hereby appointed as an Inde-
pendent Director of the Company, not liable to retire by rotation, to hold office for a period of 3 consecutive years upto 12th August, 2028”
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           	 “RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Bhagwandas K. Patel, Managing Director of the Company be and is hereby severally authorized to do all acts, 
deeds and things as may be necessary or expedient to give effect to the resolution.”

7.  	 To   consider   and  if  thought  fit,  to  pass  with  or  without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution :

	 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 204 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, Rule 9 of the Companies (Ap-
pointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 24A of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”), other applicable laws/statutory provisions, if any, as 
amended from time to time, CS Ashok P. Pathak of M/s. Ashok P. Pathak & Co., Company Secretaries, Ahmedabad (Firm Registration Number 
S1997GJ020700) be and are hereby appointed as Secretarial Auditors of the Company for term of five consecutive years commencing from 
financial year 2025-26 till financial year 2029-30, at such fees, plus applicable taxes and other out-of-pocket expenses as may be mutually 
agreed upon between the Board of Directors of the Company and the Secretarial Auditors. 

 

	 By Order of the Board

Ahmedabad	 Varsha R. Mehta
August 13, 2025	 Company Secretary   
	 Membership No. A24312
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Notes

1.	 The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) permitted holding of the AGM through VC/OAVM, without physical presence of the Members at a 
common venue. In compliance with the MCA Circulars, AGM of the Company is being held through VC/OAVM. The Registered Office of the 
Company shall be deemed to be the venue for the AGM. [General Circular Nos. 14/2020 dated April 8, 2020 and 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, 
in relation to “Clarification on passing of ordinary and special resolutions by companies under the Companies Act, 2013”, General Circular Nos. 
20/2020 dated May 5, 2020 and subsequent circulars issued in this regard, the latest being 09/2024 dated September 19, 2024 in relation to 
“Clarification on holding of AGM through VC/ OAVM, collectively referred to as “MCA Circulars”] 

2.	 Notice of the AGM along with the Integrated Annual Report for financial year (“FY”) 2024-25 is being sent by electronic mode to those Mem-
bers whose e-mail IDs are registered with the Company or National Securities Depository Limited (“NSDL”)/Central Depository Services (India) 
Limited (“CDSL”), collectively (“Depositories”). [SEBI Circulars dated May 12, 2020, January 15, 2021, May 13, 2022, January 5, 2023, October 
7, 2023 and October 3, 2024, collectively referred as “SEBI Circulars”] The Notice and Integrated Annual Report FY 2024-25 is available on the 
following websites (a) Company – www.dynemic.com (b) BSE Limited - www.bseindia.com (c) National Stock Exchange of India Limited - www.
nseindia.com and (d) CDSL - https://www.evoting.cdsl.com  Further a letter containing the web-link, including the exact path, where complete 
details of the Annual Report are available are sent to the shareholders, who have not registered their email id. 

3.	 Members desirous of getting any information on any items of business of this Meeting  are   requested   to   address   their queries   to  Ms. 
Varsha  Mehta, Company Secretary at the email address of the Company cs@dynemic.com at least ten days prior to the date of the Meeting, 
so that the information required can be made readily available at the Meeting.

4.	 The relevant Explanatory Statement and reasons in respect of proposed special business pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 
are annexed hereto.

5.	 Pursuant to provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, a member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to 
attend and vote instead of himself/herself and the proxy need not be a member of the company. Since this AGM is being held pursuant to the 
MCA Circulars and SEBI Circulars through VC / OAVM, physical attendance of Members has been dispensed with. Accordingly, the facility for 
appointment of proxies by the Members will not be available for the AGM and hence the Proxy Form and Attendance Slip are not annexed to 
this Notice.

6.	 Participation of members through VC/OAVM will be reckoned for the purpose of quorum for the AGM as per section 103 of the Act.

7.	 The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the scheduled time of the commencement of the Meeting 
by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice. The facility of participation at the AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available to at-
least 1000 members on first come first served basis. This will not include large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), 
Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuner-
ation Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the AGM without restriction on account 
of first come first served basis.

8.	 The Register of Directors’ and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding maintained under Section 170 of the Companies Act, 2013, 
the Register of contracts or arrangements in which the Directors are interested under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 and all other 
documents referred to in the Notice will be available for inspection in electronic mode.

9.	 Since the  AGM  will  be  held  through  VC/  OAVM,  the  route  map  of  the  venue  of  the  Meeting  is  not  annexed  hereto.

10.	 For receiving all communication (including Annual Report) from the Company electronically:

	 (a)		  Members holding shares in physical mode and who have not registered / updated their email address with the Company are requested 
to register / update their email address with the Company or RTA.

	 (b)		  Members holding shares in dematerialised mode are requested to register/ update their email addresses with the relevant Depository 
Participant.

11. 	 As per the provisions of Section 72 of the Act, the facility for making a nomination is available for the Members in respect of the shares held by 
them. Members who have not yet registered their nominations are requested to register the same by submitting Form No.SH13. If a Member 
desires to cancel the earlier nomination and record a fresh nomination, he may submit the same in Form SH14. Members who are either not 
desiring to register Nomination or would want to opt out, are requested to fill and submit Form No. ISR-3. The said forms can be downloaded 
from the RTA’s website at https://www.bigshareonline.com/Resources.aspx  Members are requested to submit the said form to their DP in 
case the shares are held in electronic form and to the RTA in case the shares are held in physical form, quoting their folio no. 

12. 	 The format of the Register of Members prescribed by the MCA under the Act requires the Company/ Registrars and Share Transfer Agents to 
record additional details of Members, including their PAN details, e-mail address, bank details for payment of dividends, etc. Form No. ISR-1 
for capturing additional details is available on the RTA’s website at https://www.bigshareonline.com/Resources.aspx

       	 Members holding shares in physical form are requested to submit the filled-in Form No. ISR- 1 to the RTA in physical mode. Members holding 
shares in electronic form are requested to submit the details to their respective DP only and not to the Company or RTA. 

13. 	 Members are requested to intimate changes, if any, about their name, postal address, e-mail address, telephone/mobile numbers, PAN, 
power of attorney registration, Bank Mandate details, etc., to their Depository Participant (“DP”) in case the shares are held in electronic form 
and to the Registrar in case the shares are held in physical form, in prescribed Form No. ISR-1, quoting their folio number and enclosing the 
self-attested supporting document. Further, Members may note that SEBI has mandated the submission of PAN by every participant in the 
securities market.
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14.	 Members may please note that SEBI vide its Circular No. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD_RTAMB/P/CIR/2022/8 dated January 25, 2022 has mandated 
the listed companies to issue securities in dematerialized form only while processing service requests viz. Issue of duplicate securities certif-
icate; claim from unclaimed suspense account; renewal/exchange of securities certificate; endorsement; sub-division/splitting of securities 
certificate; consolidation of securities certificates/folios; transmission and transposition. Accordingly, Members are requested to make ser-
vice requests by submitting a duly filled and signed Form ISR – 4, the format of which is available on the Company’s website at https://www.
bigshareonline.com/Resources.aspx   It may be noted that any service request can be processed only after the folio is KYC Compliant.

15.	 Your attention is invited on the Companies (Significant Beneficial Ownership) amendment Rules, 2019 as amended from time to time issued 
by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs on February 8, 2019. As per said amended rules, a person is considered as a Significant Beneficial Owner 
if he/she, whether acting alone, together or through one or more individuals or trust holds a beneficial interest of at least 10%. The beneficial 
interest could be in the form of a company’s shares or the right to exercise significant influence or control over the company. If any Sharehold-
er is holding shares in the Company on behalf of other or fulfilling the criteria, the shareholder is required to give a declaration specifying the 
nature of his/her interest and other essential particulars in the prescribed manner and within the permitted time frame.

16.	 Instructions and Procedure for Remote e-voting, attending the meeting and e-Voting during the AGM

	 Step 1: Access through Depositories CDSL/NSDL e-Voting system in case of individual    shareholders holding shares in demat mode. 

	 Step 2 : Access through CDSL e-Voting system in case of shareholders holding shares in physical mode and non-individual shareholders in 
demat mode. 

	 (i)	 The voting period begins on Thursday, September 18, 2025 at 9.00 a.m. and ends on Sunday, September 21, 2025 at 5.00 p.m. During 
this period shareholders’ of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date i.e. 
Friday, September 12, 2025 may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter.

	 (ii) 	 Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to vote at the meeting.

	 (iii) 	 Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020, under Regulation 44 of Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, listed entities are required to provide 
remote e-voting facility to its shareholders, in respect of all shareholders’ resolutions.  However, it has been observed that the partic-
ipation by the public non-institutional shareholders/retail shareholders is at a negligible level. 

 	 Currently, there are multiple e-voting service providers (ESPs) providing e-voting facility to listed entities in India. This necessitates registration 
on various ESPs and maintenance of multiple user IDs and passwords by the shareholders.

	 In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, pursuant to a public consultation, it has been decided to enable e-voting to all the 
demat account holders, by way of a single login credential, through their demat accounts/ websites of Depositories/Depository Participants. 
Demat account holders would be able to cast their vote without having to register again with the ESPs, thereby, not only facilitating seamless 
authentication but also enhancing ease and convenience of participating in e-voting process.

	 Step 1 : Access through Depositories CDSL/NSDL e-Voting system in case of individual shareholders   holding shares in demat mode.  

	 (i)	 In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed 
Companies, Individual Members holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with 
Depositories and Depository Participants. Members are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts 
in order to access e-Voting facility.

	 Pursuant to abovesaid SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for Individual shareholders holding securities in 
Demat mode CDSL/NSDL is given below:

Type of shareholders  Login Method

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in Demat mode with CDSL 

Depository

1) Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through their existing user id and password. 
Option will be made available to reach e-Voting page without any further authentication. The URL for users 
to login to Easi / Easiest are https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or visit  www.cdslindia.com and 
click on Login icon and select New System Myeasi.

2) After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting option for eligible companies 
where the evoting is in progress as per the information provided by company. On clicking the evoting option, 
the user will be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service provider for casting your vote during the 
remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. Additionally, there is also 
links provided to access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers, so that the user can visit the e-Voting 
service providers’ website directly.

3) If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at cdsl website www.cdslindia.
com and click on login & New System Myeasi Tab and then click on registration option.

4) Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat Account Number and PAN 
No. from a e-Voting link available on  www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will authenticate the user 
by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat Account. After successful authenti-
cation, user will be able to see the e-Voting option where the evoting is in progress and also able to directly 
access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers.
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Individual Shareholders hold-
ing securities in demat mode with 

NSDL Depository

1) If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the e-Services website of NSDL. Open 
web browser by typing the following URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on 
a mobile. Once the home page of e-Services is launched, click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” 
which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID and 
Password. After successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services. Click on “Access to e-Vot-
ing” under e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting 
service provider name and you will be re-directed to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote 
during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

2) If the user is not  registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at https://eservices.nsdl.
com.  Select “Register Online for IDeAS “Portal or click   at https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDi-
rectReg.jsp

3) Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https://www.evot-
ing.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is 
launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen 
will open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number hold with NSDL), 
Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. After successful authentication, you will be 
redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting 
service provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote 
during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting

Individual Shareholders (holding 
securities in demat mode) login 
through their Depository Partici-

pants (DP)

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your Depository Participant 
registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility.  After Successful login, you will be able to see e-Voting op-
tion. Once you click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful 
authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider 
name and you will be redirected to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the remote 
e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID   and Forget Password option available at 
abovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Members holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to   login through Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL

Login type Helpdesk details

Individual Shareholders holding securities in Demat 
mode with CDSL

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a re-
quest at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free no. 1800 21 09911

Individual Shareholders holding securities in Demat 
mode with NSDL

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a re-
quest at evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at : 022 - 4886 7000 and 022 - 2499 7000 

	 Step 2 : Access through CDSL e-Voting system in case of shareholders holding shares in physical mode and non-individual shareholders in 
demat mode.

	 (i)	 Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for Physical shareholders and shareholders other than individual holding in 
Demat form.

	 1)	 The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com.

	 2)	 Click on “Shareholders” module.

	 3)	 Now enter your User ID 

		  a.	 For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID, 

		  b.	 For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID, 

		  c.	 Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the Company.

	 4)	 Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.

	 5)	 If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on an earlier e-voting of any company, 
then your existing password is to be used. 
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	 6)	 If you are a first-time user follow the steps given below:

For Physical shareholders and other than individual shareholders holding shares in Demat.

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department (Applicable for both demat share-
holders as well as physical shareholders)

•  Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository Participant are requested to 
use the sequence number sent by Company/RTA or contact Company/RTA.

Dividend Bank Details OR 
Date of Birth (DOB)

Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as recorded in your demat account or 
in the company records in order to login.

•  If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company, please enter the member id / folio 
number in the Dividend Bank details field.

	 7)	 After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab.

	 8)	 Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection screen. However, shareholders holding 
shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password Creation’ menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login password in 
the new password field. Kindly note that this password is to be also used by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other 
company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly recommend-
ed not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your password confidential.

	 9)	 For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the resolutions contained in this Notice.

	 10)	  Click on the EVSN for the relevant <Company Name> on which you choose to vote.

	 11)	 On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the option “YES/NO” for voting. Select the option 
YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolu-
tion.

	 12)	 Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details.

	 13)	 After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to 
confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote, click on “CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote.

	 14)	 Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

	 15)	 You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” option on the Voting page.

	 16)	 If a demat account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User ID and the image verification code and click on Forgot 
Password & enter the details as prompted by the system.

	 17)	 There is also an optional provision to upload BR/POA if any uploaded, which will be made available to scrutinizer for verification. 

	 Additional Facility for Non – Individual Shareholders and Custodians –For Remote Voting only.

	 •	 Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are required to log on to www.evotingindia.
com and register themselves in the “Corporates” module.

	 •	 A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be emailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

	 •	 After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login and password. The Compliance User would 
be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote on.

	 •	 The list of accounts linked in the login will be mapped automatically & can be delink in case of any wrong mapping.

	 •	 It is Mandatory that, a scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued in favour of the 
Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

	 •	 Alternatively Non Individual shareholders are required mandatory to send the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. togeth-
er with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer and to the Com-
pany at the email address cs@dynemic.com, if they have voted from individual tab & not uploaded same in the CDSL e-voting system 
for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM & E-VOTING DURING MEETING ARE AS UNDER :

1.	 The procedure for attending meeting & e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned above for e-voting.

2.	 The link for VC/OAVM to attend meeting will be available where the EVSN of Company will be displayed after successful login as per the in-
structions mentioned above for e-voting.
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3.	 Shareholders who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the meeting. However, they will not be eligible to vote at the 
AGM.

4.	 Shareholders are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops / IPads for better experience.

5.	 Further shareholders will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any disturbance during the meeting.

6.	 Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience 
Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to miti-
gate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

7.	 Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions during the meeting may register themselves as a speaker by sending their 
request in advance atleast 10 days prior to meeting mentioning their name, demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at 
(company email id). The shareholders who do not wish to speak during the AGM but have queries may send their queries in advance 10 days 
prior to meeting mentioning their name, demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at (company email id). These queries 
will be replied to by the company suitably by email. 

8.	 Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express their views/ask questions during the meet-
ing.

9.	 Only those shareholders, who are present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through 
remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system available during the AGM.

10.	 If any Votes are cast by the shareholders through the e-voting available during the AGM and if the same shareholders have not participated 
in the meeting through VC/OAVM facility, then the votes cast by such shareholders may be considered invalid as the facility of e-voting during 
the meeting is available only to the shareholders attending the meeting.

11.	 Shri B. K. Patel, Chartered Accountant of M/s B. K. Patel & Co., (FRN 112647W), 401-404, Vraj Valencia, B/h Mahindra Show Room, S. G. High-
way, Sola, Ahmedabad-380060 has been appointed as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the e-voting process and voting during AGM, in a fair and 
transparent manner.	

	 PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL/MOBILE NO. ARE NOT REGISTERED WITH THE COMPANY/DEPOSITORIES.

	 a)	 For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of the share certificate 
(front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to Com-
pany’s email id cs@dynemic.com or at RTA’s email id investor@bigshareonline.com 

	 b)	 For Demat shareholders -, Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective Depository Participant (DP) 

	 c)	 For Individual Demat shareholders – Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective Depository Participant (DP) which 
is mandatory while e-Voting & joining virtual meetings through Depository.

	 If you have any queries or issues regarding attending AGM & e-Voting from the CDSL e-Voting System, you can write an email to helpdesk.
evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free no. 1800 21 09911.

	 All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed to Mr. Rakesh Dalvi, Sr. Manager, (CDSL, ) Central 
Depository Services (India) Limited, A Wing, 25th Floor, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mill Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East), 
Mumbai - 400013 or send an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or call  toll free no. 1800 21 09911.

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT IN RESPECT OF THE SPECIAL BUSINESS PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 AND UNDER SECRE-
TRIAL STANDARD ON GENERAL MEETINGS FOR ITEM 3 TO 7

ITEM No. 3 

The Board of Directors on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, appointed M/s. Anuj Aggarwal & Co., Cost Accountants, Ahmedabad as the 
Cost Auditors to carry out the audit of cost records of the Company for the financial year 2025-26 and fixed the remuneration of  Rs. 1,15,000 plus GST 
and out of pocket expenses. As per the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies [Audit and Auditors] Rules, 
2014, the remuneration fixed by the Board of Directors shall be ratified by the members by passing a resolution. Accordingly, consent of the members 
is being sought for passing an Ordinary Resolution for ratification of remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors to carry out the audit of cost records 
of the Company for the financial year 2025-26. None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and and their relatives, are in any 
way concerned or interested in the said Resolution. The Board recommends passing of the said resolution as an Ordinary Resolution for the approval 
of members of the Company.

ITEM No. 4 

As the existing tenure of Shri Bhagwandas K. Patel will be expiring on 31st August 2025, Board of Directors of the Company on the recommendation of 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee in its meeting held on 13.08.2025  has proposed to re-appoint him as a Managing Director of the company  
for  a further period of five years with effect from 01.09.2025, subject to the approval of Members and that of the Central Government, if required on 
the terms and conditions as set out in the Notice at Item No. 4.
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Also in terms of Regulation 17 (6)(e) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regu-
lations, 2018 issued on May 9, 2018 (“Amended Listing Regulations”), the remuneration payable to Executive Directors who are promoters or member 
of promoter group, shall be subject to the approval of the shareholders by Special Resolution in General Meeting, if, the aggregate annual remunera-
tion payable to such directors exceeds 5% of the net profits of the Company, as calculated under section 198 of the Act, where there is more than one 
such director.  The approval given by the shareholders shall be valid only till the expiry of the term of such Director.

On re-appointment his office shall not be held to be liable to retire by rotation on the remuneration determined by the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee and approved by the Board.

Shri Bhagwandas K. Patel is the Managing Director and is responsible for all the day to day operations of the Company subject to superintendence and 
control of the Board of Directors.  Brief resume and other details of Shri Bhagwandas K. Patel are provided in annexure to the Notice pursuant to the 
provision of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015 and Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (“SS-2”), issued by 
the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

Shri Bhagwandas K. Patel B.Com and Inter C.A. and a pioneer and founder of the Company.  He has around 37 years of rich experience in Sales, 
Marketing, Operations, Management and Finance in the existing business.  Prior to joining Dynemic he was working with M/s Britco Surgicals as a 
Administrative & Finance head.  

Section 196(3) of Companies Act, 2013, inter alia, provides that no Company shall continue the employment of a person who has attained the age of 
seventy years, as Managing Director, Whole-time Director or Manager unless it is approved by the members by passing a Special Resolution, Part I of 
Schedule V to the Act contains such relaxation.

The remuneration proposed to be paid to the Managing Director is comparable with the remuneration being paid for similar assignments in the 
industry.

The above may be treated as a written memorandum setting out the terms of appointment of Shri Bhagwandas K. Patel as Managing Director under 
Section 190 of the Act.

The Board of Directors recommended the resolution at Item No. 4 of the Notice for approval of Members by Special Resolution.

Shri Dixitbhai B. Patel, a Whole Time Director of the Company may be considered as concerned and interested as being relative of Shri Bhagwandas K. 
Patel and Shri Bhagwandas K. Patel may be considered as concerned and interested as the resolution pertains to himself.  None of the other Directors, 
Key Managerial Personnel and relatives thereof are in any way, concerned or interested in the resolution at Item no. 4.

Shri Bhagwandas K. Patel satisfies all the conditions set out in Part-I of Schedule V to the Act and she is also not disqualified from being appointed as 
Director in terms of Section 164 of the Act.
Information pertaining to Section II in Part II of Schedule V are as follows : 
I. 	 General Information : 
(1) 	 Nature of industry: The Company is at present engaged in the business of manufacturing of Dyes and Dye Intermediates. 
(2) 	 Date or expected date of commencement of commercial production: The Company was incorporated on 14th June, 1990.  It commissioned 

its commercial production in 1990. 
(3) 	 In case of new Companies, expected date of commencement of activities as per project approved by financial institutions appearing in the 

prospectus : Not applicable 
(4) 	 Financial performance based on given indicators : 

Particulars 2024-25 (Rs. In lacs)

Revenue from operations 36741.78

other income 43.16

Sub-total 36784.94

Total Expenditure (Before interest and de-
preciation)

31956.58

PBDIT 4828.35

PBDIT% 13.13%

Profit/(Loss) After Tax 1499.20
(5) 	 Foreign investments or collaborations, if any : None
II. 	 Information about the appointee:
(1) 	 Background details: Given in Annexure to Notice
(2) 	 Past remuneration: Given in Annexure to Notice 
(3) 	 Recognition or awards: Nil 
(4) 	 Job profile and his suitability: As set out in Item No. 4  of the Notice of the Annual General Meeting.
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(5) 	 Remuneration proposed: As set out in Item No. 4 of the Notice of the Annual General Meeting. 
(6) 	 Comparative remuneration profile with respect to industry, size of the company, profile of the position and person (in case of expatriates the 

relevant details would be with respect to the country of her origin): His remuneration is in line with that drawn by his peers in Industry. 
(7) 	 Pecuniary relationship directly or indirectly with the Company, or relationship with the managerial personnel, if any: As set out in Item No. 4 

of the Notice of the Annual General Meeting.
III. 	 Other information: 
(1) 	 Reasons for inadequate profits: The Company has initiated the Dahej Project, and production capacities are gradually increasing. However, 

during the initial phase, the ramp-up in operations has not yet reached optimal levels, leading to subdued profitability.
(2) 	 Steps taken or proposed to be taken for improvement: While market conditions remain a key external factor beyond our control, the Company 

continues to focus on operational efficiency, cost optimization, and capacity utilization to improve overall performance as market demand 
recovers.

(3) 	 Expected increase in productivity and profits in measurable terms: : With the anticipated improvement in market conditions, both production 
and sales volumes are expected to rise. This is projected to positively impact profitability in the coming quarters, subject to continued market 
recovery.

IV. 	 Disclosures: 
The required disclosures are given in the Report on Corporate Governance annexed to the Directors’ Report. 
ITEM No. 5 
As the existing tenure of  Shri Rameshbhai B. Patel  will be expiring on 31st August,  2025, Board of Directors of the Company on the recommendation 
of Nomination and Remuneration Committee in its meeting held on 13.08.2025  has proposed to re-appoint him as Whole Time Director designated 
as Joint Managing Director,   for  a further period of five years with effect from 01.09.2025, subject to the approval of Members and that of the Central 
Government, if required on the terms and conditions as set out hereunder.
Also in terms of Regulation 17 (6)(e) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regu-
lations, 2018 issued on May 9, 2018 (“Amended Listing Regulations”), the remuneration payable to Executive Directors who are promoters or member 
of promoter group, shall be subject to the approval of the shareholders by Special Resolution in General Meeting, if, the aggregate annual remunera-
tion payable to such directors exceeds 5% of the net profits of the Company, as calculated under section 198 of the Act, where there is more than one 
such director.  The approval given by the shareholders shall be valid only till the expiry of the term of such Director.
Shri Rameshbhai B. Patel is a Bachelor of Science having rich experience of above 35 years in colour & chemical industry and is one of the promoter of 
the Company.  He is in charge of total production/R&D of Unit I at Ankleshwar.  He has been instrumental and a driving force for increasing efficiency 
of plants, developing new product/expanding product range, selecting technology at Dynemic Products Ltd.  
Broad particulars of the terms of re-appointment of Shri Rameshbhai B. Patel are as under :-
(i) 	 Shri Rameshbhai B. Patel satisfy all the conditions set out in Part-I of Schedule V to the Act for being eligible for the re-appointment.
(ii) 	 The office of Whole Time Director designated as a Joint Managing Director may be terminated by the Company or the concerned Director by 

giving the other 1 (one) month prior notice in writing.
(iii) 	 The employment of Whole Time Director designated as a Joint Managing Director may be terminated by the Company without notice or pay-

ment in lieu of notice :
	 •		  if the Director is found guilty of any gross negligence, default or misconduct in connection with or affecting the business of the Com-

pany or any subsidiary or associate company to which he is required to render services; or
	 •		  in the event of any serious repeated or continuing breach or non-observance by the Director of any of the stipulations contained in 

the terms of employment with the Company; or
	 •		  in the event the Board expresses its loss of confidence in the Director.
(iv)   	 Upon termination by whatever means of the Whole Time Director designated as a Joint Managing Director ’s employment :
	 •		  The Director shall immediately tender his resignation from the office as Director of the Company and from such other offices held by 

him in the Company, in any subsidiary and associate company and other entities without claim for compensation for loss of office,
	 •		  The Director shall not without the consent of the Company at any time thereafter represent himself as connected with the Company 

or any of its subsidiary or associate company.
(v) 	 The Whole Time Director designated as a Joint Managing Director  will perform his duties as such with regard to all work of the Company and 

he will manage and attend to such business and carry out the orders and directions given by the Board from time to time in all respects and 
conform to and comply with all such directions and regulations as may from time to time be given and made by the Board and his functions 
will be under the overall authority of the Managing Director.

(vi) 	 The Whole Time Director designated as a Joint Managing Director  shall adhere to the Company’s Code of Business Conduct and Ethics for 
Directors and Management personnel.

The remuneration proposed to be paid to the Whole Time Director designated as a Joint Managing Director  is comparable with the remuneration 
being paid for similar assignments in the industry.
Brief resume and other details of Shri Rameshbhai B. Patel are provided in annexure to the Notice pursuant to the provision of SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015 and Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (“SS-2”), issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries 
of India.
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It is proposed to seek Members’ approval for the re-appointment of and remuneration payable to Shri Rameshbhai B. Patel, as Whole Time Director 
designated as a Joint Managing Director , in terms of the applicable provisions of the Act.
Shri Rameshbhai B. Patel satisfies all the conditions set out in Part-I of Schedule V to the Act and she is also not disqualified from being appointed as 
Director in terms of Section 164 of the Act.
The above may be treated as a written memorandum setting out the terms of re-appointment of Shri Rameshbhai B. Patel as Whole Time Director 
designated as a Joint Managing Director s under Section 190 of the Act.
Your Directors commend the Resolution at Item No. 5 for your approval.
Except for Shri Rameshbhai B. Patel, none of the other Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and relatives thereof are in any way, concerned or inter-
ested in the resolution at Item no. 5.
The Board of Directors recommended the resolution at Item No.  5 of the Notice for approval of Members by Special Resolution.
Information pertaining to Section II in Part II of Schedule V are as follows : 
I. 	 General Information : 
(1) 	 Nature of industry: The Company is at present engaged in the business of manufacturing of Dyes and Dye Intermediates. 
(2) 	 Date or expected date of commencement of commercial production: The Company was incorporated on 14th June, 1990.  It commissioned 

its commercial production in 1990. 
(3) 	 In case of new Companies, expected date of commencement of activities as per project approved by financial institutions appearing in the 

prospectus : Not applicable 
(4) 	 Financial performance based on given indicators : 

Particulars 2024-25 (Rs. In lacs)

Revenue from operations 36741.78

other income 43.16

Sub-total 36784.94

Total Expenditure (Before interest and 
depreciation)

31956.58

PBDIT 4828.35

PBDIT% 13.13%

Profit/(Loss) After Tax 1499.20
	

(5) 	 Foreign investments or collaborations, if any : None
II. 	 Information about the appointee:
(1) 	 Background details: Given in Annexure to Notice
(2) 	 Past remuneration: Given in Annexure to Notice 
(3) 	 Recognition or awards: Nil 
(4) 	 Job profile and his suitability: As set out in Item No. 5 of the Notice of the Annual General Meeting.
(5) 	 Remuneration proposed: As set out in Item No. 5 of the Notice of the Annual General Meeting. 
(6) 	 Comparative remuneration profile with respect to industry, size of the company, profile of the position and person (in case of expatriates the 

relevant details would be with respect to the country of her origin): His remuneration is in line with that drawn by his peers in Industry. 
(7) 	 Pecuniary relationship directly or indirectly with the Company, or relationship with the managerial personnel, if any: As set out in Item No. 5 

of the Notice of the Annual General Meeting.
III. 	 Other information: 
(1) 	 Reasons for inadequate profits: The Company has initiated the Dahej Project, and production capacities are gradually increasing. However, 

during the initial phase, the ramp-up in operations has not yet reached optimal levels, leading to subdued profitability.
(2) 	 Steps taken or proposed to be taken for improvement: While market conditions remain a key external factor beyond our control, the Company 

continues to focus on operational efficiency, cost optimization, and capacity utilization to improve overall performance as market demand 
recovers.

(3) 	 Expected increase in productivity and profits in measurable terms: : With the anticipated improvement in market conditions, both production 
and sales volumes are expected to rise. This is projected to positively impact profitability in the coming quarters, subject to continued market 
recovery.

IV. 	 Disclosures: 
	 The required disclosures are given in the Report on Corporate Governance annexed to the Directors’ Report. 
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ITEM No. 6
Ms. Avani V. Patel was appointed as an Additional Director by the Board of Directors of the Company (”the Board”) during the year.  Pursuant to Sec-
tion 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), Ms. Avani V. Patel shall hold office upto the date of ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company. 
Due notice under Section 160 of the Act has been received from member proposing the appointment of Ms. Avani V. Patel as an  Director of the 
Company whose period of office shall not be liable to determination by retirement of Directors by rotation. 
Ms. Avani V. Patel  has given a declaration to the Board that she meet the criteria of independence as provided under Section 149(6) of the Act.  In 
the opinion of the Board, Ms. Avani V. Patel fulfills the conditions specified in the Companies Act, 2013 and Listing Agreement  for appointment as  
Independent Director.
Ms. Avani V. Patel, is not disqualified from being appointed as Director in terms of Section 164 of the Act and have given her consent to act as Director.
In compliance with the provisions of Section 149 read with Schedule IV of the Act, the appointment of these directors as Independent Directors is now 
being placed before the Members for their approval.
Copy of the draft letter for appointment setting out the terms and conditions are available for inspection by the members at the Registered Office of 
the Company during normal business hours on any working day, excluding Saturday.  The Board considers that the appointment of the said Independ-
ent Director would be of immense benefit to the Company in view of her qualification and expertise as also exposure to the corporate culture and 
governance and it is desirable to continue to avail her services as Independent Director.
Ms. Avani V. Patel (DIN : 07774901) aged 37 years is a Company Secretary by Profession.  She was appointed as Additional Director of the Company 
on 13.08.2025.  Ms. Avani V. Patel is a highly experienced corporate professional specializing in Company Secretarial (CS) services, Trademark law, and 
Valuation of Securities & Financial Assets (SFA). With over 12 years of expertise in corporate governance, compliance advisory, and legal structuring, 
she has successfully guided organizations through complex regulatory frameworks and financial assessments. Apart from professional background she 
holds Directorship in M/s   Gujarat Terce Laboratories Limited.
Except for Ms. Avani V. Patel, none of the other Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and relatives thereof are in any way, concerned or interested in 
the resolution at Item no. 6.
The Board of Directors recommended the resolution at Item No. 6 of the Notice for approval of Members by Special Resolution.
ITEM No. 7
The Board at its meeting held on August 13, 2025, based on recommendation of the Audit Committee, after evaluating and considering various factors 
such as industry experience, competency of the audit team, efficiency in conduct of audit, independence, etc., has approved the appointment of CS 
Ashok P. Pathak of M/s. Ashok P. Pathak & Co., Company Secretaries, Ahmedabad a peer reviewed firm (Firm Registration Number : S1997GJ020700) 
as Secretarial Auditors of the Company for a term of five consecutive years commencing from FY 2025-26 till FY 2029-30, subject to approval of the 
Members. The appointment of Secretarial Auditors shall be in terms of the amended Regulation 24A of the SEBI Listing Regulations vide SEBI Notifica-
tion dated December 12, 2024 and provisions of Section 204 of the Act and Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014.   M/s. Ashok P. Pathak & Co., Company Secretaries (UCN - S1997GJ020700) a Proprietorship Firm set up in 1997 and has been 
Peer Reviewed and holding valid Peer Review Certificate issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India - ICSI. CS Ashok P. Pathak is the Asso-
ciate Member of the Institute of Company Secretaries of India – ICSI since 1994, with varied experience and exposure in corporate and securities laws. 
He is also an Insolvency Professional registered with Insolvency and Bankruptcy Board of India (IBBI) since 2017. The firm have a team of professionals 
possessing experience and expertise, and offers a wide range of specialized and multi-disciplinary professional services in the field of Corporate Laws, 
Securities Laws and Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code.  M/s. Ashok P. Pathak & Co. has confirmed that the firm is not disqualified and is eligible to be 
appointed as Secretarial Auditors in terms of Regulation 24A of the SEBI Listing Regulations. The services to be rendered by M/s. Ashok P. Pathak & 
Co.as Secretarial Auditors is within the purview of the said regulation read with SEBI circular no. SEBI/ HO/CFD/CFD-PoD-2/CIR/P/2024/185 dated 
December 31, 2024.
The proposed fees in connection with the secretarial audit shall be Rs. 1,02,000/- (Rupees One Lakh Two Thousand only) plus applicable taxes and 
other out-of-pocket expenses for FY 2025-2026, and for subsequent year(s) of their term, such fees as may be mutually agreed between the Board 
of Directors and M/s. Ashok P. Pathak & Co.. In addition to the secretarial audit, M/s. Ashok P. Pathak & Co. shall provide such other services in the 
nature of certifications and other professional work, as approved by the Board of Directors. The relevant fees will be determined by the Board, as 
recommended by the Audit Committee in consultation with the Secretarial Auditors. The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution as set out in 
Item No. 7 of this Notice for approval of the Members. None of the Directors and/or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and/or their relatives 
are concerned or interested, in the Resolution set out in Item No. 7 of this Notice.
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Annexure to Notice
Details of Directors seeking Appointment / Re-appointment

Brief resume and other details of Shri Bhagwandas K. Patel, Shri Ramesh B. Patel and Ms. Avani V. Patel are provided in annexure to the Notice 
pursuant to the provision of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015 and Secretarial Standard on General Meetings 

(“SS-2”), issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

Particulars Shri Bhagwandas K. Patel

Age 70

Qualifications B. Com and Inter C.A.

Experience (Brief Resume) Shri Bhagwandas K. Patel aged 70 years is B. Com and Inter C.A. and a pioneer and founder of the 
Company.  He has around 37 years of rich experience in Sales, Marketing, Operations, Management 
and Finance in the existing business.  He was appointed as Managing Director of the Company for 
a period of 5 years with effect from 01.09.2020 which was approved by shareholders in the 30th 
Annual General Meeting held on 24.12.2020.
Prior to joining Dynemic he was working with M/s Britco Surgicals as a Administrative & Finance 
head.

Terms and Conditions of Appointment / 
Re-appointment

As per the resolution at item no. 4 of the Notice convening this Annual General Meeting read with 
explanatory statement thereto.

Remuneration last drawn (including sitting 
fee, if any)

Rs. 111.95 Lakhs

Remuneration proposed to be paid As per resolution at item no. 4 

Date of First appointment on the Board 14.06.1990

Shareholding in the Company as on March 
31, 2025

1267541

Relationship with other Directors / KMP Father of Shri Dixit B. Patel, Whole Time Director

Number of meetings of the Board attended 
during the year

5

Directorships of other Boards as on March 31, 
2025

• Cerecon Bio-Sciences Private Limited erstwhile Dynamic Overseas (India) Private Limited – Subsidiary 
Company
• DBK Chemtech Private Limited

Chairman / Member of the Committees of the 
Board of the Company as on March 31, 2025

Chairman in Risk Management Committee and CSR Committee
Member in Audit Committee and Stakeholder Relationship Committee

Chairman / Member of Committees of other 
Boards as on March 31, 2025

Nil

Listed Companies from which resigned in the past 
three years

Nil

Particulars Shri Rameshbhai B. Patel

Age 62

Qualifications Bachelor of Science 

Experience (Brief Resume) Shri Rameshbhai B. Patel aged 62 years is Bachelor of Science having rich experience of above 35 
years in colour & chemical industry and is one of the promoter of the Company.  He is in charge 
of total production/R&D of Unit I at Ankleshwar.  He has been instrumental and a driving force for 
increasing efficiency of plants, developing new product/expanding product range, selecting tech-
nology at Dynemic Products Ltd.  He was appointed as Whole Time Director of the Company for a 
period of 5 years with effect from 01.09.2020 which was approved by the shareholders in the 30th 
Annual General Meeting held on 24.12.2020 and again was re designated as Whole Time Director 
designated as a Joint Managing Director  in the 34th Annual General Meeting held on 28.09.2024.   

Terms and Conditions of Appointment / 
Re-appointment

As per the resolution at item no. 5 of the Notice convening Annual General Meeting read with ex-
planatory statement thereto.

Remuneration last drawn (including sitting 
fee, if any)

Rs. 93.82 Lakhs

Remuneration proposed to be paid As per resolution at item no. 5 



17 ANNUAL REPORT 2024-2025

Date of First appointment on the Board 14.06.1990

Shareholding in the Company as on March 31, 
2025

713993

Relationship with other Directors / KMP None

Number of meetings of the Board attended 
during the year

5

Directorships of other Boards as on March 31, 
2025

• Cerecon Bio-Sciences Private Limited erstwhile Dynamic Overseas (India) Private Limited – Sub-
sidiary Company
• Ratnamani Bio-Chemicals and Pharmaceuticals Private Limited

Chairman / Member of the Committees of the 
Board of the Company as on March 31, 2025

Nil

Chairman / Member of Committees of other 
Boards as on March 31, 2025

Nil

Listed Companies from which resigned in the past 
three years

Nil

Particulars Ms. Avani V. Patel

Age 37

Qualifications B. Com, LLB, C.S.and Registered Valuer (SFA)

Experience (Brief Resume) Ms. Avani Vishnubhai Patel is a highly experienced corporate professional specializing in Company Sec-
retarial (CS) services, Trademark law, and Valuation of Securities & Financial Assets (SFA). With over 12 
years of expertise in corporate governance, compliance advisory, and legal structuring, she has success-
fully guided organizations through complex regulatory frameworks and financial assessments. 
Additionally, Ms. Patel has served as an Independent Director, offering governance oversight and 
strategic guidance, complementing her core professional services in corporate law, intellectual 
property, and financial valuation. 

Terms and Conditions of Appointment / 
Re-appointment

As per the resolution at item no. 6 of the Notice convening Annual General Meeting read with ex-
planatory statement thereto.

Remuneration last drawn (including sitting 
fee, if any)

Nil

Remuneration proposed to be paid She shall be paid sitting fee (presently sitting fee is Rs. 8,000/- for each meeting) for attending every 
meeting of the Board and may vary as decided by Board from time to time.

Date of First appointment on the Board 13.08.2025

Shareholding in the Company as on March 31, 
2025

Nil

Relationship with other Directors / KMP None

Number of meetings of the Board attended 
during the year

Nil

Directorships of other Boards as on March 31, 
2025

Nil

Chairman / Member of the Committees of the 
Board of the Company as on March 31, 2025

Nil

Chairman / Member of Committees of other 
Boards as on March 31, 2025

Nil

Listed Companies from which resigned in the past 
three years

Nil

	 By Order of the Board

Ahmedabad	 Varsha R. Mehta
August 13, 2025	 Company Secretary   
	 Membership No. A24312
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Boards’ Report
Dear Shareholders,

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 35th Annual Report together with the audited Statement of Accounts of the Company for the year 
ended March 31, 2025.

FINANCIAL RESULTS
	 (Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars Standalone Consolidated

Year ended 31st 
March’25

Year ended 31st 
March’24

Year ended 31st 
March’25

Year ended 31st 
March’24

Revenue from Operations 36086 27958 36090 27972

Other Operating Income 656 420 662 433

Total Income from Operations (net) 36742 28378 36752 28405

Other Income 43 64 43 69

Total Income 36785 28442 36795 28474

Profit before Interest, Depreciation & Amortization and 
Tax Expenses

4828 3259 4830 3268

Finance Cost 1139 1289 1139 1289

Depreciation & Amortization    1643 1668 1643 1668

Profit Before Tax 2046 302 2048 311

Provision for Current Tax 0 0 1.29 13

Provision for Deferred Tax 547 104 546.25 (64)

Total Tax 547 104 548 (51)

Profit after Tax 1499 406 1500 362

Other Comprehensive Income 9 22 9 22

Total Comprehensive Income / (Expenses) 1508 428 1509 384

PREFERENTIAL ISSUE 

The Members in the Annual General Meeting held on 12th September, 2023 inter alia considered and approved the raising of funds by way of Pref-
erential Issue by issuing 3,50,000 Equity shares and 4,00,000 convertible warrants for an amount of ₹23.14 Crore. The purpose/object to raise capital 
was to meet Working Capital and General Corporate Purposes. 

The company converted the allotted 4,00,000 convertible warrants into Equity shares during the year.  

DIVIDEND 

Your Directors, after considering the financial performance has decided not to recommend dividend for the year under review.

AMOUNTS, IF ANY, WHICH IT PROPOSES TO CARRY TO ANY RESERVES 

The Board of Directors has decided not to transfer any amount to any reserves.

COMPANY’S OPERATIONS 

Information on operational and financial performance, etc. of the Company for the financial year is given in the Management Discussion and Analysis 
which is set out as Annexure E to the Boards’ Report.

ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE

The information to be disclosed under Section 134 (3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, are set out in 
Annexure A to this Report.

CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS 

The Company has not changed its nature of Business during the year under review.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY INITIATIVES

As part of its initiatives under “Corporate Social Responsibility” (CSR), the company has contributed funds to Dynemic Foundation.  The contributions 
in this regard has been made to the registered trust which is undertaking these scheme. 
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The Annual Report on CSR activities is annexed herewith as : Annexure B.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS:

The company has not given any loans or guarantees covered under the provisions of section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.  The details of the in-
vestments made by company is given in the notes to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

Pursuant to requirement of the Companies Act, 2013, Shri Dixitbhai B. Patel shall retire at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and being eligible 
offers himself for re-appointment.  The details of Directors seeking appointment/re-appointment at the ensuing Annual General Meeting has been 
provided in the Notice of the Annual General Meeting, forming part of the Annual Report. 

The Independent Directors hold office for a fixed term of five years and are not liable to retire by rotation. In accordance with Section 149(7) of the Act, 
each independent director has given a written declaration to the Company confirming that he/she meets the criteria of independence as mentioned 
under Section 149(6) of the Act and SEBI Regulations.    

Ms. Rashmi Aahuja due to her pre-occupancy resigned on 13.06.2025 as an independent director.   The Board of Directors of the Company appointed 
Ms. Avani Patel as Independent Director of the Company for a term of 3 (three) years with effect from August 13, 2025 to August 12, 2028 (both days 
inclusive) subject to approval of shareholders in General Meeting.

Nomination and Remuneration Policy

Company’s Policy on Directors, KMP and other employees as per Section 134(3) of Companies Act, 2013 is given in Corporate Governance Section 
forming part of Annual Report.

Meetings

The Board of Directors duly met 5 (Five) times respectively on 30.05.2024, 13.08.2024, 13.11.2024, 10.02.2025 and 06.03.2025 in respect of which 
meetings proper notices were given and the proceedings were properly recorded and signed. 

STATEMENT REGARDING OPINION OF THE BOARD WITH REGARD TO INTEGRITY, EXPERTISE AND EXPERIENCE (INCLUDING THE PROFICIENCY) OF 
THE INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS APPOINTED DURING THE YEAR.

In terms of the provisions of rule 8(5)(iiia) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the Board opines that the Independent directors so appointed/
re-appointed hold highest standards of integrity and possess necessary expertise and experience.

INSURANCE

All movable and immovable properties as owned by the Company continued to be adequately insured against risks.

Directors and Officers Liability Insurance Policy : The Company has a Directors and Officers Liability Insurance Policy which protects Directors and 
Officers of the Company for any breach of fiduciary duty.

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARRASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013.

The Company has in place an Anti Sexual Harassment Policy in line with the requirements of the Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace 
(Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013 and also has  constituted Internal Complaints Committee (ICC). All employees (permanent, contractu-
al, temporary, trainees) are covered under this policy. The company has complied with provisions relating to the constitution of Internal Complaints 
Committee under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

The following is a summary of sexual harassment complaints received and disposed off during the year.

	 •	 No. of complaints filed during the financial year - NIL

	 •	 No. of complaints disposed off during the financial year – Not Applicable

	 •	 Number of complaints pending as on end of the financial year - NIL

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013 it is hereby confirmed that :

•	 in the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended March 31, 2025, the applicable accounting standards had been followed 
and that there are no material departures;

•	 the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates that were reasonable 
and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit / loss of 
the Company for the year under review;

•	 the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;  

•	 the Directors have prepared the accounts for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 on a going concern basis; 
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•	 the Directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that such internal financial controls are adequate 
and were operating effectively;

•	 the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems are adequate 
and operating effectively.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

All related party transactions that were entered into during the financial year were on arm’s length basis and were in the ordinary course of the busi-
ness. There are no materially significant related party transactions made by the company with Promoters, Key Managerial Personnel or other desig-
nated persons which may have potential conflict with interest of the company at large.  Prior Omnibus approval of the Audit Committee is obtained on 
yearly basis for the transactions which are of a foreseen and repetitive nature. The Company had also taken members’ approval at its Annual General 
Meeting held on 11th September, 2014 for entering into the transactions with Related Parties.  The policy on Related Party Transactions as approved 
by the Board is uploaded on the Company’s website https://www.dynemic.com/colours/pdf/Related%20Party%20Transaction%20Policy.pdf                                                                                                                                   

Accordingly, the disclosure of Related Party Transactions as required under Section 134(3)(h) of the Companies Act, 2013 in Form AOC-2 is not appli-
cable.

Disclosure of transactions with promoter / promoter group holding 10% or more shareholding.     					     (in Lacs)

Name of Promoter Transaction Type Amount

Shri Bhagwandas K. Patel
Number of shares – 1267541 (10.54%)

Remuneration 111.94

Dividend 0.00

Transactions with related parties are disclosed in Note No. 38 to the Annual Financial Statements. 

Material Changes: 

There have been no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company since the close of financial year i.e. since 
March 31, 2025. Further, it is hereby confirmed that there has been no change in the nature of business of the Company.

AUDITORS :-

(A)	 STATUTORY AUDITOR :-

	 M/s B. K. Patel & Co., Chartered Accountants were appointed as Statutory Auditors of your Company at the Annual General Meeting held on 
September 29, 2022 for a term of five consecutive years.  The Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017 has waived the requirement for ratification 
of the appointment by the members at every AGM. Hence, the approval of the members is not being sought for the re-appointment of the 
Statutory Auditors.

	 The Report given by the Auditors on the financial statements of the Company is part of the Annual Report. There has been no qualification, 
reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer given by the Auditors in their Report.

(B) 	 SECRETARIAL AUDITOR:-

	 Pursuant to provisions of section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and The Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Person-
nel) Rules, 2014 the company has appointed M/s. Ashok P. Pathak & Company,   Company Secretary in practice to undertake the Secretarial 
Audit of the Company. The Secretarial Audit report is annexed herewith as “Annexure C” for the financial year ended on March 31, 2025.  The 
Secretarial Audit Report contains qualification remark.  

	 The explanation on comments / observation(s) in the Secretarial Audit Report are as under  - 

	 (a ) 		 Ms. Rashmi Kamlesh Otavani the Independent Women Director was appointed as Additional Director w.e.f. 14.02.2015 who holds 
office upto the date of AGM only.  She gets appointed / confirmed only after approval of shareholders in AGM / EGM. She got appoint-
ed / confirmed in Annual General Meeting held  25.09.2015 for the period of five years upto 25.09.2020 and got re-appointed in the 
Annual General Meeting held on 24.12.2020 for second term of five consecutive years w.e.f. 25.09.2020 to 24.09.2025.

			   For all purpose her appointment expires on 24.09.2025 and the Company will fill the vacancy before the expiry of the term of Ms. 
Rashmi Kamlesh Otavani.

	 (b) 		 The Company has appointed Mr. Dixitbhai B. Patel and Mr. Rameshbhai B. Patel, Whole Time Directors designated as Joint Managing 
Director vide Special Resolutions passed in its 34th Annual General Meeting held on 28.09.2024. In e-Form DIR-12 filed with Ministry 
of Corporate Affairs there is no designation as Joint Managing Director and as such the designations has been shown as “Managing 
Director” for Mr. Dixitbhai B. Patel and Mr. Rameshbhai B. Patel. e-Form MR-1 has also been filed vide SRN AB1572064 and AB1571935 
dtd. 19.10.2024 with designation “Managing Director” for Mr. Dixitbhai B. Patel and Mr. Rameshbhai B. Patel respectively.



21 ANNUAL REPORT 2024-2025

(C) 	 COST AUDITOR:-

	 Pursuant to Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with The Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Amendment Rules, 2014, the Cost 
Audit records maintained by the Company are required to be audited by a qualified Cost Accountant.

	 Your Directors have on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, appointed M/s Anuj Aggarwal & Co., Cost Accountants (Firm Registra-
tion number 102409) to audit the cost accounts of the Company for the Financial Year 2025-26. As required under the Act, the remuneration 
payable to the Cost Auditor is required to be placed before the Members in a General Meeting for their ratification.

	 A Resolution seeking ratification of remuneration payable to M/s Anuj Aggarwal & Co, Cost Accountants is included in the Notice convening 
the Annual General Meeting.

ANNUAL RETURN:

In accordance with the provisions of Section 92(3) of the Act, Annual Return of the Company as on March 31, 2025 is hosted on the website of the 
Company at https://www.dynemic.com/colours/pdf/Form_MGT_7-24-25.pdf

RISK MANAGEMENT :

In compliance with the provisions of Regulation 21 of SEBI LODR Regulations, the Board of Directors has constituted a Risk Management Committee. 
The details of Committee and its terms of reference are set out in the Corporate Governance Report forming part of the Board’s Report.

At present the company has not identified any element of risk which may threaten the existence of the company.  

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT :

As per Clause 34(2) (e) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Management Discussion and Analysis Report, 
is appended to this report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:

A separate section on Corporate Governance practices followed by the Company, together with a certificate from Practicing Company Secretary con-
firming compliance forms an integral part of this Report, as per SEBI Regulations. 

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

There was no employee drawing salary in excess of limits described under Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Appoint-
ment & Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014. 

DEPOSITS

The Company has not accepted any deposits during the year under report.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial Year 2024-25 are prepared in compliance with the applicable provisions of 
the Act, Accounting Standards and Regulations as prescribed by Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) under SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Financial Statements of the Company, the Consolidated Financial State-
ments along with all relevant documents and the Auditor’s Report thereon form part of this Annual Report. The Financial Statements as stated above 
are also available on the website www.dynemic.com of the Company.

SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANY

A report on the performance and financial position of subsidiary and associate company as per Companies Act, 2013 is provided in Annexure –D.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND THIER ADEQUACY:

The details in respect of internal financial control and their adequacy are included in the Management and Discussion & Analysis, which forms part 
of this report.

Vigil Mechanism and Whistle Blower Policy

The Company has a WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY to deal with instance of unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Company’s 
code of conduct, if any. The details of the WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY are posted on the website of the Company. During the year under review, no 
employee was denied access to the Audit Committee. https://www.dynemic.com/colours/pdf/Revised%20Whistle%20Blower%20Policy.pdf

Business Responsibility and Sustainability Report (BRSR)

The Listing Regulations mandate the inclusion of the BRSR as part of the Annual Report for the top 1,000 listed entities based on market capitalization. 
Since your Company is not in Top 1,000 Companies by Market Cap hence the said report is not applicable to the Company.
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DETAILS IN RESPECT OF FRAUDS REPORTED BY AUDITORS UNDER SUB-SECTION (12) OF SECTION 143 OTHER THAN THOSE WHICH ARE REPORTABLE 
TO THE CENTRAL GOVERNMENT

In terms of the provisions of section 143(12) of the Act read with rule 13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, during the year under 
review, the auditors have not reported any frauds to the Audit Committee or to the Board and therefore, no details pursuant to the provisions of 
section 134(3)(ca) of the Act are required to be disclosed.

DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR ANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 (31 OF 2016) DURING 
THE YEAR ALONGWITH THEIR STATUS AS AT THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR

During the year under review there was no application made or any proceeding pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016.

DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE AT THE TIME OF ONE TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE 
TAKING LOAN FROM THE BANKS OR FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH THE REASONS THEREOF 

Not applicable

GENERAL

No significant or material orders were passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which impact the going concern status and Company’s opera-
tions in future.

The Company has complied with Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India on Meetings of the Board of Directors 
and General Meetings.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Board wishes to express appreciation and place on record its gratitude for the faith reposed in and co-operation extended to the Company by all 
customers, vendors, investors, bankers, insurance companies, consultants and advisors of the Company.  Your Directors place on record their appre-
ciation of the dedicated and sincere services rendered by the employees of the company.

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors

Ahmedabad
August 13, 2025

 Bhagwandas K. Patel
Managing Director

DIN : 00045845

Dixitbhai B. Patel
Director

DIN : 00045883
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DETAILS PERTAINING TO EMPLOYEES AS
REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 197(12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2013

DETAILS PERTAINING TO REMUNERATION AS REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 197(12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE 5(1) OF THE COM-
PANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014

(i) 	 The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary  during the financial year 2024-25, 
ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the employees of the company for the financial year 2024-25 and 
the comparison of remuneration of each Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) against the performance of the Company are as under :

Sr.No. Name of Director/KMP
and Designation

Remuneration of Director/
KMP for FY 2024-25  

*(Rs. in Lakhs)

% increase in 
Remuneration in the FY 

2024-25

Ratio of remuneration of 
each Director / to median 

remuneration of employees

1 Bhagwandas K. Patel
Managing Director 94.02 10.00% 39.48

2
Rameshbhai B. Patel

Whole Time Director
90.09 10.00% 37.83

3 Dixitbhai B. Patel
Whole Time Director 86.15 10.00% 36.18

4
Ankit Shah 

Chief Financial Officer
12.64 10.00% 5.31

5
Varsha R. Mehta

Company Secretary and Compliance Officer
12.25 10.00% 5.14

	 * Excluding Commission and Leave Pay

i) 	 The median remuneration of employees of the Company during the financial year was 2.38 lakhs

ii) 	 In the financial year, there was 10%  increase in the median remuneration of employees;

iii) 	 There were 468 permanent employees on the rolls of Company as on March 31, 2025;

iv) 	 Average percentile increase made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel in the last financial year i.e. 2024-25 was 1%.

v) 	 The key parameters for the variable component of remuneration availed by the directors are considered by the Board of Directors based on 
the recommendations of the  Nomination and Remuneration Committee as per the Remuneration Policy for Directors, Key Managerial Per-
sonnel and other Employees.

vi) 	 The ratio of the remuneration of the highest paid director to that of the employees who are not directors but receive remuneration in excess 
of the highest paid director during the year – Not Applicable; and

vii) 	 It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid is as per the Remuneration Policy for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other Employees.

viii) 	 The disclosure require as per Rule 5(2) Section 197 is not applicable as there were no employees drawing remuneration exceeding the limit.
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ANNEXURE  A  - TO THE BOARDS’ REPORT
Particulars of Energy Conservation, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo as required under Section 134 (3) (m) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

A.	 CONSERVATION OF ENERGY :

	 (i)	 Steps taken for conservation of energy

		  The  Company has  adopted  several  energy  conservation  measures besides what had been carried out earlier. Periodical testing is 
being  taken  for  each  unit  of   power   supply  to  verify that the energy consumed is minimized.

	 (ii)	 Steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate sources of energy – N.A.

	 (iii)	 The Capital investment on energy conservation equipments - Nil

B.    TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION :

	 (i)	 Efforts towards technology absorption – Continuous endeavor to improve Product Quality & Process Yield.

	 (ii)	 The benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or import Substitution – The Company is able 
to market its value added products in Domestic as well as International Market

	 (iii)	 Information regarding imported technology (Imported during last three years) - Nil

	 (iv)	 Expenditure incurred on Research and Development - Nil

C.	 FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING AND OUTGO :	 (in Lakhs)

Current Year Rs. Previous Year Rs.

•  Foreign Exchange earned 19032.00 17997.18

•  Foreign Exchange used 5737.95 5014.45

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors

Ahmedabad
August 13, 2025

 Bhagwandas K. Patel
Managing Director

DIN : 00045845

Dixitbhai B. Patel
Director

DIN : 00045883
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Annexure B to Board Report
REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES

1.	 A brief outline of the company’s CSR policy, including overview of projects or programmes proposed to be undertaken and a reference to 
the web-link to the CSR policy and projects or programmes.

	 CSR policy is stated herein below :

CSR Policy

(Approved by the Board of Directors on 08.11.2014 and amended from time to time)

	 Our aim is to be one of the most respected companies in India delivering superior and everlasting value to all our customers, associates, 
shareholders, employees and Society at large.

	 The CSR initiatives focus on holistic development of host communities and create social, environmental and economic value to the society.  To 
pursue these objectives we will continue to spend the required amount as provided in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013

2.	 Composition of CSR committee

Name of The Member Designation Number of meetings of CSR Commit-
tee held during the year

Number of meetings of CSR Commit-
tee attended during the year

Shri Bhagwandas K. Patel Chairman May 30, 2024
February 10, 2025

(Two meetings held)

2

Shri Vikash Jain Member 2

Mrs. Rashmi K. Otavani Member 2

3.	 Web Link : https://www.dynemic.com/colours/corporate-information

4.	 Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate 
Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach the report).    --  Not Applicable

5.	 Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) 
Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the financial year, if any

Sr. No. Financial Year Amount available for set-off from preceding financial 
years (in Rs)

Amount required to be setoff for the 
financial year, if any (in Rs)

NIL

6.	 Average net profit : Rs. 7.52 Crores
7.	 (a) 	 Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) : Rs. 15.04 Lacs
	 (b)	 Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programs or activities of the previous financial years : Nil
	 (c)	 Amount required to be set-off for the financial year, if any : Nil
	 (d)	 Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c) : Rs. 15.04 Lacs

8.	 (a)	 CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year :

Total Amount
Spent for the
Financial Year

Amount Unspent (in Rs.)

Total Amount transferred to Unspent CSR 
Account as per section 135(6)

Amount transferred to any fund specified under
Schedule VII as per second proviso to section 135(5)

Amount Date of transfer Name of the Fund Amount Date of transfer

Rs. 15.05 Lacs Not Applicable

	 (b)	 Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year :

Name 
of the 
Pro-
ject

Item from
the list of

activities in
Schedule VII 

to the Act

Local 
Area 
(Yes/
No)

Loca-
tion of 
Project 
(State / 
District)

Project 
duration 
(in years)

Amount 
allocated 

for the 
project 
(in Rs.)

Amount 
spent in 
the cur-
rent F.Y. 
(in Rs.)

Amount transferred 
to Unspent CSR 

account for the pro-
ject as per Section 

135(6) (in Rs.)

Mode of 
imple-

mentation 
– Direct 
(Yes/No)

Mode of implementa-
tion – Through Imple-

menting Agency

Name CSR Regn. 
No.

Nil
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	 (c)	 Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year:

Name of the Project Item from
the list of

activities in
Schedule VII to the Act

Local 
Area 

(Yes/No)

Location 
of Project 

(State / 
District)

Amount
spent for

the
project
(in Rs.).

Mode of 
implementa-
tion – Direct 

(Yes/No)

Mode of implementation 
– Through Implementing 

Agency

Name CSR Regn. No.

Women empower-
ment Medical and 
Health Care, Ru-
ral Development, 
Education, Food , 
Grocery & Clothes 
Distribution and 
livelihood for the 
needy person

Promoting education, Erad-
icating hunger, poverty and 
malnutrition, promoting 
health care including pre-
ventive health care, Disas-
ter management, including 
relief, rehabilitation and re-
construction activities

Yes Gujarat / 
Ahmedabad

15,05,000 No Raginiben 
Bipinchan-

dra Sevakar-
ya Trust 

Ahmedabad

CSR00012645

	 (d)	 Amount spent in Administrative Overheads : NIL
	 (e)	 Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable : Not Applicable
	 (f)	 Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8a+8b+8c+8d+8e) : Rs. 15.05 Lacs
	 (g)	 Excess amount for set-off, if any :

Sr.No. Particular Amount (in Rs.)

1. Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per section 135(5) 15.04 Lacs

2. Total amount spent for the Financial Year 15.05 Lacs

3. Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii) - (i)] 0.01 Lacs

4. Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years, if any Nil

5. Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)] 0.01 Lacs
9.	 (a)	 Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: Not Applicable
	 (b)	 Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial year(s):

Project ID Name of the 
Project

Financial Year in
which the project 
was commenced.

Project 
duration.

Total amount
allocated for 

the project (in 
Rs.).

Amount spent 
on the project 

in the reporting 
Financial Year 

(in Rs).

Cumulative amount 
spent at the end of
reporting Financial

Year. (in Rs.)

Status of the
project -

Completed
/Ongoing.

NIL
10.	 In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or acquired through CSR spent in the 

financial year (asset-wise details).
	 (a)	 Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s).
	 (b)	 Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset.
	 (c)	 Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is registered, their address etc.
	 (d)	 Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and location of the capital asset).
11.	 Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per section 135(5) : Not Applicable

 B.K. Patel
DIN : 00045845

(Chairman of CSR Committee)

 Vikash Jain
DIN 02273508

(Member of CSR Committee)

R.K. Otavani
DIN : 06976600

(Member of CSR Committee)
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Annexure C to Board Report
FORM NO. MR.3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE F INANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31 ST MARCH,  2025

 [Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,
The Members,
Dynemic Products Limited
B-301, Satyamev Complex-1
Gandhinagar-Sarkhej Highway Road Court, 
Sola. Ahmedabad.380 063
We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by 
Dynemic Products Limited (hereinafter called “the Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for 
evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.
Based on our verification of the Dynemic Products Limited’s  books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by 
the company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial 
audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2025 complied 
with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the 
extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter :
We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company for the financial year 
ended on 31st March, 2025 according to the provisions of :
 	 (i)	 The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(ii)	 The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;
(iii)	 The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;
(iv)	 Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, 

Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings; 
(v)	 The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-

		  (a)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;
		  (b)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;
		  (c)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 and amendments 

from time to time, where applicable;  
		  (d)	 * The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021;
		  (e)	 * The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021; 
		  (f)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the 

Companies Act and dealing with client;
		  (g)	 *The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021; and
		  (h)	 *The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018;
		  (i)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015;
		  (j)	 *The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible and Redeemable Preference Shares) Regu-

lations, 2013; and
		  (k)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 2018
* No event took place under these regulations during the audit period.
We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the Secretarial Standard on Meetings of the Board of Directors (SS-1) and on Gen-
eral Meetings (SS-2) issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India which the company has generally complied with. 
During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned 
above subject to the following observation(s) :
a.	 Compliance Requirement :- As per Section 149(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 an independent director shall hold office for a term up to five 

consecutive years on the Board of the Company, but shall be eligible for reappointment on passing of a special resolution by the Company 
and disclosure of such appointment in the Board’s report. As per Section 149(11) Notwithstanding anything contained in sub-section (10), no 
independent director shall hold office for more than two consecutive terms. Regulation 25(2) of Listing Regulations, 2015 provides that the 
maximum tenure of independent directors shall be in accordance with the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder, in this regard, 
from time to time.
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	 As per Regulation 17(1)(c) of the Listing Regulations, 2015, the Board of Directors of top 2000 listed entities shall comprise of not less than six 
directors. As per Sub-Regulation (1E) of Regulation 17 provides that any vacancy in the office of a Director shall be filled by the listed entity at 
the earliest and in any case not later than three months from the date of such vacancy.

	 As per second proviso to sub-regulation (1E) of Regulation 17, if the Company becomes non-compliant with the requirement under sub-reg-
ulation(1) of Regulation 18, sub-regulation (1) or (2) of Regulation 19, sub-regulation (2) or (2A) of Regulation 20 or sub-regulation (2) or (3) 
of Regulation 21 of Listing Regulations, 2015, due to expiration of the term of office of any director, the resulting vacancy shall be filled by the 
listed entity not later than the date such office is vacated.

	 Observation : The second term of Ms. Rashmi Kamlesh Otavani, the Independent Women Director has expired on 13.02.2025 (Original date 
of Appointment was 14.02.2015) and the vacancy could have been filled as per the requirement of second proviso to Regulation 17(1E).

b.	 Compliance Requirement :- Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013 provides that Every Company belonging to such class or classes of Com-
panies as may be prescribed shall have the following whole time key managerial personnel :

	 (i)	 Managing Director or Chief Executive officer or manager and in their absence a whole time director;
	 (ii)	 Company Secretary and 
	 (iii)	 Chief Financial Officer.
	 Observation : The Company has appointed Mr. Dixitbhai B. Patel and Mr. Rameshbhai B. Patel, Whole Time Directors as Joint Managing 

Director vide Special Resolutions passed in its 34th Annual General Meeting held on 28.09.2024. In e-Form DIR-12 filed with Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs vide SRN AB1385353 dtd.04.10.2024 the designation has been shown as “Managing Director” for Mr. Dixitbhai B. Patel and 
Mr. Rameshbhai B. Patel. e-Form MR-1 has also been filed vide SRN AB1572064 and AB1571935 dtd. 19.10.2024 with designation “Managing 
Director” for Mr. Dixitbhai B. Patel and Mr. Rameshbhai B. Patel respectively.

We further report that
a.	 The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors, Independent 

Directors and Women Director subject to above observation. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during 
the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

b.	 Adequate notices were given to all directors of the Board Meetings. Agenda and detailed notes on agenda are sent in advance of the meetings 
and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting for meaningful 
participation at the meeting.

c.	 Board decisions are carried out with unanimous consent and therefore, no dissenting views were required to be captured and recorded as part 
of the minutes.

We further report that based on the compliance mechanism established by the company and on the basis of the Compliance Certificate(s) issued 
by the Respective Plant Heads / Department Heads and take on record by the Board of Directors at their meeting(s), we are of the opinion that the 
management has :

a.	 Adequate systems and processes commensurate with its size and operation, to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, 
rules, regulations and guidelines.

b.	 Identified and complied with following laws applicable to the company :
	 1.	 Food Safety and Standards Act, 2006; 
	 2.	 Indian Boiler Act, 1923 
	 3.	 The Trade Marks Act, 1999

We further report that during the period under review : 
The Company has Issued and Allotted 400000 Convertible Equity Warrants vide its Board Meeting held on 26/09/2023 to Promoter & Promoter Group 
and Non-Promoters, convertible within 18 months from the date of allotment. The said Equity Warrants were converted into Equity Shares vide Board 
Meeting dtd. 06/03/2025. BSE and NSE have listed and admitted to dealing on the Exchanges with effect from Tuesday, July 15th, 2025 vide there 
letters dated July 14th, 2025. 400000 equity shares of Rs.10.00/- each issued at a premium of Rs.298.50 to Promoter/ Promoter Group and Non Pro-
moter will rank pari-passu with the old equity shares of the company. 112000 Equity Shares belonging to Promoter and Promoter Group shall remain 
in lock-in for 18 months and  288000 Equity Shares belonging to Non-Promoter shall remain in lock-in for 6 months from the date of trading approval 
granted.

For, Ashok P. Pathak & Co.,
Company Secretaries,

ICSI Unique Code : S1997GJ020700  

CS Ashok P. Pathak
Proprietor                                       

August 13, 2025 	 ACS No : 9939 | COP No : 2662
Ahmedabad 	 Peer Review Certificate No. : 1519/2021

ICSI UDIN :  A009939G000993504
* Insolvency Professional (IP) registered with the Institute of Insolvency and Bankruptcy Board of India. (IBBI) IBBI/IPA-002/IP-N00329/2017-18/10934
Note : This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure I and forms an integral part of this report.
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ANNEXURE- I to Secretarial Audit Report
The Members
Dynemic Products Limited
B-301, Satyamev Complex-1
Gandhinagar-Sarkhej Highway Road Court, 
Sola. Ahmedabad.380 063

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter

1.	 Maintenance of Secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on 
these secretarial records based on our audit.

2.	 We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain responsible assurance about the correctness of the con-
tents of secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe 
that the processes and practices, we follow provide a responsible basis for our opinion.

3.	 We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of accounts of the company.

4.	 Wherever required, we have obtained the management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of 
events etc.

5.	 The compliance of the provision of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. Our 
examination was limited to verification of procedures on test basis.

6.	 The secretarial audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor the efficacy or effectiveness with which the 
management has conducted the affairs of the company.

For, Ashok P. Pathak & Co.,
Company Secretaries,

ICSI Unique Code : S1997GJ020700

 	   

CS Ashok P. Pathak
Proprietor                                       

ACS No : 9939 | COP No : 2662
August 13, 2025 	 Peer Review Certificate No. : 1519/2021
Ahmedabad	
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ANNEXURE D
[Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section [3] of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies [Accounts] Rules, 2014]

Statement containing salient features of the Financial Statement of Subsidiary / Associate as per Companies Act, 2013
	 (Rs. in Lakhs)

PART “A” SUBSIDIARY

Name of the subsidiary Cerecon Bio Sciences Private Limited (Erstwhile Dynam-
ic Overseas (India) Private Limited

Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different from the holding company’s 
reporting period 01.04.2024 to 31.03.2025

Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date of the relevant Financial year in 
the case of foreign subsidiaries N.A.

Share capital 21.00

Reserves & surplus 97.81

Total assets 120.59

Total Liabilities 120.59

Investments 0

Turnover 101.42

Profit before taxation 1.97

Provision for taxation 0.55

Profit after taxation 1.42

Proposed Dividend Nil

% of shareholding 98.09%
1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations – N.A.
2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year – N.A.					   
	 (Rs. in Lakhs)

PART “B” ASSOCIATE – Statement pursuant to Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013

Name of Associate Dynemic Holdings Private Limited

Latest audited Balance Sheet Date 31/03/2025

Shares of Associates held by the Company on the year end

No. 1010000

Amount of Investment in Associates (in Rs.) 101.00

Extend of Holding (%) 49.22%

Description of how there is significant influence There is significant influence due to percentage(%) of Share Capital

Reason why the associate/joint venture is not consolidated N.A.

Net worth attributable to shareholding as per latest audited Balance Sheet 88.22

Profit/Loss for the year

i.  Considered in Consolidation (0.57)
ii.  Not Considered in Consolidation 0

1. Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations – N.A.
2. Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year – N.A.

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors

Ahmedabad
August 13, 2025

 Bhagwandas K. Patel
Managing Director

DIN : 00045845       

Dixitbhai B. Patel
Director

DIN : 00045883
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ANNEXURE E - Management Discussion and Analysis Report
Industry Structure & Development 

A food coloring or color additive is any dye, pigment, or chemical added to give food or beverages colors. They are available in different 
forms, including liquids, powders, gels, and pastes. Both commercial and home cooking utilize the use of food coloring. Food colorants 
are also utilized in various non-food products, including cosmetics, medications, household crafts, and medical equipment. The global 
food colors market size was valued at USD 3.78 billion in 2024 and is estimated to reach from USD 4.23 billion in 2025 to USD 10.40 
billion by 2033, growing at a CAGR of 11.9% during the forecast period (2025–2033). Addionally, the colorful components of these com-
pounds are frequently offered in highly refined forms to assure repeatability. For ease and stability, they can be formulated in suitable 
carrier materials (solids and liquids). 

Opportunities and Threats

The Dye Intermediates Market is experiencing consistent growth due to the increasing demand for sustainable and high-performance 
dyes. A key aspect of this market is its dependence on the synthetic dye sector. Synthetic dyes are popular for their vibrant colours and 
durability, and they rely on specific intermediates for their production. The synthetic dyes market is constantly evolving to meet the 
needs of diverse industries while adhering to environmental standards. This evolution has led to advancements in biodegradable inter-
mediates and production techniques with lower emissions, which are becoming increasingly important as industries aim to reduce their 
environmental impact.    

•	 Stringent regulations: Concerns about pollution and waste disposal have led governments to implement strict regulations on 
chemical industries, impacting production and supply chains. 

•	 High costs of sustainable production: Complying with these regulations often requires costly upgrades to manufacturing facili-
ties, which can be particularly challenging.

•	 Global restrictions: The global  food  colors market is  facing  stringent regulations regarding  the  use of food  additives and 
coloring  agents  from  regulatory  bodies  across various countries.  Many natural  and synthetic  colors  are now  banned  or  
being  phased  out  in  countries  like  the  United  States,  Canada,  and  members  of the European  Union  over health concerns.  
Regulators are imposing  more  restrictions on permissible  daily intake  levels  and  mandatory  labeling  of  artificial  colors.  This  
is   posing  major  challenges  for  food producers who are now required to substitute synthetic colors with natural alternatives. 
However, many natural  colors  are more  expensive and  harder  to  source.  The revised regulations  are also increasing compli-
ance  costs for companies

Risks and Concerns

	 •	 Volatility of raw material prices: Fluctuations in global crude oil prices directly impact the cost of synthetic intermediates, 
affecting manufacturers’ profit margins.

	 •	 Competition from substitute materials: The market faces competition from materials that offer similar performance but 
may have a lower environmental impact.

	 •	 Supply chain disruptions: Disruptions, particularly in regions with high regulatory compliance costs, can hinder market 
growth by limiting access to essential raw materials.

Financial and Operational Performance

(a)	 Net Sales and Other Income 

Sales during the year ended March 31, 2025 were Rs. 36085 Lakhs as against Rs. 27958 Lakhs in the previous year, an increase of Rs. 
8127 Lakhs in comparison over the previous year.  During the year Operating Income increased from Rs. 420 Lakhs to Rs. 656 Lakhs and 
other income reached to Rs. 43 Lakhs. 

(b)	 Expenditure 

The total expenditure increased from Rs. 28140 Lakhs to Rs. 34739 Lakhs for the year under review showing a increase of Rs. 6599 Lakhs 
over the previous financial year.  

(c) 	 Profit  

There was a Net Profit of Rs. 1499 Lakhs during the year under review.
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(d)	 Significant changes (i.e. change of 25% or more as compared to the immediately previous financial year) in key financial ratios -  

Name of Ratio Numerator Denominator 31st March 
2025

31st March         
2024

 % changes 
over previous 

year 

 Reasons for 
more than 25% 

changes 

(a) Current Ratio Current assets Current Liabilities 0.94 0.87 8.80% NA

(b) Debt-Equity Ratio Total Debt Total Equity 0.86 0.98 (12.18%) NA

(c) Debt Service 
Coverage Ratio

PAT + Depreciation + 
Term Loan Interest

Term Loan Interest + Term 
Loan Repayment 1.04 0.70 47.47% Increase in PAT 

(d) Return on Equity Ratio PAT Average Equity 7.06% 2.12% 232.71% Increase in PAT 

(e) Inventory turnover 
ratio

Total Revenue from 
Operation Average Inventory 4.96 4.33 14.53% NA 

(f) Trade Receivables turn-
over ratio

Total Revenue from 
Operation Average Trade Receivables 6.16 5.37 14.84% NA 

(g) Trade payables turno-
ver ratio Total Purchases Average Trade Payables 3.06 2.45 24.98% NA 

(h) Net capital turnover 
ratio

Total Revenue from 
Operation Net Working Capital (36.70%) (13.70%) 167.79% Increase in 

Revenue 

(i) Net profit ratio Net Profit ( PAT) Total Revenue from Op-
eration 4.08% 1.43% 185.04% Increase in PAT 

(j) Return on Capital em-
ployed

Earnings Before Inter-
est and Taxes (EBIT)

Capital
Employed = Tangible Net 

Worth + Total Debt + 
Deferred Tax

Liability

12.95% 6.56% 97.29% Decrease in 
Debt 

(k) Return on investment Income generated 
from invested funds

Average of Investment & 
Fixed Deposits 14.42% 14.97% (3.65%) NA 

Segment wise or Product wise performance 

The Company is engaged in manufacturing and marketing of Dyes & Intermediates.  There is only one reportable segment i.e. “Dyes & Dyes Interme-
diates”.  So the segment wise or product wise performance report is not given in the report.

Outlook

The  market  has  been  witnessing   steady   growth   owing   to   increasing  demand   for   processed  and packaged  food  worldwide.   Consumers   are  
increasingly   preferring   food   products  that  offer  vibrant colors  and natural  appeal. This  has prompted  food  producers  to exploit  available colors 
to enhance the visual appeal of food  items.  The market  is  expected  to witness  significant  opportunities  for  growth  in the  coming  years.  Changing  
lifestyles  and evolving  food  consumption  patterns  are  contributing  to the rising demand  for  innovative  food  colors  across both  developed  and  
developing  economies.  However, stringent  regulations  regarding  the  use of synthetic  colors  may pose a  challenge.  Industry  players  are focusing  
on developing  natural  food  colors  to capitalize  on the  growing  consumer preference  for clean labels  and  natural  ingredients  in food  products.  

Environmental & Hazardous Safety And Quality Assurance 

In pursuit of excellence & meeting the changes that happen time to time & also to fulfill the requirements received from customers, your Company 
continued to integrate its ISO 9001:2015, ISO:14001, FSSC:22000,  HACCP and other certification.  Your Company is committed to ensuring the highest 
standards of environment management and strict compliance with regulatory requirements at all times.   All the products manufactured by Dynemic 
meet the regulatory requirement under FSSAI, EU, USFDA and also fulfill criteria of Kosher & Halal, & WHO-GMP Certification.  

Your company is committed to socio-environmental aspects and go beyond compliance norms of competitive authorities.

Internal Control Systems And its Adequacy 

Your Company has a comprehensive system of internal controls to safeguard the Company’s assets against loss from unauthorized use and ensure 
proper authorization of financial transactions.  The Company has an exhaustive budgetary control system to monitor all expenditures against ap-
proved budgets on an ongoing basis.  The Company maintains a system of internal controls designed to provide assurance regarding the effectiveness 
and efficiency of operations, the reliability of financial controls and compliance with applicable laws and regulations as applicable in the various juris-
dictions in which the Company operates.
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Human Resources  

Our employees are our most precious assets and we value their commitment. Relations with the employees at all levels remained cordial during the 
year. Your Company has 468 permanent employees as on March 31, 2025.

Disclosure of Accounting Treatment 

The Financial Statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules, 2015 and the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) (Amendment) Rules, 2016 notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the 
‘Act’) and other relevant provisions of the Act.  The previous year figures have been regrouped/reclassified or restated, so as to make the figures 
comparable with the figures of current year. The significant Accounting Policies which are consistently applied have been set out in the Notes to the 
Financial Statements.

Cautionary Statement 

Certain statements under “Management Discussion & Analysis” may be forward looking statement within the meaning of applicable securities laws 
and regulations. The forward looking statements are based on certain assumptions and expectations of future events. Actual results may differ mate-
rially from those expressed or implied from the statement since the Company’s operations are influenced by many external and internal factors beyond 
the control of the Company.

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors

Ahmedabad
August 13, 2025

 Bhagwandas K. Patel
Managing Director

DIN : 00045845

Dixitbhai B. Patel
Director

DIN : 00045883
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
The Directors Report on Compliance of the Corporate Governance is given below :

1.	 Company’s Philosophy on Code of Corporate Governance

	 The corporate governance philosophy of your Company is based on the tenets of integrity, accountability, transparency, value and ethics. The 
Company guiding principle is that the strong relationship between culture and strategy will consistently produce improved financial perfor-
mance, better employee engagement, ethical behaviour and stakeholder satisfaction. The Company is in compliance with the requirements 
stipulated under Regulation 17 to 27 read with Para C of Schedule V and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of Regulation 46 of Securities 
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”), as applicable, 
with regard to corporate governance.

2.	  Board of Directors

	 The composition of the Board is in conformity with Regulation 17 of the SEBI Listing Regulations as well as the Companies Act, 2013 (“the 
Act”).  The required details are given below :

Name Category No. of Board Meetings 
Held / Attended

Attendance 
at the last 

AGM

Directorships in other 
Indian Listed Public 
Companies* as at  
March 31, 2025

Other Mandatory Commit-
tee** membership as at

March 31, 2025

Held Attended Chairman Member 

Bhagwandas K. Patel 
DIN : 00045845

MD-Executive 
(Promoter) ۞ 5 5 Yes NIL NIL NIL

Ramesh B. Patel
DIN : 00037568

WTD-Executive
(Promoter) ۞ 5 5 Yes NIL NIL NIL

Dixit B. Patel
DIN : 00045883

WTD-Executive
(Promoter) ۞ 5 5 Yes NIL NIL NIL

Vikash G. Jain 
DIN : 02273508 Independent 5 4 Yes NIL NIL NIL

Iyengar Padmanabhan
DIN : 08723173 Independent 5 4 Yes NIL NIL NIL

Rashmi K. Otavani 
DIN : 06976600 Independent 5 5 Yes 4 NIL 4

*  Excludes Directorships in private/Unlisted public / foreign companies and companies incorporated under Section 8 of the  Companies Act, 2013.

*  Represents Membership/Chairmanship of the Audit Committee, Stakeholders Relationship Committee of other Companies.

۞  MD – Managing Director, WTD – Whole Time Director

Name Name of the listed entities in which the concerned Director is a Director Category of Directorship

Rashmi K. Otavani
(Independent)
DIN : 06976600

Aristo Bio-Tech and Lifescience Limited Independent Director

United Polyfab Gujarat Limited Independent Director

Yuranus Infrastructure Limited Independent Director

Kotyark Industries Limited Independent Director

Minimum four Board meetings are held in each year.  Apart from the four prescheduled Board meetings, the meetings are also convened by giving 
appropriate notice to address the specific needs of the Company.

During the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2025, 5 (Five) meetings of the Board of Directors were held on the following dates :-

30.05.24, 13.08.24, 13.11.24, 10.02.25 and 06.03.2025.

The time gap between any two board meetings was not more than 120 days.

Disclosure of Relationship between the directors inter –se :- None of the Directors are related to each other except Shri Bhagwandas K. Patel and Shri 
Dixit B. Patel being father and son.
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Details of Shares held by Non –Executive / Independent Directors as on March 31, 2025

Name of the Independent Director Shares Held

Shri Vikash Jain Nil

Shri Padmanabhan Iyengar Nil

Ms. Rashmi K. Otavani N

Skills / Expertise / Competencies of the Board of Directors

The list of core skills/expertise/competencies identified by the Board of Directors as required in the context of its business(es) and sector(s) for it to 
function effectively and those actually available with the Board.

1. Business operation and management 2. Global market awareness

3. Government and Government/ industrial policy 4. Indian Corporate Laws and Compliance 

5. Project Management 6. Quality Management

7. Board and Governance 8. Strategic planning

9. Finance, Accounting, Auditing 10. Risk management

11. Stakeholder Engagement 12. Technical skills

13. Research and Development 14. Safety management

15. Human Resources Management and Labour Relations 
/ Labour Laws 

16. Market Awareness of the Product (Domestic as well as International) 

17. Business Ethics as well as Corporate Ethics

The current composition of the Board meets the requirements of skills, expertise and competencies as identified above.

Name of Board Members and Designation Shri Bhagwandas 
K. Patel

Shri Ramesh 
B. Patel

Shri Dixit B. 
Patel

Shri Vikash 
G. Jain

Shri Padmanab-
han Iyengar

Ms. Rashmi 
K. Otavani

MD WTD WTD ID ID ID

Business operation and management √ √ √ √ √ √

Global market awareness √ √ √ √ √ √

Government and Government/ industrial pol-
icy 

√ √ √ √ √ √

Indian Corporate Laws and Compliance √ √ √ √ √ √

Project Management √ √ √ - - -

Quality Management √ √ √ - - -

Board and Governance √ √ √ √ √ √

Strategic planning √ √ √ - - -

Finance, Accounting, Auditing √ √ √ √ √ -

Risk management √ √ √ √ - -

Stakeholder Engagement √ - - - √ √

Technical skills √ √ √ - - -

Research and Development √ √ √ - - -

Safety management √ √ √ - - -

Human Resources Management and Labour 
Relations/ Labour Laws

√ √ √ - - -

Market Awareness of the Product (Domestic as 
well as International)

√ √ √ - - -

Business Ethics as well as Corporate Ethics √ √ √ √ √ √
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3.	 Audit Committee 

	 The Audit Committee comprised of 3 (Three) members viz : Shri Vikash G. Jain, Shri Padmanabhan Iyengar and Shri Bhagwandas K. Patel.  Shri 
Vikash G. Jain, chairs the meetings of the Committee.  The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are as set out in Regulation 18 of the 
SEBI Listing Regulations, Section 177 of the Companies Act and with any other applicable laws.

Terms of reference of the Audit Committee 

	 Terms of reference of the Audit Committee include approving and implementing the audit procedures, reviewing financial reporting systems, 
internal control systems and control procedures and ensuring compliance with the regulatory guidelines and also include those specified 
under the Regulation 18 of SEBI Listing Regulations as well as under Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013.

	 During the financial year 2024-2025, the Committee met four times on 30.05.24, 13.08.24, 13.11.24 and 10.02.25.  All the Committee mem-
bers were present in all meetings.  

	 Shri Vikash G. Jain, Chairman of Audit Committee, attended the last Annual General Meeting held on 28th September, 2024.

4.	 Stakeholders Relationship Committee 

	 The Stakeholders Relationship Committee comprised of 3 (Three) members viz : Shri Iyengar Padmanabhan, Ms. Rashmi K. Otavani and Shri 
Bhagwandas K. Patel.   Shri Iyengar Padmanabhan, chairs the meetings of the Committee.  The composition of the Stakeholder Relationship 
Committee is in compliance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 20 of the SEBI Listing Regulations. 

	 During the financial year 2024-2025, the Committee met four times on 30.05.24, 13.08.24, 25.10.24 and 08.02.25  at registered office of the 
Company.   All the Committee members attended all the meetings.  

	 During the financial year,  No complains were received.  As of March 31, 2025, NIL complaints were pending.  

	 Shri Iyengar Padmanabhan, Chairman of Stakeholders Relationship Committee, attended the last Annual General Meeting held on 28th Sep-
tember, 2024.

	 Name and Designation of the Compliance Officer :

	 Ms. Varsha Mehta, Company Secretary is designated as the “Compliance Officer” who oversees the redressal of the investors’ grievances.

5.   	 Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC)

	 The role of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee is governed by its Charter and its composition is in compliance with the provisions 
of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of the SEBI Listing Regulations.  

	 a. 	 Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director and recommend to the 
Board a policy, relating to the remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees; 

	 b. 	 Formulation of criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board; 

	 c. 	 Devising a policy on Board diversity;

 	 d. 	 Identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior management in accordance with the 
criteria laid down, and recommend to the Board their appointment and removal and shall carry out evaluation of every director’s 
performance.

	 e. 	 To recommend / review remuneration of the Managing Director(s) and Whole Time Director(s) based on their performance and de-
fined assessment criteria.

	 f. 	 To carry out any other function as is mandated by the Board from time to time and / or enforced by any statutory notification, amend-
ment or modification, as may be applicable.

	 g. 	 To perform such other functions as may be necessary or appropriate for the performance of its duties.

	 h. 	 To recommend / review remuneration of the Senior Management to the Board.

	 The Nomination and remuneration committee has 3 (Three) Independent Directors as members viz : Shri Vikash G. Jain,  Shri Padmanabhan 
Iyengar and Ms. Rashmi K. Otavani.

	 Two meetings were held during the year 2024-2025 on 30.07.2024 and 08.02.2025 and attended by all members.  Shri Vikash G. Jain chairs 
the meetings.  The terms of reference of Nomination and Remuneration Committee include review, determination, increase / decrease and 
approval of remuneration, determination of terms of appointment, Company’s policy for specific remuneration packages, etc. for the Exec-
utive Directors, Directors and other employees.  The nomination and remuneration committee policy is available on our website at https://
www.dynemic.com/colours/pdf/NRC%20Policy.pdf

	 Shri Vikash G. Jain, Chairman of Nomination and remuneration Committee, attended the last Annual General Meeting held on 28th Septem-
ber, 2024.
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	 Board Evaluation 

	 Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI Listing Regulations, the Board has carried out an evaluation of its own perfor-
mance and the Directors individually.  A process of evaluation was followed by the Board for its own performance and that of its Committees 
and individual Directors.  A separate exercise was carried out to evaluate the performance of individual Directors including the Chairman of 
the Board who were evaluated on parameters such as guidance/ support to management outside Board/ Committee meetings, degree of 
fulfillment of key responsibilities, effectiveness of meetings etc. The performance evaluation of the Independent Directors was carried out by 
the entire Board. The Directors expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation process. The criteria for performance evaluation of Directors, 
Board etc cover the areas relevant to the functioning of Directors like strategy formulation, execution, financial planning, product knowledge 
and skill and personal attributes. The Board evaluation for financial year 2024-25 was completed and summary of findings and recommenda-
tions were discussed by the Directors.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The Company’s philosophy for remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and all other employees is based on the commitment of fostering 
a culture of leadership with trust. The Company has adopted a Policy for remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees, 
which is aligned to this philosophy. The key factors considered in formulating the Policy are as under :

a) 	 The level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate Directors to run the Company successfully;

b) 	 Relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance benchmarks; and

c) 	 Remuneration to Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management involves a balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting 
short and long-term performance objectives appropriate to the working of the Company and its goals.

The Company does not have any Employee Stock Option Scheme.

Remuneration of Directors

(i)	 Independent Directors (‘ID’) are paid sitting fees for attending the Meetings of the Board as recommended by the NRC and approved by the Board.

(ii)	 Managing Director (‘MD’)/ Executive Directors (‘ED’)/ Key Managerial Personnel (‘KMP’)/ rest of the employees

	 The extent of overall remuneration should be sufficient to attract and retain talented and qualified individuals suitable for every role.  Hence, 
remuneration should be market competitive, driven by the role played by the individual, reflective of the size of the Company, complexity of 
the Sector / Industry / Company’s Operations and the Company’s capacity to pay, consistent with recognized best practices and aligned to 
regulatory requirements.

	 Basic / Fixed Salary is provided to all employees to ensure that there is a steady income in line with their skills and experience. In addition, 
the Company provides employees with certain perquisites, allowances and benefits in accordance with terms of employment/contract.  In 
addition to the Basic/ Fixed salary, benefits, perquisites and allowances as mentioned below, the Company provides to its MD, such remuner-
ation by way of Commission  calculated with reference to the net profits of the Company in the financial year, as may be determined by the 
Board, subject to the overall ceilings stipulated under Section 197 of the Act.  The specific amount payable to the MD/ EDs would be based on 
performance as evaluated by the NRC and approved by the Board.

Details of remuneration / sitting fees paid during the financial year 2024-2025 :

a)	 Independent Directors  (Rs. In Lakhs)

Sr. No. Particulars of Remuneration
Name of Independent Director Total Amount

Vikash Jain Padmanabhan 
Iyengar Rashmi Otavani

1 Sitting Fees 0.32 0.32 0.32 0.96

Total 0.32 0.32 0.32 0.96

b)	 Managing Director and Whole Time Director (Rs. In Lakhs)

Sr. No. Particulars of Remunera-
tion Name of MD/WTD/Manager Total 

Amount

Shri Bhagwandas K. Patel Shri Rameshbhai B. Patel Shri Dixitbhai B. Patel 

1 Gross Salary 86.79 83.16 79.53 249.48

2 Bonus 7.23 6.93 6.62 20.78

3 Leave Pay 3.89 3.73 11.22 18.84

4 Commission 14.03 0 0 14.03

Total 111.94 93.82 97.37 303.13
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	 The Managing Director and Whole Time Directors are appointed by way of Resolution passed in General Meetings for a period of five years 
without any provision for payment of severance fees. There was no any service contracts entered into between the Company and Managing 
Director and Whole Time Directors.

	 There is no other pecuniary relationship or transaction by the Company with Independent Directors.

	 In the opinion of the Board, the Independent Directors fulfill the conditions specified in the Listing Regulations and are independent of the 
management.

	 The Company does not have any scheme for grant of stock option to its Directors or Employees.

7.	 Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

	 The composition of the CSR Committee is in alignment with provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013.

	 During the year, the Committee comprising of Shri Bhagwandas K Patel as Chairman and Shri Vikash Jain and Ms Rashmi K. Otavani as other 
members.  The said committee has been entrusted with the responsibility of formulating and recommending to the Board a Corporate Social 
Responsibility Policy indicating the activities to be undertaken by the Company as specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
ruled made there under, and the amount to be spent on CSR activity.  During the year the Committee met twice on 30.05.2024 and 10.02.2025 
and all the members were present in all the meetings.

8.	 Risk Management Committee: 

	 SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations, 2021 has amended the Regulation 21 of SEBI LODR 
Regulations making it compulsory to have Risk Management Committee for top 1000 listed companies.

	 Corporate Risk Evaluation and Management is an on going process within the Organisation. The Company has a welldefined Risk Management 
framework to identify, monitor and minimising/mitigating risks as also identifying business opportunities. 

	 During the year, the Committee comprising of Shri Bhagwandas K Patel as Chairman and Shri Dixitbhai Patel and Shri Vikash Jain as other 
members.  The brief terms of reference of the Committee is to formulate, monitor and review risk management policy and plan, inter alia, 
covering investment of surplus funds, management of foreign exchange risks, cyber security risks, data privacy risks and other risks associated 
to the Company.

	 During the year the Committee met twice on 25.06.2024 and 20.12.2024 and all the members were present in all the meetings.

	 For all the Committees of Board Ms. Varsha Mehta acts as Secretary to the meetings.

9.	 Familiarisation programmes for Board Members 

	 The Board members are provided with necessary documents/brochures, reports and internal policies to enable them to familiarise with the 
Company’s procedures and practices.  Periodic presentations are made at the Board and Board Committee Meetings, on business and perfor-
mance updates of the Company, global business environment, business strategy and risks involved. Detailed presentations on the Company’s 
business segments were made at the separate meeting of the Independent Directors held during the year.  The details of such familiarization 
programmes whenever held for Independent Directors are posted on the website of the Company. https://www.dynemic.com/colours/pdf/
Familarization%20Programme%202024-25.pdf

10.	 Meetings of Independent Directors 

	 During the year under review, all the Independent Directors met twice on November 13, 2024 and February 8, 2025, inter alia, to discuss :

	 1.	 Evaluation of the performance of Non Independent Directors and the Board of Directors as a Whole;

	 2.	 Evaluation of the performance of the M.D. of the Company, taking into account the views of the Executive and Independent Directors.

	 3.	 Evaluation of the quality, content and timelines of flow of information between the management and the Board that is necessary for 
the Board to effectively and reasonably perform its duties.

	 Declarations : The Company has received declarations form the Independent Directors that they meet the criteria of independence laid down 
under the Act and SEBI Listing Regulations. The Board of Directors, based on declarations received from Independent Directors, have verified the 
veracity of such disclosures and confirm that the Independent Directors fulfill the conditions of independence specified in the SEBI Listing Regu-
lations and the Act and are Independent of the Management of the Company. None of the Independent Directors has resigned during the year.

11.	 General Body Meeting 

a.	 Annual General Meetings

	 The date, time and venue of the last three Annual General Meetings and special resolutions passed at the meetings are given below :

 Year Category – Date and Time Venue Special Resolutions passed

2023-24 Annual General Meeting 28th September, 2024 
at 3.00 p.m.

Through Video Conferencing/other 
Audio-Visual Means (“OAVM”).

Yes

2022-23 Annual General Meeting 12th September, 2023 
at 3.00 p.m.

Through Video Conferencing/other 
Audio-Visual Means (“OAVM”).

Yes

2021-22 Annual General Meeting 29th September, 2022 
at 4.00 p.m.

Through Video Conferencing/other 
Audio-Visual Means (“OAVM”).

No

	 During the year under review no resolution(s) were transacted through Postal Ballot.  
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12.	 Disclosures :
	 i.	 The Managing Director and the CFO of the Company have certified to the Board that the Financial Results of the Company for the year 

ended March 31, 2025 do not contain any false or misleading statements or figures and do not omit any material facts which may 
make the statements or figures contained therein misleading as required by Regulations 33 of SEBI Listing Regulations.

	 ii.	 The company has complied with all the requirements of listing regulations and guidelines of SEBI and consequently no penalties were 
imposed or strictures passed against the Company by SEBI or any other Stock Exchanges or any other statutory authorities on any 
matter relating to Capital markets during the last three years, except penalty of Rs.2000/- imposed by Stock Exchanges for violation of 
Regulation 34 of SEBI Listing Regulations as mentioned in the Directors Report for FY 2022-.23.

	 iii.	 There were no materially significant transactions with promoters, directors or the management, their subsidiaries, associates or rela-
tives that may have potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large.  A disclosure of all related party transactions has been 
presented in the Note No. 38,  Notes to the accounts of this Annual Report. The policy on Related Party Transactions as approved by 
the Board is uploaded on the Company’s website https://www.dynemic.com/colours/pdf/Related%20Party%20Transaction%20Policy.
pdf  

	 iv.	 The Company has adopted accounting treatments which are prescribed by the Indian Accounting Standards.
	 v.	 The quarterly / half  yearly  financial  statements  are   available on Company’s, BSE’s  and NSE’s website and being published in Finan-

cial Express and Indian Express.
	 vi.	 The Company has a Vigil Mechanism and Whistle Blower Policy for Directors and Employees to report violations of applicable laws 

and regulations and the Code of Conduct. During the year under review, no employee was denied access to the Audit Committee 
Chairman.

	 vii.	 The Company has complied with all the requirements of Corporate Governance as specified in Regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b)  to 
(i) and (t) of sub-regulation (2) of Regulations 46 and para C, D & E of Schedule V of the Listing Regulations.

	 viii.	 The Company has no material subsidiary.
	 ix.	 Senior Management : Details of Senior Management are as follows :

Sr. No. Name of Senior Management Personnel Designation Changes, if any

1 Mukesh B. Patel Manager Export -

2 Hitendra N. Patel General Manager -

3 Dinesh R. Patel Production Manager -

4 Suryakant V Dighe Production Manager -

5 Navinbhai N. Patel Asst. Production Mgr -

6 Mukeshbhai Somabhai Patel Maintenance Incharge -

7 Tanaviben V Khengar QC Incharge -

8 Varsha Mehta CS -

9 Ankit Shah CFO -

10 Amisha Patel Accounts Manager -

11 Jigar Patel Internal Auditor -

12 Ragesh Angreji General Manager Resigned wef 01.04.2024

13 Pinky Mehta Manager Logistics Resigned wef 06.01.2025

	 x.  	 Ms. Rashmi Aahuja has resigned on 13.06.2025 as an independent director due to her pre-occupancy and there was no other ma-
terial reason for resignation

	 x.	 CERTIFICATE BY A COMPANY SECRETARY IN PRACTICE
[Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C Clause (10)(i) of the SEBI

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015]
The Members of 
Dynemic Products Limited
	 Dynemic Products Ltd (CIN-L24100GJ1990PLC013886) is having it registered office at B-301, Satyamev Complex-1, Gandhinagar-Sarkhej High-

way Road, Opp-New Gujarat High Court, Sola, Ahmedabad-380063 (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’). The equity shares of the Com-
pany are listed on BSE Limited (Script Code 532707) and National Stock Exchange of India Limited (Symbol : Dynpro  Series : EQ).

1.	 We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of the company, produced be-
fore us by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate in accordance with sub-regulation (3) of Regulation 34 read with Schedule 
V Para C Clause 10(i) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
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2.	 As on 31st March, 2025 the Board of Directors of the Company comprised of :

Sr. No. Name of Director DIN DIN Status Date of Appointment 

1. Bhagawandas Kalidas Patel 00045845 Approved 14/06/1990

2. Dixit Bhagwandas Patel 00045883 Approved 01/01/2008

3. Rameshkumar Bhagwandas Patel 00037568 Approved 14/06/1990

4. Rashmi Kamlesh Otavani 06976600 Approved 14/02/2015

5. Vikash Gautamchand Jain 02273508 Approved 01/04/2024

6. Padmanabhan 08723173 Approved 01/04/2024

3.	 In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including DIN based search on MCA Portal www.mca.gov.
in) and examinations of the disclosures / registers under Section 184, 189, 170, 164, 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’), and explana-
tions furnished to us by the company and its officers, we hereby certify as under :

	 •	 None of the above named directors on the Board of the Company have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or con-
tinuing as directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI), the Ministry of Corporate Affairs – MCA or any 
such statutory authority for the Financial Year ending 31st March, 2025.

4.	 It is the responsibility of the Directors to submit relevant documents with complete and accurate information in accordance with the provi-
sions of the Act.

5.	 Ensuring the eligibility of the appointment / continuity of every director on the Board is the responsibility of the management of the company. 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification. 

6.	 This certificate is neither an assurance as the future viability of the company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management 
has conducted the affairs of the company.

7.	 This certificate is based on the information and records available up to this date and we have no responsibility to update this certificate for the 
events and circumstances occurring after the date of the certificate.

Place : Ahmedabad	 For, Ashok P. Pathak & Co.,
Date : 29th May, 2025	 Company Secretaries,
		  ICSI Unique Code : S1997GJ020700

		  CS Ashok P. Pathak*
		  Proprietor                                       
		  ACS No : 9939 | COP No : 2662	
           		  Peer Review Certificate No. : 1519/2021
           		  ICSI UDIN :  A009939G000491741

		  xii. 	 Disclosure of commodity price risks and commodity hedging activities : Not applicable  
		  xiii. 	 There were no instances, wherein the Board had not accepted recommendations made by any committee of the Board.
		  xiv. 	 Payment to Statutory Auditors - During 2024-2025, Rs. 8.51 Lacs was paid by the Company and its subsidiary companies to the 

Statutory Auditors | entities in network firm / network entity of which the Statutory Auditor are a member. 
		  xv. 	 Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 

during the financial year 2024-25 
			   a.	 Number of complaints filed during the year : 0
			   b.	 Number of complaints disposed off during the year : 0
			   c.	 Number of complaints pending as on end of the financial year : 0
		  xvi. 	 No Loans / Advances in the nature of debt was given to firms / companies in which Directors are interested.
		  xvii. 	 There are no non-compliances of any requirements of Corporate Governance Report as per sub-para (2) to (10) of Schedule V 

Part C of the SEBI Listing Regulations.
		  xviii. 	 Compliance  of discretionary requirements under Regulation 27 of SEBI Listing Regulations
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		  a.	 Shri B. K. Patel is the Managing Director of the Company.  The Chairman is elected in every meeting of the Board.
		  b.	 As the financial results are published in the newspapers and also posted on Company’s website, the same are not 

being sent to the shareholders.
		  c.	 The Company’s financial statements for the financial year ended 31st March, 2025 do not contain any modified audit 

opinion.
		  d.	 The internal auditor makes quarterly presentation to the Audit Committee on their Reports.

13.	 Means of communication 
	 i.  	 The quarterly/half yearly financial statements are announced within 45 days of the end of the quarter and are regularly submitted / 

published to Stock Exchange in accordance with the  SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015.
     		  The Company published its Notices / Financial Statements in Indian Express and The Financial Express.
	 ii. 	 The Company has its official website namely www.dynemic.com which is providing all the product related and general information 

about the Company.  The Company is regular in submitting all the relevant information with BSE, NSE and updating in website as per 
Regulation 46 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. 

	 iii. 	 Management Discussion and Analysis Report, in compliance with the requirements of Regulation 34(2)(e) of the SEBI (LODR) Regula-
tions, 2015, is annexed to the Boards’ Report which forms part of the Annual Report being sent to all the members of the Company.

	 iv.  	 The Company has not issued any ADR/GDR.
	 v.  	 The Company is not engaged into any commodity price risk. During the financial year 2024-25, the Company has managed the foreign 

exchange risk by hedging to the extent considered necessary. The Company enters into forward contracts for hedging foreign exchange 
exposures against exports and imports. The details of foreign currency exposure are disclosed in notes to Standalone Financial State-
ments.

	 vi. 	 Company has not got credit rating.   
	 vii. 	 The Company do have Suspense Escrow Demat Account in compliance with SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD_RTAMB/P/

CIR/2022/8 dated January 25, 2022.
	 viii. 	 During the year under review, none of the Independent Directors of the Company had resigned.
	 ix. 	 No presentations were made to any institutional investors or analysts during the financial year 2024-25.
14.	 General Shareholders’ Information :
	  AGM date for financial year 2024-2025 : September 22, 2025 at 3.00 p.m. through VC/OAVM  
	 Dividend payment date : N.A.
	 i.	 Date of Book Closure             	 :- N.A. 
	 ii.	 Financial Calendar 2025-2026	 :-
		  (tentative schedule)
		  Financial year	 :	 April 1, 2025 to March 31, 2026.  
             Board meetings for approval of quarterly results
             Quarter ended on June 30, 2025	 :	 On or before August 14, 2025
             Quarter ended on September 30, 2025	 :	 On or before November 14, 2025
             Quarter ended on December 31, 2025	 :	 On or before February 14, 2025
             Quarter ended on March 31, 2025	 :	 On or before May 30, 2026 (Audited)
	 Annual General Meeting for the year 2025-26	 :	 In accordance with Section 96 of Companies Act, 2013. 
	 iii.	 Listing  of equity shares on Stock Exchanges :-
		  The equity shares of the Company are listed at Bombay Stock Exchange Limited and National Stock Exchange Limited.  The    Company 

has paid the annual listing fees for the financial year 2025-26.
		  Bombay Stock Exchange Limited	 National Stock Exchange of India Ltd.,
		  Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers	 Exchange Plaza, C-1, Block G,
		  Dalal Street	 Bandra Kurla Complex,  Bandra (E)
		  Mumbai- 400001	 Mumbai – 400 051
      	 iv.    	 Dematerializational Information :-
		  As on March 31, 2025, 99.38 % of shares were held in dematerialized form and 0.62 % of shares were held in physical form.
 	 v.    	 Share Transfer System :-
		  In terms of amended Regulation 40 of SEBI LODR Regulations w.e.f. April 1, 2019, transfer of securities in physical form shall not be 

processed unless the securities are held in the demat mode with a Depository Participant. Further, with effect from January 24, 2022, 
SEBI has made it mandatory for listed companies to issue securities in demat mode only while processing any investor service requests 
viz. issue of duplicate share certificates, exchange/sub-division/ splitting/consolidation of securities, transmission/transposition of 
securities. Vide its Circular dated January 25, 2022, SEBI has clarified that listed entities/RTAs shall now issue a Letter of Confirmation 
in lieu of the share certificate while processing any of the aforesaid investor service request.
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		  The Company has appointed Bigshare Services Pvt. Ltd. as the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent of the Company.  For any assistance, 
request or instruction regarding transfer or transmission of shares, dematerialization of shares, change of address, non-receipt of 
annual report and any other query relating to the shares of the Company, please write to the following address :

		  Bigshare Services Private Limited
	 	 Office No S6-2, 6th floor Pinnacle Business Park, 
		  Next to Ahura Centre, Mahakali Caves Road, Andheri (East) Mumbai – 400093
		  Telephone: +91-22-62638200
		  E-mail : investor@bigshareonline.com

	 vi.	 Distribution of Shareholding as on March 31, 2025 (in Shares)

No. of Equity shares held No. of share holders % of shareholders Shares % of holding

1 – 500 11161 84.6556 11172000 9.288

501 – 1000 906 6.8720 7364030 6.1222

1001 – 2000 572 4.3386 8514760 7.0789

2001 – 3000 192 1.4563 4843000 4.0263

3001 – 4000 71 0.5385 2518580 2.0939

4001 – 5000 57 0.4323 2612040 2.1716

5001 – 10000 99 0.7509 7148410 5.9429

10001 & above 126 0.9557 76111050 63.2762

TOTAL 13184 100.00 120283870 100.0000

		  Shareholding pattern of the Company as on March 31, 2025

Category No. of Shares % of Shares

A   Promoter’s Holding

 1   Indian Promoters  3544379 29.47

 2   Foreign Promoters ---- ----

Sub Total 3544379 29.47

B    Public Shareholding

1     Institutions

Financial Institution/Banks 33839 0.28

Foreign Portfolio Investors 42395 0.35

2   Central Govt/State Govt  / President of India

3     Non-Institutions 0 0.00
       Private Corporate Bodies 1010675 8.40

       Indian Public 6544160 54.40

       NRIs / OCBs 324501 2.70

       Trust 3285 0.03

       Clearing Members 26146 0.22

        IEPF 22427 0.19

        HUF 476580 3.83

Sub Total 8484008 70.53

GRAND TOTAL 12028387 100.00
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	 vii.	 The Company had transferred NIL shares to IEPF during the year.
		  Due Date for transfer of Unclaimed and Unpaid Dividend and shares in respect of which dividend is unpaid or has not been claimed by 

the shareholders for seven consecutive years or more to the IEPF in respect of dividend declared by the Company

Dividend for 
Financial Year

Dividend 
Declaration Date

Proposed due date for transfer of 
Unclaimed and Unpaid Dividend amount 

and shares to the IEPF

Year wise amount of unpaid/unclaimed  
dividend lying in the unpaid account as on 

31/03/2024

2017-18 21.09.2018 27.10.2025 143,124.50

2018-19 26.09.2019 01.11.2026 109,693.50

2019-20 14.02.2020 21.03.2027 106,420.50

	 viii.	 Plant Location
		  Unit-1  :   6401, 6402, 6415, 6416, 6400, 6400/1 GIDC Estate, Ankleshwar – 393 002.
		  Unit-2  :   3709/6, 3710/1, 3710/3, GIDC Estate, Ankleshwar – 393 002.
		  Unit-3 : D/3/3/1, in  Dahej-III Industrial Estate, Tal : Vagra, Dist : Bharuch, Gujarat 

	 2.	 Information pursuant to Regulation 53(f) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 :-
		  Loans and Advances in the nature of loan to subsidiaries and associates :

Name of the Company Balance as at 31st March, 2025 Maximum outstanding during the year

NIL NIL

	 ix.	 Investor Correspondence :- 

		  All enquiries, clarification and correspondence should be addressed to the Company Secretary and Compliance Officer at the regis-
tered office of the Company :-

	 Ms. Varsha Mehta
	 Dynemic Products Limited
	 B-301, Satyamev Complex-1, Opp. Gujarat High Court,
	 S.G. Road, Ahmedabad – 380060.
	 Tel. Nos. : 079-27663071, 9924011755
	 Email : cs@dynemic.com

	 x.	 Dividend Distribution Policy :-

		  The Board of Directors adopted the Dividend Distribution Policy pursuant to the Securities and Exchange

		  Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (Listing Regulations), which requires the top 1,000 
listed companies (by market capitalisation) to formulate the same. The Company’s Dividend Distribution Policy may also be accessed 
at https://www.dynemic.com/colours/pdf/Dividend%20Distribution%20Policy.pdf

	 xi.	 Utilisation of funds raised through Preferential Issue of equity shares :- 

		  The funds raised by the Company through Preferential Issue, have been utilised towards Working Capital and General Corporate Pur-
poses, as per resolution passed in the AGM dated 12th September, 2023 .  

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors

Ahmedabad
August 13, 2025

 Bhagwandas K. Patel
Managing Director

DIN : 00045845

Dixitbhai B. Patel
Director

DIN : 00045883
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CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
[Pursuant to Schedule V of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015]

To,

The Members,

Dynemic Products Limited

We have examined the compliance of condition of corporate governance by Dynemic Products Limited (“the Company”) for the year ended 31st 
March, 2025, as stipulated under Regulations 17 to 27, and clauses (b) to (i) and (t) of sub-regulation (2) of Regulation 46 and Para C, D and E of Sched-
ule V to the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”).  

Managements’ Responsibility

The compliance of condition of corporate governance is the responsibility of the management of the company. This responsibility includes the design, 
implementation and maintenance of internal control and procedures to ensure the compliance with the conditions of the Corporate Governance 
stipulated in SEBI Listing Regulations. 

Auditors Responsibility

Our responsibility is limited to examining the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the company for ensuring the compliance with the 
conditions of the corporate governance as stipulated in the Regulation 34 read with Schedule V of SEBI Listing Regulations. It is neither an audit nor 
an expression of opinion of the financial statements of the Company.

We have examined the relevant records and documents maintained by the company for the purposes of providing reasonable assurance on the com-
pliance with Corporate Governance requirements by the company.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we certify that Company has complied with the con-
ditions of corporate governance as stipulated under Regulations 17 to 27, and clauses (b) to (i) and (t) of sub-regulation (2) of Regulation 46 and Para 
C, D and E of Schedule V to the SEBI Listing Regulations during the year ended on March 31, 2025.

We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company, nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the 
management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

August 13, 2025	 For, Ashok P. Pathak & Co.,
Ahmedabad	 Company Secretaries,
		  ICSI Unique Code : S1997GJ020700

		  CS Ashok P. Pathak*
		  Proprietor                                       
		  ACS No : 9939 | COP No : 2662	
           		  Peer Review Certificate No. : 1519/2021
           		  ICSI UDIN :  A009939G000993625

* Insolvency Professional (IP) registered with the Institute of Insolvency and Bankruptcy Board of India. (IBBI) IBBI/IPA-002/IP-N00329/2017-
18/10934

CONFIRMATION ON CODE OF CONDUCT
 This is to confirm that the Board has laid down a code of conduct for all Board members and senior management of the Company.  It is further con-
firmed that all directors and senior management personnel of    the Company have affirmed compliance with the code of conduct of the Company as 
at March 31, 2025.

			   For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Ahmedabad		  Sd/-
August 13, 2025	 Bhagwandas K. Patel
			   Managing Director
			   DIN : 00045845   
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To,

The Members,

Dynemic Products Limited

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OPINION :

	 We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Dynemic Products Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the 
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in 
Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of the sig-
nificant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter collectively referred to as “the standalone financial statements”).

	 In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements 
give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity 
with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 
2015 and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, the net profit 
including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

BASIS FOR OPINION:

	 We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) 
of the Companies Act, 2013 (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the 
Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report.	

	 We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) 
together with the independence requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of 
the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and 
the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the standalone financial statements.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS:

	 Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the standalone financial 
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, 
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described 
below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

1)	 Accuracy of recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosures of revenues and other related balances in view of Ind AS 115 “Revenue 
from Contracts with Customers”:- 

Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed this matter: -

Company recognises revenue from sales of goods in accordance 
with the requirements of Ind AS 115, Revenue from Contracts with 
Customers, measured at the value of the consideration received or 
receivable in the ordinary course of its activities. Revenue from sale 
of goods is recognised net of discounts, rebates and taxes at the 
time of transfer of goods. Goods are considered transferred when 
the customer obtains ‘control’ of the promised goods. Control is the 
ability to direct the use of and obtain, substantially all the benefits 
from the goods.

Our audit procedure with respect to above key audit matter included 
following;

a)	 Reading and evaluation of the company’s policies regarding 
revenue recognition and assessment of its compliance with 
the requirements of Ind AS 115 “Revenue from contracts 
with customers”

b)	 Evaluating the details and Internal Control System of the Com-
pany.

c)	 Assessed the internal controls with respect to determination 
of timing of revenue recognition more specifically in case of 
export sales (wherein the control transfers to customer after 
significant time from supply of goods from factory).

d)	 Duly verified the trail of documents with respect to export 
of the goods during cut-off date and ascertained that it was 
correctly recognized in compliance with transfer of control 
of goods as defined in Ind AS 115.

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON :
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	 The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the 
Annual Report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

	 Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

	 In connection with our audit of the Standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information identified above when 
it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Standalone financial state-
ments or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

	 The other information is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report. When we read the other information, if 
we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance. 
We have nothing to report in this regard at present.

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS :

	 The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these 
standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, 
changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian 
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and 
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring 
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements 
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

	 In preparing the standalone financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a 
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management 
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

	 The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

	 Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a whole are free from material mis-
statement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected 
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

	 •	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design 
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as 
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls.

	 •	 Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate 
in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company 
has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

	 •	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures 
made by management and Board of Directors.

	 •	 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s and Board of Director’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on 
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on 
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw atten-
tion in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to 
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s However, future events 
or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

	 •	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including the disclosures, and wheth-
er the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

	 Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Standalone Financial Statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable 
that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the Standalone Financial Statements may be influenced. We consider 
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to 
evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the Standalone Financial Statements.

	 We communicated with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and sig-
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nificant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

	 We also provided those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding inde-
pendence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, 
and where applicable, related safeguards.

	 From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the 
audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our 
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine 
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to 
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS:

1.	 As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (the “Order”) issued by the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of 
the Act, we give in “Annexure-A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2.	 As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that;

	 a)	 We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for 
the purposes of our audit.

	 b)	 In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination 
of those books.

	 c)	 The Standalone Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in 
Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account.

	 d)	 In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

	 e)	 On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors, 
none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

	 f)	 With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness 
of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure- B”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and 
operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting.

	 g)	 With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report under Section 197(16) of the Act, as amended;

		  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors 
during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act.

	 h)	 With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us: 

	 a)	 The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at March 31, 2025 on its financial position in its standalone financial 
statements - Refer Notes 34 to the standalone financial statements.

	 b)	 The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable loss-
es;

	 c)	 There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the 
Company.

	 d)	 (i) 	 The management has represented that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the 
accounts –Note No.54 to the standalone financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either 
from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) 
or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, 
that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 
whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf 
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

		  (ii)	 The management has represented, that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the 
accounts –Note No.55 to the standalone financial statements, no funds have been received by the company from any per-
son(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or 
otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any 
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the 
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and
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		  (iii)	 Based on such audit procedures that we have considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances; nothing has come 
to their notice that has caused them to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) contain any material 
mis-statement.

	 e)	 No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.

 	 f)	 Based on our examination, which include test checks, the Company has used accounting software for maintaining its books of account 
for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated 
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software systems.

		  Further, during the course of or audit we did not come across any instances of the audit trail feature being tampered with and the 
audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention.

	 For, B. K. PATEL & CO
	 Chartered Accountants
	 Firm Regn No. 112647W

	 B. K. Patel
Ahmedabad	 Partner
30-05-2025 	 Membership No.032199
	 UDIN: 25032199BMZXAB2476
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ANNEXURE ‘A’
TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in Paragraph -1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report to the Members of Dynemic
Products Limited of even date)

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and the books of account and records examined by 
us in the normal course of audit, we state that:

i.	 In respect of the Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets:

	 a)	 (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant 
and Equipment.

		  (B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

	 b)	 According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has a program of physical verification to cover all the items 
of Property, Plant and Equipment’s in a phased manner. In our opinion, it is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and 
the nature of its assets. According to the information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such 
verification.

	 c)	 According to the information and explanations given to us, the records examined by us and based on the examination of the convey-
ance deeds / registered sale deed provided to us, we report that, the title deeds, comprising all the immovable properties of land and 
buildings (other than properties where the company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) 
which are freehold are held in the name of the Company.

	 d)	 According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the 
company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment and intangible assets during the year.

	 e)	 According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, there 
are no proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at March 31, 2025 for holding any 
benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended) and rules made thereunder.

ii.	 In respect of the Inventory:

	 a)	 As explained by the management, physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals during the year. In 
our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the management is appropriate. No discrepancies were noticed on 
verification between the physical stocks and book records that were more than 10% in aggregate of each class of inventory.

	 b)	 As disclosed in note 15 to the financial statements, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5.00 (five) 
Crores in aggregate from banks during the year on the basis of security of current assets of the Company. The company does not have 
such sanctioned working capital limits from any financial institution. Based on the records examined by us in the normal course of 
audit of the financial statements in the quarterly returns or statements filed by the company with such banks, the following is the 
difference between the quarterly statements given to the bank and the books of account of the Company.

Rs. in Crore

Quarter Ended Particulars Amount as per books of 
account

Amount as reported in the quarterly

return/statement

Amount of dif-
ference

Jun-24
Inventory 7,851.51 7,836.80 14.71

Trade Receivables 6,002.91 5,753.88 249.03

Sep-24
Inventory 7,965.48 7,863.44 102.04

Trade Receivables 6,723.80 6,706.73 17.08

Dec-24
Inventory 7,450.23 7,451.30 (1.07)

Trade Receivables 6,880.18 6,949.86 (69.69)

Mar-25
Inventory 8,222.61 8,222.61 -

Trade Receivables 6,419.97 6,419.97

iii.	 (a)	 According the information and explanations given to us, during the year the Company has not made any investments in, provided any 
guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited 
Liability Partnerships or any other parties.

	 (b)	 Since the Company has not made any investments, has not provided any guarantees, has not given any security and has not given 
any loans and advances in the nature of loans secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other 
parties during the year and accordingly reporting under the Clauses 3(iii) (b), (c), (d), (e), and (f) are not applicable.
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iv.	 The Company has not granted loans or provided guarantees or securities to parties covered under Section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013 
(“the Act”). The Company has complied with the provisions of section 186 of the Act in respect of investments made and guarantees and 
securities provided, as applicable.

v.	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not accepted deposits during the year and does 
not have any unclaimed deposits as at March 31, 2025 and accordingly reporting under the clause 3 (v) of the Order are not applicable to the 
Company.

vi.	 According to the information and explanation given to us, the maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government 
under section 148(1) of the Companies Act 2013, and we have broadly reviewed the accounts and records maintained by the company as pre-
scribed by the Government for the maintenance of the cost records under section 148 (1) of the Companies Act, and we are of the opinion that 
prima facie the prescribed accounts and records have been maintained. We have not however, made detailed examination of the records with 
a view to determine whether they are accurate and complete. The company has obtained the Cost Audit Report from the Cost Accountants.

vii.	 In respect of statutory dues:
	 a)	 According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of books of accounts, the Company has 

generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, 
Goods and Service Tax, and other material statutory dues as applicable to it with the appropriate authorities. There were no undis-
puted amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Cess and other 
material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2025 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable. 

	 b)	 Details of dues of Income Tax which have not been deposited as at March 31, 2025 on account of dispute are given below :

Name of Statute Nature of Dues Amount Rs. 
in lakhs

Period to which 
the amount relates

Forum where the 
dispute is pending

Remarks, if any

Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax 12.92 AY 2012-13 CIT (Appeals)- NFAC -

Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax 35.13 AY 2017-18 CIT (Appeals)- NFAC -

Central Excise & Custom Cenvat Credit 
availed

64.85 Various AY from 
AY 2008-09 to AY 
2014-15

Excise Department -

viii.	 According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the company, there were no 
transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assess-
ments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).  

ix.	 In respect of loans from banks and financial institutes:
	 a)	 According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the 

Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans and borrowing or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.	
	 b)	 According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the 

Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or government authority.
	 c)	 According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, Term 

loans taken during the year have been applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.
	 d)	 According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, 

no funds raised on short-term basis were used for long-term purposes by the Company.
	 e)	 According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the standalone financial statements of the 

Company, we report that the Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of 
its subsidiaries or associates as defined under the Act.

	 f)	 According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we report that the Company has not 
raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries or associate companies (as defined under the Act).

x.	 In respect of money raised :
	 a)	 In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company, 

during the year the Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer (including debt instruments) and further public offer 
during the year, and accordingly reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

	 b)	 During the year, the Company has made preferential allotment of shares for which the requirements of section 62 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 have been complied with and the funds raised have been used for the purposes for which the funds were raised.

		  The Company has, during the year, converted 400,000 warrants into 400,000 equity shares of INR 10/- each at a premium of INR 
298.50 per share, in accordance with the terms of the original warrant issuance and the relevant board resolutions. The said conver-
sion resulted in an increase in the equity share capital by INR 40,00,000/- and securities premium by INR 11,94,00,000/-. This conver-
sion is in compliance with Section 62(1)(c) read with Section 62(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable laws.	
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		  The moneys realised from the conversion of these warrants into equity shares were applied for the purposes for which the original 
warrant issue proceeds were intended, as specified in the terms of the warrant issuance and the relevant resolutions. No deviation 
has been observed in the utilization of funds arising from this conversion.

xi.	 In respect of fraud:

	 a)	 Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the information and explanations given to us, con-
sidering the principles of materiality outlined in Standards on Auditing, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the Company 
has been noticed or reported during the course of the audit.

	 b)	 According the information and explanation given to us, and to the best of our knowledge and belief, no material fraud on or by the 
Company was noticed or reported during the period, accordingly, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies 
Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the 
Central Government, during the year.

	 c)	 According the information and explanation given to us, and to the best of our knowledge and belief, no whistle-blower complaints is 
received during the year by the company.

xii.	 In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under 
clause 3 (xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xiii.	 In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company, trans-
actions with the related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have 
been disclosed in standalone financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

xiv.	 In respect of Internal Audit :

a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the size and the nature of its business.
We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the Company during the year and till the date of 
audit report.

b) We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the Company during the year and till the date of 
the audit report covering period upto 31st March, 2025, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures.

xv.	 In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company, the 
Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with them, and hence reporting under clause 
3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

xvi.	 (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve 
Bank of India Act, 1934, and accordingly reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

	 (b)	 According to the information and explanations given to us, The Company is not engaged in any Non-Banking Financial or Housing 
Finance activities. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

	 (c)	 The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the require-
ment to report on clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

	 (d)	 In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) 
Directions, 2016) and accordingly reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

xvii.	 In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company, the 
Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and the immediately preceding financial year.

xviii.	 There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly requirement to report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order 
is not applicable to the Company.

xix.	 On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other 
information accompanying the financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our 
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material un-
certainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance 
sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to 
the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither 
give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged 
by the Company as and when they fall due.
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xx.	 (a) 	 There are no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) on other than on-going projects requiring a transfer to a 
Fund specified in Schedule -VII to the Companies Act in compliance with second proviso to sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the said 
Act, and accordingly reporting under clause 3(xx)(a) of the Order is not applicable for the year.

	 (b) 	 According to information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company there are no 
on-going projects and accordingly reporting under clause 3(xx)(b) of the Order is not applicable for the year.

	 For, B. K. PATEL & CO
	 Chartered Accountants
	 Firm Regn No. 112647W

	 B. K. Patel
Ahmedabad	 Partner
30-05-2025	 Membership No.032199
	 UDIN:25032199BMZXAB2476
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ANNEXURE-“B”
TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report to the Members of Dynemic
Products Limited of even date)

REPORT ON THE INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING UNDER CLAUSE (I) OF SUB-SECTION 3 OF SECTION 143 OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013 (“THE ACT”)

	 We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Dynemic Products Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2025 
in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS
	 The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control 

over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These re-
sponsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for 
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, 
the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of 
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY
	 Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company based on our audit. We 

conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance 
Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Com-
panies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we 
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial 
controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

	 Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understand-
ing of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the de-
sign and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

	 We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting of the Company.

MEANING OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING	
	 A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability 

of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the main-
tenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) 
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with au-
thorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of 
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

INHERENT LIMITATIONS OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING WITH REFERENCE TO THESE STANDALONE FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS
	 Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper 

management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control 
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or pro-
cedures may deteriorate.

OPINION
	 In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has, in all material respects, an 

adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating 
effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the 
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued 
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

	 For, B. K. PATEL & CO
	 Chartered Accountants
	 Firm Regn No. 112647W

	 B. K. Patel
Ahmedabad	 Partner
30-05-2025	 Membership No.032199

UDIN: 25032199BMZXAB2476
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CIN: L24100GJ1990PLC013886

STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH 2025
(Amount in Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars Note  As at 31st March, 2025  As at 31st March, 2024
ASSETS :
NON-CURRENT ASSETS :
Property, Plant & Equipments & Intangibale Assets
     Property, Plant & Equipments 4  23,472.34  24,430.14 
     Intangible assets 5  0.19  0.19 
Financial Assets:
     Investments 6  131.22  131.22 
     Loans 10  2.27  1.81 
     Other Financial Assets 11  1,852.89  1,861.44 
Other Non Current Assets 13  246.40  256.51 
TOTAL NON CURRENT ASSETS  25,705.31  26,681.30 

CURRENT ASSETS:
     Inventories 12  8,222.61  6,582.85 
Financial Assets:-
     Investments  -    -   
     Trade Receivables 7  6,419.97  5,506.49 
     Cash and cash equivalents 8  32.08  8.81 
     Other Bank Balances 9  167.03  162.90 
     Loans 10  4.57  1.46 
     Other Financial Assets 11  20.41  20.41 
Other Current Assets 13  920.12  906.50 
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS  15,786.79  13,189.43 
TOTAL -ASSETS  41,492.10  39,870.73 
EQUITIES AND LAIBILITIES:
EQUITY
     Equity Share Capital 14.1  1,242.84  1,202.84 
     Other Equity 14.2  21,077.90  18,954.22 
TOTAL EQUITY  22,320.74  20,157.06 
LAIBILITIES
NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
Financial Liabilities
     Borrowings 15  763.31  3,376.90 
     Other Financial Liabilities 18  0.02  0.43 
     Provisions 17  35.70  37.97 
     Deferred Tax Liabilities(Net) 21  1,584.28  1,038.03 
TOTAL NON CURRENT LIABILITIES  2,383.31  4,453.33 
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Financial Liabilities
     Borrowings 15  8,824.23  8,076.51 
     Trade Payables 16
     Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprise  839.40  2,122.09 
     Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprise  6,764.06  4,699.58 
     Other Financial Liabilities 17  3.62  96.80 
     Provisions 18  163.81  140.23 
     Current Tax Liabilities 19  -    -   
     Other Current Liabilities 20  192.93  125.12 
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES  16,788.05  15,260.34 
TOTAL LIABILITIES  19,171.36  19,713.68 
TOTAL - EQUITIES AND LIABILITIES  41,492.10  39,870.73 
The accompanying Notes form an integral part of the Standalone Balance Sheet.					   
	
As per our report of even date						    
For, B. K. PATEL & CO.	 For and on Behalf of			 
Chartered Accountants	 DYNEMIC PRODUCTS LIMITED			 
FRN :- 112647W						    
						    
CA B. K. Patel	 B. K. Patel	 D. B. Patel 	
Partner	 Managing Director	 Joint Managing Director  	
Membership No.032199
					   
Place :  Ahmedabad.	 R. B. Patel	 Ankit Shah 	
Date  : 30.05.2025	 Joint Managing Director	 Chief Financial Officer

	 Place :  Ahmedabad.	 Varsha Mehta	
	 Date  : 30.05.2025 	 Company Secretary
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STANDALONE STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2025
(Amount in Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars Note As at
31st March, 2025

As at
31st March, 2024

Revenue from Operations 22  36,741.78  28,378.28 

Other Income 23  43.16  63.44 

Total Income  36,784.94  28,441.73 

EXPENESES :

Cost of Materials Consumed 24  18,617.82  13,537.90 

Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 25  914.08  874.44 

Changes in Inventories 26 (562.42) (126.60)

Employee Benefits Expenses 27  2,280.28  1,987.59 

Finance Costs 28  1,139.24  1,288.90 

Depreciation & Amortisations 29  1,642.93  1,668.31 

Other Expenses 30  10,706.82  8,909.41 

Total Expenses  34,738.75  28,139.96 

Profit Before Exceptional items and Tax  2,046.19  301.77 

Exceptional Items  -    -   

Profit Before Tax  2,046.19  301.77 

Tax Expense 31

                  Current Tax  -    -   

                  Deferred Tax  546.25 (115.81)

Add/ (Less):- Taxation of earlier years (Refunds/Paid)  0.73  11.34 

Total Tax Expense  546.99 (104.47)

Net Profit for the Year  1,499.21  406.24 

Other Comprehensive Income

Items that will not be Reclassified to Profit or Loss 36  8.92  22.10 

Remeasurements on Post-employment Defined Benefit Plans

Income Tax on Above 31  -    -   

Total Other Comprehensive Income, Net of Tax  8.92  22.10 

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year  1,508.12  428.34 

Earnings per Equity Share (Nominal Value Rs. 10/- per Share) 32

               Basic  12.43  3.43 

               Diluted  12.43  3.40 
The accompanying Notes form an integral part of the Standalone Balance Sheet.					   
	
As per our report of even date						    
For, B. K. PATEL & CO.	 For and on Behalf of			 
Chartered Accountants	 DYNEMIC PRODUCTS LIMITED			 
FRN :- 112647W						    
						    
CA B. K. Patel	 B. K. Patel	 D. B. Patel 	
Partner	 Managing Director	 Joint Managing Director  	
Membership No.032199
					   
Place :  Ahmedabad.	 R. B. Patel	 Ankit Shah 	
Date  : 30.05.2025	 Joint Managing Director	 Chief Financial Officer

	 Place :  Ahmedabad.	 Varsha Mehta	
	 Date  : 30.05.2025 	 Company Secretary
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STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 31ST MARCH 2025
A. Equity Share Capital (Amount in Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars  No. of 
Shares  Amount 

Balance as at 1st April 2023  1,16,94,113  1,168.63 

Changes in equity share capital during the year

350000 Equity share fully paid up of Rs.10 each  3,50,000  35.00 

15726 Forfeited equity share partly paid up of Rs.5 each (15,726) (0.79) 

Balance as at 31st March 2024  1,20,28,387  1,202.84 

Changes in equity share capital during the year

400000 Equity share fully paid up of Rs.10 each (Warrants 
converted)

 4,00,000  40.00 

Balance as at 31st March 2025  1,24,28,387  1,242.84 

B. Other Equity

Particulars Securities 
Premium

General 
Reserve

Retained 
Earnings

Capital 
Reserve

 Warrants  Total 

As at 1st April, 2023  2,543.44  502.18  13,924.52  -    -    16,970.14 

Changes in accounting policy/prior period errors

Add: Addition during the year (Net)  959.60  17.69  578.44  1,555.73 

Comprehensive Income for the Year  -   406.24  406.24 

Other Comprehensive Income (Net of Tax) -Remeasure-
ments on Post employment Defined Benefit Plans

 -    -   22.10  -    -    22.10 

Less: Dividends  -    -    -    -    -    -   

As at 31st March, 2024  3,503.05  502.18  14,352.86  17.69  578.44  18,954.22 

Changes in accounting policy/prior period errors  -   

Add: Addition during the year (Net)  1,194.00  655.56  1,849.56 

Comprehensive Income for the Year  1,499.21  1,499.21 

Other Comprehensive Income (Net of Tax) -Remeasure-
ments on Post employment Defined Benefit Plans

 8.92  8.92 

Less: Warrants converted into equity shares  -    -    -    -    1,234.00  1,234.00 

Less: Dividends  -    -    -    -    -    -   

As at 31st March, 2025  4,697.05  502.18  15,860.99  17.69  -    21,077.90 

The accompanying Notes form an integral part of the Standalone Balance Sheet.					   
	
As per our report of even date						    
For, B. K. PATEL & CO.	 For and on Behalf of			 
Chartered Accountants	 DYNEMIC PRODUCTS LIMITED			 
FRN :- 112647W						    
						    
CA B. K. Patel	 B. K. Patel	 D. B. Patel 	
Partner	 Managing Director	 Joint Managing Director  	
Membership No.032199
					   
Place :  Ahmedabad.	 R. B. Patel	 Ankit Shah 	
Date  : 30.05.2025	 Joint Managing Director	 Chief Financial Officer

	 Place :  Ahmedabad.	 Varsha Mehta	
	 Date  : 30.05.2025 	 Company Secretary
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STANDALONE CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 31ST MARCH 2025
(Amount in Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024
A. Cash Flows from Operating Activities

         Profit before Tax  2,046.19  301.77 
         Adjustments for:
         Depreciation and Amortisation Expense  1,642.93  1,668.31 
         Finance Costs  1,139.24  1,288.90 
         Bad Debts/Advances/ Creditors Written Off  -    -   
         Interest Income Classified as Investing Cash Flows (18.85) (18.69)

         Net Gain on Investments Carried at Fair Value through Profit or Loss  -    -   
         (Gain)/Loss on Disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment (Net)  3.03  2.37 
         Foreign Exchange Differences (Net) (198.51) (22.47)
Operating Profit before Changes in Operating assets and Liabilities  4,614.03  3,220.19 
Changes in Operating Assets and Liabilities
         Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payables  781.78  325.51 
         Increase/(Decrease) in Other Financial Liabilities (95.08) (1.01)
         Increase/(Decrease) in Provisions  21.31 (73.12)
         Increase/(Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities  67.81 (127.49)
         (Increase)/Decrease in Inventories (1,639.76) (69.00)
         (Increase)/Decrease in Trade Receivables (913.48) (434.01)
         (Increase)/Decrease in Loans (3.57) (2.39)
         (Increase)/Decrease in Other Financial Assets  8.55 (54.50)
         (Increase)/Decrease in Other Non-current Assets  10.11  56.99 
         (Increase)/Decrease in Other Current Assets 0.76  299.29 
Cash Generated from Operations (1,761.57) (79.73)
         Income Taxes Paid (14.38) (9.31)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES  2,838.09  3,131.15 
B. Cash Flows from Investing Activities
         Payments for Acquisition of Property, Plant, Equipment (691.50) (280.20)
         Proceeds on Investment  -    45.74 
         Proceeds on Disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment  3.37  3.48 
         Proceeds as Capital subsidy on Fixed Assets  13.64  68.20 
         Interest Received  18.85  18.69 
         Proceeds from Maturity of Deposits with Banks  81.85  -   
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (573.81) (144.09)
C. Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
         Finance Costs Paid (1,139.24) (1,288.90)
         Proceeds from Preferential equity shares (Net)  -    1,011.51 
         Proceeds from Warrants (Net)  655.56  578.44 
         Repayment of Long-term Borrowings (3,222.33) (3,200.67)
         Proceeds from Long-term Borrowings 199.99  -   
         Short-term Borrowings - Receipts/(Payments)  1,066.47 (142.52)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES (2,439.55) (3,042.14)
D. Exchange Differences on Translation of Foreign Currency  198.51  22.47 
Net Cash (Outflow)/ Inflow  23.26 (32.60)
Cash and Cash Equivalents
         Cash and Cash Equivalents - Opening (Refer Note 8)  8.81  41.41 
         Cash and Cash Equivalents - Closing (Refer Note 8)  32.08  8.81 
1) The above Standalone Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the ‘Indirect Method’ as set out in Ind AS 7, ‘Statement of Cash Flows’.

2) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities (Amount in Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars 01-04-2024  Cash Inflow  Other Adjustments 31-03-2025
Long-Term Borrowings (Including Current Matuaties of Long Term Debt)  6,647.64 (3,022.34)  -    3,625.30 
Short-Term Borrowings  4,515.77 1,446.47  -    5,962.24 
Total Borrowings  11,163.41 (1,575.87)  -   9,587.54

Particulars 01-04-2023  Cash Inflow  Other Adjustments 31-03-2024
Long-Term Borrowings (Including Current Matuaties of Long Term Debt)  9,848.31 (3,200.67)  -    6,647.64 
Short-Term Borrowings  4,948.29 (432.52)  -    4,515.77 
Total Borrowings  14,796.60 (3,633.19)  -   11,163.41

The accompanying Notes form an integral part of the Standalone Balance Sheet.					   
As per our report of even date						    
For, B. K. PATEL & CO.	 For and on Behalf of			 
Chartered Accountants	 DYNEMIC PRODUCTS LIMITED			 
FRN :- 112647W						    
CA B. K. Patel	 B. K. Patel	 D. B. Patel 	
Partner	 Managing Director	 Joint Managing Director  	
Membership No.032199
					   
Place :  Ahmedabad.	 R. B. Patel	 Ankit Shah 	
Date  : 30.05.2025	 Joint Managing Director	 Chief Financial Officer

	 Place :  Ahmedabad.	 Varsha Mehta	
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Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

1.	 Company Background

	 Dynemic Products Limited (the ‘Company’) is a public limited company, incorporated with its CIN: L24100GJ1990PLC013886 and domiciled in 
India. The equity shares of the Company are listed on the National Stock Exchange of India Limited and the BSE Limited in India. The registered 
office of the Company is located at B-301, Satyamev Complex-1, Gandhinagar-Sarkhej Highway Road, Opp. New Gujarat High Court, Sola, Ah-
medabad-380 063, Gujarat, India. The Company is mainly engaged in the business of manufacturing and selling of Dyes & Dye Intermediates 
as single operational segment. The standalone financial statements were approved and authorized for issue in accordance with the resolution 
passed in the meeting of Board of Directors of the Company held on 30th May, 2025.

2.	 Significant Accounting Policies

	 This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the standalone financial statements. These poli-
cies have been consistently applied to all through the year presented, unless otherwise stated. These standalone financial statements are the 
separate financial statements of the Company.

	 A)	 Basis of Preparation

	 (i)	 Compliance with Ind AS

		  The standalone financial statements comply in all material respects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 
133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] as amended from time to time and 
other provisions        of the Act.

	 (ii)	 Basis of Measurement

		  The standalone financial statements have been prepared on accrual basis and under historical cost basis, except for  the following:

		  -	 Certain financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments) that is measured at fair value.

		  -	 Defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value.

		  -	 All amounts disclosed in the standalone financial statements and notes have been present in INR and have been rounded off to 		
	 the nearest Rupee in Lakhs as per the requirement of Schedule-III, unless otherwise stated.

	 (iii)	 Current versus Non-Current Classification

		  The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/non-current classification in accordance with Ind AS.

		  An asset is classified as current when it is:

		  a)	 expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle,

		  b)	 held primarily for the purpose of trading,

		  c)	 expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or

		  d)	 cash or cash equivalents unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the 		
	 reporting period.

		  All other assets are classified as non-current. 

 		  A liability is classified as current when:

		  a)	 it is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle,

		  b)	 it is held primarily for the purpose of trading,

		  c)	 it is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

		  d)	 there is no unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

		  All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

		  Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current.

		  The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents. The 
Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

	 (iv)	 Significant accounting estimates, assumptions and judgements

		  The preparation of standalone Financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgments, estimates 
and assumptions, that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income, expenses 
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and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of these standalone Financial statements and the reported amounts of 
revenues and expenses for the years presented. Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions 
are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is re-
vised and future periods affected.

	 This Note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgment or complexity, and of items which are more likely to be 
materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out to be different than those originally assessed. Detailed information about 
each of these estimates and judgments is included in relevant notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected 
line item in the standalone financial statements.

	 Estimates and assumptions

	 The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk 
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described hereinafter. The 
Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances 
and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the 
control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

	 The areas involving critical estimates or judgments are:

	 Employee Benefits (Estimation of Defined Benefit Obligation) 

	 Post-employment benefits represent obligations that will be settled in future and require assumptions to estimate benefit obligations. 
Post-employment benefit accounting is intended to reflect the recognition of benefit costs over the employees’ approximate service period, 
based on the terms of the plans and the investment and funding decisions made. The accounting requires the Company to make assumptions 
regarding variables such as discount rate and salary growth rate. Changes in these key assumptions can have a significant impact on the de-
fined benefit obligations.

	 Estimation of Expected Useful Life of Property, Plant and Equipment

	 Management reviews its estimate of useful lives of property, plant and equipment at each   reporting date, based on the expected utility of 
the assets. Uncertainties in these estimates relate to technical and economic obsolescence that may change the utility of property, plant and 
equipment.

	 Contingencies

	 Legal proceedings covering a range of matters are pending against the Company. Due to the uncertainty inherent in such matters, it is often 
difficult to predict the final outcome. The cases and claims against the Company often raise factual and legal issues that are subject to uncer-
tainties and complexities, including the facts and circumstances of each particular case/ claim, the jurisdiction and the differences in appli-
cable law. The Company consults with legal counsel and other experts on matters related to specific litigations where considered necessary. 
The Company accrues a liability when it is determined that an adverse outcome is probable and the amount of the loss can be reasonably 
estimated. In the event an adverse outcome is possible or an estimate is not determinable, the matter is disclosed.

	 Valuation of Deferred Tax assets

	 Deferred income tax expense is calculated based on the differences between the carrying value of assets and liabilities for financial reporting 
purposes and their respective tax bases that are considered temporary in nature. Valuation of deferred tax assets is dependent on manage-
ment’s assessment of future recoverability of the deferred tax benefit. Expected recoverability may result from expected taxable income in the 
future, planned transactions or planned optimizing measures. Economic conditions may change and lead to a different conclusion regarding 
recoverability.

	 B) 	 Summary of Significant accounting policies 

	 1.	 Revenue Recognition

	 Revenue from contract with customer is recognized when control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer at an amount that 
reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Revenue from contract with 
customer is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Amounts disclosed as revenue are exclusive of taxes & 
duties and net of returns, trade discounts, rebates. The inter-divisional transfer between Unit-1, 2 and 3 of the company are deducted from 
respective sales & purchases, it has no impact on profit or loss.

	 The Company recognizes revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that future economic benefits will flow 
to the Company and specific criteria have been met for each of the Company’s activities as described below. The Company bases its estimates 
on historical results, taking into consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

	 Sale of Products:- Revenue from sale of products is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the products have 
passed to the buyer as per the terms of contract. The company considers whether there are other promises in the contract that are separate 
performance obligations to which a portion of the transaction price needs to be allocated. In determining the transaction price for the sale of 
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goods, the company considers the effects of variable consideration, the existence of significant financing components, non-cash considera-
tion, and consideration payable to the customer (if any).

	 Sales is net of inter branch transfers. It has no impact on profit or loss.

	 Sale of Services: - Revenue from services rendered is recognized as the services are rendered and is booked based on agreements/ arrange-
ments with the concerned parties.

	 Other Operating Revenues

	 Export entitlements under various schemes notified by government are recognized when the right to receive credit as per the terms of the 
schemes is established in respect of the exports made by the Company and where there is no significant uncertainty regarding the ultimate 
collection of the relevant export proceeds.

	 Rent income

	 Rental income is accounted on the basis of lease terms and is included in other income in the statement of profit and loss.

	 Interest Income

	 Interest income from debt instruments is recognized using the effective interest rate method. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly 
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset. 
When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the 
financial instrument but does not consider the expected credit losses.

Dividend

	 Dividend is recognized in profit or loss only when the right to receive payment is established, it is probable that the economic benefits associ-
ated with the dividend will flow to the Company, and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

2.	 Property, Plant and Equipment:

	 Freehold/ GIDC Lease hold land is carried at historical cost. All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less 
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the 
acquisition of the items. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only 
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be meas-
ured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognized when replaced. All other repairs and 
maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

	 Depreciation Method, Estimated Useful Lives and Residual Values

	 Depreciation is calculated on a pro-rata basis using the straight-line method to allocate their cost, net of their estimated residual values, over 
their estimated useful lives in accordance with Schedule II to the Act. Each component of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost 
that is significant in relation to the cost of that item is depreciated separately if its useful life differs from the other components of the item.

	 Estimated useful lives of the assets are taken as per Schedule II of the Companies Act 2013, which is broadly defined as under:-

	 Buildings - 3 to 60 years

	 Plant and equipment - 5 to 40 years 

	 Furniture and Fixtures - 10 years 

	 Vehicles - 8 to 10 years

	 Office Equipment - 3 to 6 years

	 Leasehold land is from GIDC and has not been amortized, as the lease cost has been fully paid. The useful lives, residual values and the method 
of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. Gains and 
losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are included in profit or loss within ‘Other Income’/‘Oth-
er Expenses’. Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each balance sheet date is classified as 
‘Capital Advances’ under other non- current assets.

	 a.	 Intangible Assets

	 Intangible assets (Computer Software) has a finite useful life and are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impair-
ment losses, if any.

	 Computer Software

	 Software for internal use, which is primarily acquired from third-party vendors is capitalized. Subsequent costs associated with maintaining 
such software are recognized as expense as incurred. Cost of software includes license fees and cost of implementation/system integration 
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services, where applicable.

	 Amortization Method and Period

	 Computer software are amortized on a pro-rata basis using the straight-line method over their estimated useful life of 5 years, from the date 
they are available for use. Amortization method and useful lives are reviewed periodically at each financial year end.

	 b.	 Impairment of Non-Financial assets

	 Assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An 
impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount 
is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. Subsequently, if there is a change in the indication, since the last im-
pairment was recognized, so that recoverable amount of an asset exceeds its carrying amount, an impairment recognized for an asset in prior 
accounting period is reversed for the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately 
identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or group of assets (cash generating units).

	 c.	 Leases

	 The Company applied a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases for which it is the lessee, except for short-term leases and 
leases of low value assets. The Company recognised lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to 
use the underlying assets. 

	 The Company elected to use the recognition exemptions for lease contracts that, at the commencement date, have a lease term of 12 months 
or less and do not contain a purchase option (short-term leases), and lease contracts for which the underlying asset is of low value (low-value 
assets).

	 Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to the Company as lessee are classified as oper-
ating leases. Payments made under operating leases are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease unless the 
payments are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases. 

	 This is not applicable to GIDC Lease, as there is no periodic payments are made for uses of leased asset, which is GIDC Land. Land (Leasehold) 
is carried at cost less amortization; Leasehold land is amortized on the straight line method over the period of lease.

	 d.	 Inventories

	 Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost of inventories comprises cost of purchases and all other costs incurred 
in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost of work-in-progress and finished goods comprises direct materials, 
direct labor and an appropriate proportion of variable and fixed overhead expenditure, the latter being allocated on the basis of normal oper-
ating capacity. Costs are assigned to individual items of inventory on approximation average basis. Net realizable value is the estimated selling 
price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

	 e.	 Investments in Subsidiaries

	 Investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost less provision for impairment, if any. Investments   in subsidiaries are tested for impairment 
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for 
the amount by which the carrying amount of investments exceeds its recoverable amount.

	 f.	 Investments (Other than Investments in Subsidiaries) and Other Financial Assets

	 (i)	 Classification

	 The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:-

	 -	 those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income or  through profit or loss), and

	 -	 those to be measured at amortized cost.

	 The classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows. For 
assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income. Though the Company 
do not have any debt instruments, but for investments in debt instruments, this will depend on the business model in which the investment is 
held. For investments in equity instruments, this will depend on whether the Company has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial 
recognition to account for the equity investment at fair value through other comprehensive income.

	 (ii)	 Measurement

	 At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a  financial asset not at fair value through prof-
it or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried 
at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss. Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety 
when determining whether their cash flows are solely payment of principal and interest.
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	 All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, 
described as under, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

	 • Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

	 • Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly ob-
servable.

	 • Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable. 

	 For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have 
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

	 The Company’s management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement, such as unquoted financial 
assets measured at fair value, and for non-recurring measurement, such as assets held for distribution in discontinued operations.

	 Debt Instruments

	 Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company’s business model for managing the asset and the cash flow charac-
teristics of the asset. There are three measurement categories into which the Company classifies its debt instruments:

	 1.	 Amortized Costs

	 Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are 
measured at amortized cost. A gain or loss on a debt   instrument that is subsequently measured at amortized cost is recognized in profit or 
loss when the asset is derecognized or impaired.

	 2.	 Fair Value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI):

	 Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely 
payments of principal and interest, are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI). Movements in the carrying 
amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest income and foreign exchange gains and losses 
which are recognized in the profit or loss. When the financial asset is derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCI is 
reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognized in ‘Other Income’.

	 3.	 Fair value through Profit & Loss A/c

	 Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortized cost or FVOCI are measured at fair value through profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt 
investment that is subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss is recognized in profit or loss and presented net in the Statement 
of Profit and Loss within ‘Other Income’ in the period in which it arises.

	 Equity Instruments

	 The Company subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value. Where the Company’s management has elected to present fair 
value gains and losses on equity investments in other comprehensive income, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and 
losses to profit or loss. Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognized in ‘Other Income’ in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss.

	 (iii)	

	 a)	 Impairment of Financial Assets

	 The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets which are not fair valued through profit 
or loss. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk. Note given herein after 
details how the Company determines whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk. For trade receivables only, the Company 
applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109, ‘Financial Instruments’, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognized 
from initial recognition of the receivables.

	 b)	 Impairment of financial assets (other than at fair value)

	 The Company assesses at each date of balance sheet whether a financial asset or a group of Financial Assets is impaired.

	 Ind AS 109 requires expected credit losses to be measured through a loss allowance. The Company recognizes lifetime expected losses for all 
contract assets and / or all trade receivables that do not constitute a financing transaction. In determining the allowances for doubtful trade 
receivables, the Company has used a practical expedient by computing the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables based on a 
provision matrix. The provision matrix takes into account historical credit loss experience and is adjusted for forward looking information. The 
expected credit loss allowance is based on the ageing of the receivables that are due and allowance rates used in the provision matrix. For all 
other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-months expected credit losses or at an amount equal 
to the life time expected credit losses if the credit risk on the financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition.
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	 (iv)	 De-recognition of Financial Assets

	 A financial asset is de-recognized only when

	 -	 the Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or

	 -	 Retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash 
flows to one or more recipients.

	 Where the entity has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership 
of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is de-recognized. Where the entity has not transferred substantially all risks and re-
wards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is not de-recognized.

	 Where the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, 
the financial asset is de-recognized if the Company has not retained control of the financial asset. Where the Company retains control of the 
financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognized to the extent of continuing involvement in the financial asset.

	 (v)	 Fair Value of Financial Instruments

	 In determining the fair value of financial instruments, the Company uses a variety of methods and          assumptions that are based on mar-
ket conditions and risks existing at each reporting date. The methods used to determine fair value include discounted cash flow analysis and 
available quoted market prices. All methods of assessing fair value result in general approximation of value, and such value may never actually 
be realized.

	 g.	 Derivative Instruments- 

	 Company has no Derivative Instruments during the year.

	 h.	 Offsetting Financial Instruments

	 Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet where there is a legally enforceable right to offset 
the recognized amounts and there is an intention of the management to settle on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability simul-
taneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business 
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

	 i.	 Trade Receivables

	 Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or services rendered in the ordinary course of business. Trade receivables 
are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less provision for im-
pairment.

	 j.	 Cash and Cash Equivalents

	 For the purpose of presentation in the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with Banks 
and financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convert-
ible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

	 k.	 Trade Payables

	 Trade Payables represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of financial year which are unpaid. Trade 
and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are recog-
nized initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

	 l.	 Borrowings

	 Borrowings are recognized at amortized cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount 
is recognized in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan 
facilities are recognized as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some  or all of the facility will be drawn down. In 
this case, the fee is deferred until the draw down  occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility 
will be drawn down, the fee is capitalized as a prepayment for liquidity services and amortized over the period of the facility to which it relates.

	 Borrowings are removed from the Balance Sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired.

	 Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 
months after the reporting period.

	 m.	 Financial Guarantee Contracts

	 Financial guarantee contracts are recognized as a financial liability at the time the guarantee is issued. The liability is initially measured at fair 
value and subsequently at the higher of the amount determined in accordance with Ind AS 37 and the amount initially recognized less cumu-
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lative amortization, where appropriate.

	 n.	 Borrowing Costs

	 General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are cap-
italized during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets 
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale.

	 Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

	 o.	 Foreign Currency Transactions and Translation

	 (i)	 Functional and Presentation Currency

	 Items included in the standalone financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment 
in which the Company operates (‘the functional currency’). The standalone financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee in Lakhs (Rs. in 
Lakhs), which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.

	 (ii)	 Transactions and Balances

	 Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. At the year-
end, monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are restated at the year - end exchange rates. The exchange differences 
arising from settlement of foreign currency transactions and from the year-end restatement are recognized in profit and loss.

	 Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the       exchange rates at the date when the fair 
value was determined. Translation differences on assets  and liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.

	 p.	 Employee benefits

	 (i)	 Short Term Employee Benefits

	 Liabilities for short-term employee benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the 
employees render the related service are recognized in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured 
at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as ‘Employee Benefits Payable’ within ‘Other 
Current Liabilities’ in the Balance Sheet.

	 (ii)	 Post-Employment Benefits

	 Defined Benefit Plans

	 The liability or asset recognized in the Balance Sheet in respect of defined benefit plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation 
at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuaries using the 
projected unit credit method.

	 The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to market 
yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation.

	 The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan 
assets. This cost is included in ‘Employee Benefits Expense’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

	 Re-measurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized in the period in 
which they occur, directly in Other Comprehensive Income. These are included in ‘Retained Earnings’ in the Statement of Changes in Equity.

	 Defined Contribution Plans

	 Contributions under Defined Contribution Plans payable in keeping with the related schemes are recognized as expenses for the period in 
which the employee has rendered the service.

	 (iii)	 Other Long term Employee Benefits

	 The liabilities for leave which are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the  period in which the employees 
render the related service. They are therefore measured annually   by actuaries as the present value of expected future benefits in respect of 
services provided by      employees up to the end of the reporting period using the projected unit credit method. The  benefits are discounted 
using the market yields at the end of the reporting period that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation. Re-measure-
ment as a result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized in profit or loss.

	 The liabilities are presented as ‘Employee Benefits Payable’ within ‘Other Non-Current Liabilities’ in the Balance Sheet.

	 q.	 Income Tax

	 The income tax expense for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income based on the applicable income tax rate 
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adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences, unused tax credits and to unused tax losses.

	 The current tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted   at the end of the reporting period. Man-
agement periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to inter-
pretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

	 Deferred tax is provided in full, using the balance sheet approach, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabil-
ities and their carrying amounts in the standalone financial statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognized if they arise from 
the initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a 
transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss). 
Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting 
period and are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset is realized or the deferred tax liability is settled.

	 Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses only if 
it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilize those temporary differences, tax credits and losses.

	 Deferred tax assets are not recognized for temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax bases of investments in subsidiaries 
where it is not probable that the differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will not be available against which the 
temporary difference can be utilized.

	 The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that 
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be utilized.

	 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities and when the 
deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforce-
able right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

	 Current and deferred tax are recognized in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in other comprehensive in-
come or directly in equity, if any. In this case, the tax is also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

	 r.	 Provisions and Contingencies

	 Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an 
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated.

	 Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at 
the end of the reporting period. A disclosure for contingent liabilities is made when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, 
the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or nonoccurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within 
the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources 
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.

	 s.	 Dividend

	 The Company recognises a liability for dividends to equity holders of the Company when the dividend is authorised and the dividend is no 
longer at the discretion of the Company. As per the corporate laws in India, a dividend is authorised when it is approved by the shareholders. 
A corresponding amount is recognised directly in equity.

	 t.	 Earnings per Share

	 (i)	 Basic Earnings per Share

	 Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing: -

	 -	 the profit attributable to owners of the Company 

	 -	 by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year

	 (ii)	 Diluted Earnings per Share

	 Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take into account:-

	 -	 the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity shares, and

	 -	 the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive 
potential equity shares.

	 u.	 Segment Reporting

	 Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker.

	 The chief operating decision maker is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments and has been 
identified as the Managing Director of the Company. Presently Company has been working in single segment- Dyes & Dyes Intermediates.

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025
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Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025    

4.2	 Title deeds of Immovable Properties not held in name of the Company

(Amount in Rs. in Lakhs)

Relevant line 
item in the 

Balance sheet

Description 
of item of 
property

Gross 
carrying 

value

Title deeds 
held in the 

name of

Whether title deed holder is a 
promoter, director or relative# of 
promoter*/director or employee 

of promoter/director

 Property held 
since which 

date 

 Reason for not 
being held in 

the name of the 
company 

PPE NIL

4.3     	 The Company has taken borrowings from banks which carry charge over certain property, plant and equipment ( Refer Note 42 for details). 

4.4     	 Contractual obligations - Refer Note 35(a) for disclosure of contractual commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment.	

4.5     	 Aggregate amount of depreciation has been included under ‘Depreciation and Amortisation Expense’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss 
(Refer Note 29). 							     

4.6     	 Title deeds of immovable properties set out in Note 4.1 above, where applicable, are in the name of the Company.			 

4.7 	 Lease period of land at GIDC is 95 years. On expiry of the said lease term of 5 years, the Company has an option to renew the lease for a further 
period of 5 years which company is certain to excerise the option.						    

4.8   	 There is no Capital work in progress in current year as well as in previous year.						    

4.9     	 There is no intangibles asset under development during the year  as well as in previous year.					   

4.10   	 There is no Benami property held by the company.	 					   

5	 Intangible Assets

Particulars  As at 
 31st March, 2025 

 As at 
 31st March, 2024 

Gross Carrying Amount

Opening Balance  26.47  26.47 

Additions  -    -   

Disposals  -    -   

Closing Balance  26.47  26.47 

Accumulated Depreciation

Opening Balance  26.28  26.28 

For the Year  -    -   

On Disposals  -    -   

Closing Balance  26.28  26.28 

Net Carrying Amount  0.19  0.19 

5.1     The amortisation has been included under ‘Depreciation and Amortisation Expense’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss (Refer Note 29).	
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6	 Investments	 (Amount in Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars Face Value Number  As at 
31st March, 2025

 As at 
31st March, 2024

Unquoted:

Non-current Investments

Investments in Equity Instruments (At amortised cost)

   In Subsidiary Companies

     *Cerecon Bio Sciences Private Limited ( Formerly 100 20600  20.60  20.60 

   In Other Associates Body Corporates

     *Dynemic Holdings Pvt.Ltd. 10 1010000  101.00  101.00 

   In Other Body Corporates

     * Enviro Technology Ltd. Shares 10 15000  1.50  1.50 

     * Bharuch Enviro Infrastructure Ltd. 10 1750  0.18  0.18 

     * Bharuch Eco-Aqua Infra.Ltd 10 78450  7.85  7.85 

     * Ank.Res. &.Analy.Inf.Ltd. 10 1000  0.10  0.10 

TOTAL  131.22  131.22 

Current Investments  -    -   

TOTAL  131.22  131.22 

6.1	 Refer Note 39 for information about fair value measurements and Note 40 for credit risk and market risk on investments.

6.2	 Aggregate amount of Investments

Particulars  As at 31st March, 2025  As at 31st March, 2024

Aggregate amount of Unquoted Investments  131.22  131.22 

Aggregate amount of Quoted Investments  -    -   

Total Investments  131.22  131.22 

7	 Trade Receivables

Particulars  As at 31st March, 2025  As at 31st March, 2024

Current

Unsecured Considered Good

(a) Trade Receivables considered good - Secured;  -    -   

(b) Trade Receivables considered good - Unsecured;  6,419.97  5,506.49 

(c) Trade Receivables which have significant increase in Credit Risk  -    -   

d) Trade Receivables - credit impaired  -    -   

Less: Allowance for Expected Credit Losses  -    -   

TOTAL  6,419.97  5,506.49 

7.1	 Refer Note 42 for receivables secured against borrowings and Note 40 for information about credit risk and market risk on receivables.	

						    

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025  
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7.2	 Trade Receivables ageing schedule (the previous year figures are in brackets)	 (Amount in Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Less than 6 
months

6 months 
-1 year

1-2 years 2-3 years  More than 
3 years 

 Total 

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables – considered good  6,324.01  30.94  0.03  64.99  6,419.97 

(5,438.47) (6.39) (61.64)  -    -   (5,506.49)

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables – which have signif-
icant increase in credit risk

(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables – credit impaired  -    -    -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables–considered good  -    -    -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

(v) Disputed Trade Receivables – which have signifi-
cant increase in credit risk

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables – credit impaired  -    -    -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

Total  6,324.01  30.94  0.03  64.99  -    6,419.97 

(5,438.47) (6.39) (61.64)  -    -   (5,506.49)

Note:- The figures in brackets are for the previous year.	

8	 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Particulars  As at 31st March, 2025  As at 31st March, 2024

Balances with Banks

      In Current Accounts  29.93  7.26 

      In Fixed Deposits  -    -   

Cash on Hand  2.15  1.55 

TOTAL  32.08  8.81 

8.1	 There are no repatriation restrictions with regard to Cash and Cash Equivalents as at the end of the current reporting period and prior peri-
ods.						    

9	 Other Bank Balances	 (Amount in Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars  As at 31st March, 2025  As at 31st March, 2024

Earmarked balances with banks

  - Unpaid Dividend Accounts  3.59  5.07 

  - Fixed Deposit held for guarantees (with original maturity of more than three 
months but less than twelve months) (Lodged with Government Authority/Others)

 163.44  157.83 

Accrued Interest on Fixed Deposits  -    -   

TOTAL  167.03  162.90 

9.1	 Fixed deposits held for guarantees are not available for immediate use being in the nature of security offered.

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025  
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10	 Loans

Particulars  As at 31st March, 2025  As at 31st March, 2024

Non-current

Loans to Employees

(a)Loans Receivables considered good - Unsecured;  2.27  1.81 

TOTAL  2.27  1.81 

Current (At Amortised Cost)

Loans to Employees

(a) Loans Receivables considered good - Unsecured;  4.57  1.46 

TOTAL  4.57  1.46 

11	 Other Financial Assets

Particulars  As at 31st March, 2025  As at 31st March, 2024

Non-current

Unsecured, Considered Good :

Security Deposits  1,805.48  1,726.57 

Fixed Deposits with Banks** (with Maturity of more than Twelve Months) (Lodged 
with Government Authority/Others)

 47.41  134.88 

Accrued Interest on Fixed Deposits**  -    -   

TOTAL  1,852.89  1,861.44 

Current (At Amortised Cost)

Unsecured, Considered Good :

Security Deposits  -   - 

Interest Accrued on Electricity Deposits  20.41  20.41 

TOTAL  20.41  20.41 

**Financial Assets carried at Amortised Cost

11.1	 Fixed deposits held for guarantees are not available for immediate use being in the nature of security offered.

11.2	 Security deposits are receivables from various government and non government authorites.

12	 Inventories	 (Amount in Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars  As at 31st March, 2025  As at 31st March, 2024

-Valued at Lower of Cost and Net Realisable Value

     Raw Materials  1,700.41  1,189.81 

     Packing Material  18.50  36.18 

     ETP stock  3.62  9.97 

     Fuel- Non Coking stock  777.28  186.50 

     Trading Materials  10.45  2.81 

     Work in progress  1,104.63  898.42 

     Finished Goods  4,595.64  4,210.96 

     Finished Goods (Captive)  12.07  48.18 

TOTAL  8,222.61  6,582.85 

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025  				            (Amount in Rs. in Lakhs)
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12.1     Refer Note 42 for Information on Inventories Pledged as Security.

13	 Other Assets

Particulars  As at 31st March, 2025  As at 31st March, 2024

Non-current

Unsecured, Considered Good :

     Capital Advances  140.95  168.89 

     Balances with Government Authorities @  3.80  3.80 

     Gratuity provision (Surplus)  38.76  19.02 

     Prepaid/Advance for Expenses  -    1.99 

     IT Refund Receivables  62.88  62.80 

TOTAL  246.40  256.51 

Current

Unsecured, Considered Good :

    Export Entitlements Receivable  43.72  91.09 

    Balances with Government Authorities @  707.60  545.45 

    Advance to Suppliers/Service Providers (other than capital)  34.23  29.20 

    Capital Advances  8.75  10.42 

    Prepaid/Advance for Expenses  111.45  221.05 

    Advance Income Tax Paid ( Included TDS & TCS)  14.38  9.31 

TOTAL  920.12  906.50 

	 @ Balances with Government Authorities primarily include amounts realisable from the GST and customs authorities of India and the unu-
tilised GST input credits on purchases. These are generally realised within one year or regularly utilised to offset the GST liability on goods 
manufactured by the Company.						     			 

14.1	 Equity Share Capital	 (Amount in Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars  As at 31st March, 2025  As at 31st March, 2024

Authorised Share Capital

1,30,00,000 (Previous Year- 1,30,00,000 ) Equity Share of Rs. 10/- each 	  1,300.00  1,300.00 

Issued and Subscribed share capital

 1,24,28,387 (Previous Year- 1,20,28,387) Equity Share of Rs. 10/- each @  1,242.84  1,203.63 

Subscribed and Partly paid up

 12,028,387 (Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up) @  1,242.84  1,202.84 

TOTAL  1,242.84  1,202.84 

	 ‘@ During the year, the Company has converted 4,00,000 warrants into equity shares at an issue price of ₹308.50 per share, comprising a face 
value of ₹10.00 and a share premium of ₹298.50 per share. As a result of this conversion Issued and subscribed capital increased by ₹40.00 
lakhs and Securities premium amount increased by Rs. 1194.00 lakhs.					   

	 (a) The Company has one class of Equity Shares having a par value of Rs. 10/- per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share 
held. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting 
except in case of interim dividend. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Com-
pany, after distribution of all preferential amounts in proportion to their shareholding.

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025  				            (Amount in Rs. in Lakhs)
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(b)	 Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the Year

Particulars  No. of Shares  Amount 

Balance as at 1st April 2023  1,16,94,113  1,168.63 

Changes in equity share capital during the year

350000 Equity share fully paid up of Rs.10 each  3,50,000  35.00 

15726 Forfeited equity share partly paid up of Rs.5 each (15,726) (0.79) 

Balance as at 31st March 2024  1,20,28,387  1,202.84 

Changes in equity share capital during the year

400000 Equity share fully paid up of Rs.10 each (Warrants converted)  4,00,000  40.00 

Balance as at 31st March 2025  1,24,28,387  1,242.84 

(c)	 Details of Shareholder holding more than 5% Equity Shares of the Company

Name of the Shareholders
As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024

Nos of Shares % of Total Shares Nos of Shares  % of Total Shares 

Bhagwandas Kalidas Patel  13,03,541 10.49%  12,67,541 10.54%

Rameshkumar Bhagwandas Patel  7,41,993 5.97%  7,13,993 5.94%

Total  20,45,534 16.46%  19,81,534 16.47%

(d)	 Details of shares held by the promoter at the end of the year:

Shares held by promoters at the end of the year
As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024

Nos of 
Shares

% of Total 
Shares

% Change
During the Year

Nos of 
Shares

 % of Total 
Shares 

 % Change 
During the Year 

Bhagwandas K Patel - HUF  71,925 0.58% 0.00%  71,925 0.60% 0.00%

Bhagwandas Kalidas Patel  13,03,541 10.49% 3.00%  12,67,541 10.54% 0.00%

Jayantilal K Patel  43,802 0.35% 0.00%  43,802 0.36% 0.00%

Rameshkumar Bhagwandas Patel  7,41,993 5.97% 4.00%  7,13,993 5.94% 0.00%

Kirtikumar Bhagwandas Patel  1,49,758 1.20% 23.00%  1,21,758 1.01% 0.00%

Vimalaben Bhagawandas Patel  3,37,497 2.72% 0.00%  3,37,497 2.81% 0.00%

Mukeshbhai B Patel  1,20,310 0.97% 0.00%  1,20,310 1.00% 0.00%

Vishnubhai Bhagwanbhai Patel  89,671 0.72% 0.00%  89,671 0.75% 0.00%

Dixit Bhagwandas Patel  2,10,652 1.69% 14.00%  1,85,502 1.54% 0.00%

Dalchhiben Bhagwanbhai Patel  43,155 0.35% 0.00%  43,155 0.36% 0.00%

Kaminiben Vishnubhai Patel  51,528 0.41% 0.00%  51,528 0.43% 0.00%

Chetnaben M Patel  1,38,600 1.12% 0.00%  1,38,600 1.15% 0.00%

Mittal Dixit Patel  33,600 0.27% 0.00%  33,600 0.28% 0.00%

Kantilal Kalidas Patel  55,150 0.44% 0.00%  55,150 0.46% 0.00%

Hansaben Rameshbhai Patel  31,021 0.25% 0.00%  31,021 0.26% 0.00%

Bhagvatiben Kirtibhai Patel  45,638 0.37% 0.00%  45,638 0.38% 0.00%

Sachin R Patel  20,038 0.16% 0.00%  20,038 0.17% 0.00%

Dixit Bhagwandas Patel Huf  12,180 0.10% 0.00%  12,180 0.10% 0.00%

Dynemic Holdings Private Limited  1,56,320 1.26% 0.00%  1,56,320 1.30% 0.00%

Total  36,56,379 29.42%  35,39,229 29.42% 0.00%

	 As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholder / members and other declarations received from shareholders regarding 
beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares.

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025  				            (Amount in Rs. in Lakhs)
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	 (e) For the period of 5 years immediately preceding the balance sheet date, aggregate number and class of shares allotted (a) as fully paid 
up pursuant to contract(s) without payment being received in cash -Nil, (Previous year - Nil) (b) as fully paid up by way of bonus shares  -Nil  
(Previous year - Nil) and (c) shares bought back  Nil (Previous year - Nil)

	 (f) Thare is no call unpaid by Directors or any Officers of the Company during the year.

14.2	 Other Equity	 (Amount in Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars  As at 31st March, 2025  As at 31st March, 2024

Securities Premium Account

Opening Balance  3,503.05  2,543.44 

Add : Premium received on issue of equity shares  1,194.00  1,027.84 

Less : Share issue expesnes adjusted against Security Premium  -    68.24 

Closing Balance  4,697.05  3,503.05 

General Reserve

Opening Balance  502.18  502.18 

Less: Utilised / Transfer during the year  -    -   

Closing Balance  502.18  502.18 

Retained Earnigs

Opening Balance  14,352.86  13,924.52 

Profit for the Year 1,499.21  406.24 

Items of Other Comprehensive Income recognised directly in Retained Earnings  -    -   

Remeasurements on Post-employment Defined Benefit Plans, Net of Tax 8.92  22.10 

Transfer to General Reserve  -    -   

Closing Balance  15,860.99  14,352.86 

Capital Reserve

Opening Balance  17.69  -   

Add: Addition during the year  -    17.69 

Less: Capital Reserve used during the year  -    -   

Closing Balance  17.69  17.69 

Warrants

Opening Balance  578.44  -   

Add: Warrants issued during the year  655.56  578.44 

Less: Shares issued against warants  1,234.00  -   

Closing Balance  -    578.44 

Total Other Equity  21,077.90  18,954.22 

	 Nature and purpose of each Reserve

	 Securities Premium Account

	 Securities Premium Account is used to record premium received on issue of shares. This reserve may be utilised in accordance with the provi-
sions of Section 52 of the Act.		

	 During the year, the Company has converted 4,00,000 warrants into equity shares at an issue price of ₹308.50 per share, comprising a face 
value of ₹10.00 and a share premium of ₹298.50 per share. As a result of this conversion Issued and subscribed capital increased by ₹40.00 
lakhs and Securities premium amount increased by Rs. 1194.00 lakhs.						    
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15	 Borrowings	 (Amount in Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars  As at 31st March, 2025  As at 31st March, 2024

Non-current
Secured
 * HDFC Bank Ltd.- Car Loans  4.52  7.43 
(Secured against the specific cars)
Defaults:-    NIL
Terms of Repayment -  60 Monthly instalments
Principal Amount- Rs. 14.00
Date of start of repayments- 05/09/2021
Nos of Installments- 36 monthly installments
Due Date of Last Installment- 05/08/2026
Rate of Interest- 13.06% 
Less: Current Maturities of Long-term Debt  3.14  2.91 
 * HDFC Bank Ltd.- Car Loans 8.64 10.44
(Secured against the specific cars)

Defaults:-    NIL
Terms of Repayment -  60 Monthly instalments
Principal Amount- Rs. 10.72
Date of start of repayments- 05/02/2024
Nos of Installments- 60 monthly installments
Due Date of Last Installment- 05/01/2029
Rate of Interest- 9.15% 
Less: Current Maturities of Long-term Debt  1.97  1.80 
Net Non Current Amount  8.05  13.16 
  * Citi Bank N.A.-- Term Loan FCTL-1  482.81  1,388.13 
Defaults:-    NIL
Terms of Repayment -   20 Quarterly Intallments after 12 months moratorium
Principal Amount- Total Amt.USD 5674526.54 equivalent of INR 4000.00 LACS
Principal Amount-1- USD 2870264.06 equivalent of INR 2000.00 LACS
Date of start of repayments-  29/08/2020
Nos of Installments- 20 Quarterly installments
Due Date of Last Installment- 29/05/2025
Rate of Interest- 5.60%
Terms of Repayment -   20 Quarterly Intallments after 12 months moratorium
Principal Amount-2- USD 2804262.48 equivalent of INR 2000.00 LACS
Date of start of repayments-  31/03/2021
Nos of Installments- 20 Quarterly installments
Due Date of Last Installment- 31/12/2025
Rate of Interest- 5.30%
Less: Current Maturities of Long-term Debt  482.81  927.22 
  * Citi Bank N.A.-- Term Loan FCTL-2  584.57  1,116.12 
Defaults:-    NIL
Terms of Repayment -   16 Quarterly Intallments after 12 months moratorium
Principal Amount-  USD 2732240.44 equivalent of INR 2000.00 LACS
Date of start of repayments-  30/06/2022
Nos of Installments- 16 Quarterly installments
Due Date of Last Installment- 30/03/2026
Rate of Interest- 4.00%
Less: Current Maturities of Long-term Debt  584.57  558.06 
Net Non Current Amount  -    1,018.97 
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(Amount in Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars  As at 31st March, 2025  As at 31st March, 2024

  * HDFC Bank-- Term Loan  800.00  1,600.00 

Defaults:-    NIL

Terms of Repayment -   20 Quarterly Intallments after 12 months moratorium

Principal Amount- INR 4000.00 LACS

Date of start of repayments-  01/07/2021

Nos of Installments- 20 Quarterly installments

Due Date of Last Installment- 17/03/2026

Rate of Interest- REPO Rate + 4.82% or 11.07% p.a.

Less: Current Maturities of Long-term Debt  800.00  800.00 

 * HDFC Bank Ltd (GECL) Loan-Term Loan-INR)  307.08  642.08 

Defaults:-    NIL

Terms of Repayment -   48 Monthly Intallments after 12 months moratorium

Principal Amount- INR 1340.00 LACS

Date of start of repayments-  01/04/2022

Nos of Installments- 48 Monthly installments

Due Date of Last Installment- 27/02/2026

Rate of Interest- 3_M_T_BILL + 0.85% or 7.19% p.a.

Less: Current Maturities of Long-term Debt  307.08  335.00 

 * HDFC Bank Ltd (GECL) Loan-Term Loan-INR)  1,237.69  1,883.44 

Defaults:-    NIL

Terms of Repayment -   48 Monthly Intallments after 12 months moratorium

Principal Amount- INR 2583.00 LACS

Date of start of repayments-  01/04/2023

Nos of Installments- 48 Monthly installments

Due Date of Last Installment- 01/03/2027

Rate of Interest- 3_M_T_BILL + 1.20% or 7.54% p.a.

Less: Current Maturities of Long-term Debt  645.75  645.75 

* Kotak Mahindra Bank Ltd -- Term Loan - INR  199.99  -   

Defaults:-    NIL

Terms of Repayment - 60 Monthly Intallments

Principal Amount- INR 199.99 Lakhs

Date of start of repayments-  01/05/2025

Nos of Installments- 60 Monthly installments

Due Date of Last Installment- 01/04/2030

Rate of Interest- REPO Rate + 3.25 or 9.50% p.a.

Less: Current Maturities of Long-term Debt  36.66  -   

Net Non Current Amount  755.26  2,344.77 

TOTAL NON CURRENT AMOUNT  763.31  3,376.90 
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	 (Amount in Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars  As at 31st March, 2025  As at 31st March, 2024

Current

Secured (At amortized cost)

Loans Repayable on Demand from Banks*

Bill Discounting Facilities

  * Citi Bank N.A. - PCFC  1,330.39  1,345.38 

  * HDFC BANK - PCFC  490.60  416.75 

  * Kotak Mahindra Bank Ltd - PIF  731.37  -   

Cash Credit/Export Credit Facilities

  * Citi Bank N.A.  990.88  730.36 

  * Axis Bank Ltd.  -    597.79 

  * Kotak Mahindra Bank Ltd  751.43  -   

  * HDFC Bank Ltd (C/C A/C)  1,667.57  1,425.50 

Loans Repayable on Demand from Banks Total  5,962.24  4,515.77 

Current Maturities of Long-term Debt

 * HDFC Bank Ltd.- Car Loans  5.11  4.71 

  * Citi Bank N.A.-- Term Loan FCTL-1  482.81  927.22 

  * Citi Bank N.A.-- Term Loan FCTL-2  584.57  558.06 

  * HDFC Bank-- Term Loan  800.00  800.00 

  * Kotak Mahindra Bank Ltd -- Term Loan  36.66  -   

 * HDFC Bank Ltd (GECL) Loan-Term Loan-INR)  307.08  335.00 

 * HDFC Bank Ltd (GECL) Loan-Term Loan-INR)  645.75  645.75 

Current Maturities of Long-term Debt  Total  2,861.99  3,270.74 

Unsecured (At amortized cost)

Loan from Directors  -    190.00 

Loan from Others  -    100.00 

TOTAL CURRENT AMOUNT  8,824.23  8,076.51 

15.1	 Refer Note No. 38 for Related parties transaction.

*Security for Working Capital						    

	 (a) 	 First pari passu hypothecation charge shared with HDFC Bank, Citi Bank and Kotak Mahindra Bank on all existing and future current 
assets of the Company.								      

	 (b) 	 Second pari passu hypothecation charge shared with HDFC Bank, Citi bank and Kotak Mahindra Bank on all Movable Fixed Assets of 
the company at Unit 1 (situated at GIDC, Ankleshwar) and Unit 2 (situated at GIDC, Ankleshwar).	

	 (c) 	 Second pari passu hypothecation charge shared with HDFC Bank and Citi bank on Movable Fixed Assets of the company at Unit 3 
(situated at GIDC, Dahej).					   

	 (d) 	 Second Pari passu registered mortgage charge shared with HDFC Bank, Citi Bank and Kotak Mahindra Bank on immoveable properties 
of the Company at Unit 1 (situated at GIDC, Ankleshwar) and Unit 2 (situated at GIDC, Ankleshwar), Unit 3 (situated at GIDC, Dahej) 
and Head office (Registered Office situated at Ahmedabad).						    

*Security for Term loan						    

	 (a) 	 Second pari passu hypothecation charge shared with HDFC Bank, Citi Bank and Kotak Mahindra Bank on all existing and future current 
assets of the Company.						    

	 (b) 	 First pari passu hypothecation charge shared with HDFC Bank, Citi Bank and Kotak Mahindra Bank on all Movable Fixed Assets of the 
Company at Unit 1 (situated at GIDC, Ankleshwar) and Unit 2 (situated at GIDC, Ankleshwar).				   	
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	 (c) 	 First pari passu hypothecation charge shared with HDFC Bank and Citi Bank on Movable Fixed Assets and Immovable assets of the 
company at Unit 3 (situated at GIDC, Dahej).					   

	 (d) 	 First Paripassu registered mortgage charge shared with HDFC Bank, Citi Bank and Kotak Mahindra Bank on immoveable properties 
at Unit 1 (situated at GIDC, Ankleshwar), Unit 2 (situated at GIDC, Ankleshwar) and Head office (Registered Office situated at Ah-
medabad).			 

*Security for ECLGS Loan						    

	 (a) 	 Second pari passu hypothecation charge shared with HDFC Bank on all existing and future current assets		

	 (b) 	 Second pari passu hypothecation charge shared with HDFC Bank on all Movable Fixed Assets of the company of Unit 1 (situated at 
GIDC, Ankleshwar), Unit 2 (situated at GIDC, Ankleshwar) and Unit 3 (situated at GIDC, Dahej).

	 (c) 	 Second Paripassu registered mortgage charge shared with HDFC Bankon immoveable properties at Unit 1 (situated at GIDC, Ankle-
shwar), Unit 2 (situated at GIDC, Ankleshwar) and Unit 3 (situated at GIDC, Dahej) and Head office (Registered Office situated at Ah-
medabad)	

* By personal guarantee of directors Shri  Bhagwandas K Patel, Shri Ramesh B Patel, & Shri Dixit B Patel. 	

(e)	 Reconciliation of quarterly returns submitted to banks where borrowings have been availed based on security of current assets.

Quarter 
Ended Particulars Amount as per 

books of account

"Amount as report-
ed in the quarterly 
return/statement"

Amount of differ-
ence

Reason for differ-
ences

Jun-24
Inventory  7,851.51  7,836.80  14.71 

Trade Receivable 
submitted to Bank 
considering Net of 

Advance.

Trade Receivables  6,002.91  5,753.88  249.03 

Sep-24
Inventory  7,965.48  7,863.44  102.04 

Trade Receivables  6,723.80  6,706.73  17.08 

Dec-24
Inventory  7,450.23  7,451.30 (1.07)

Trade Receivables  6,880.18  6,949.86 (69.69)

Mar-25
Inventory  8,222.61  8,222.61  -   

Trade Receivables  6,419.97  6,419.97  -   

15.1	 Refer Note 42 for details of carrying amount of assets pledged/ hypothecated as security for secured borrowings and Note 40 for informatio 
about liquidity risk and market risk on borrowings.

16	 Trade Payables	 (Amount in Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars  As at 31st March, 
2025

 As at 31st March, 
2024

Current

Trade Payables

Dues of Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises (Refer Note 33)  839.40  2,122.09 

Dues of Creditors other than Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises  6,764.06  4,699.58 

TOTAL  7,603.46  6,821.68 
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16.1    Refer Note 40 for information about liquidity risk and market risk on trade payables.

16.2	 Trade Payables ageing schedule					   

Particulars
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment#

Less than 1 
year 1-2 years 2-3 years  More than 3 

years  Total 

i) MSME  839.40  -    -    -    839.40 

(2,122.09)  -    -    -   (2,122.09)

(ii) Others  6,586.73  129.64  8.96  38.73  6,764.06 

(4,577.36) (51.45) (70.77)  -   (4,699.58)

(iii) Disputed dues – MSME  -    -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -    -   

(iv) Disputed dues - Others  -    -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -    -   

Total                                    FY  24-25 7,426.13 129.64 8.96 38.73 7,603.46

Total                                    FY  23-24 (6,699.45) (51.45) (70.77)  -   (6,821.68)

Note:-  The figures in brackets are for the previous year.

17	 Other Financial Liabilities

Particulars  As at 31st March, 2025  As at 31st March, 2024

Non-current

Other Sundry Creditors Payable for Expenses  -    0.01 

Security Deposits- Employee Bonds  0.02  0.42 

TOTAL  0.02  0.43 

Current

Business Credit card  0.03  91.73 

Unpaid Dividends (refer Note No.17.1 below)  3.59  5.07 

TOTAL  3.62  96.80 

17.1	 There are no due for transfer to the Investor Education and Protection Fund during the year as at the Balance Sheet date.

18	 Provisions

Particulars  As at 31st March, 2025  As at 31st March, 2024

Non-current

Provisions for Employee Benefits (Refer Note 36)  35.70  37.97 

TOTAL  35.70  37.97 

Current

Provision For Expenses  11.27  9.66 

Provisions for Employee Salary & Benefits (Refer Note 36)  152.54  130.57 

TOTAL  163.81  140.23 
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19	 Current Tax Liabilities

Particulars  As at 31st March, 2025  As at 31st March, 2024

A. Tax Expense Recognised in Profit or Loss

Curent Tax

Current Tax Liabilities  -    -   

B. Tax on Other Comprehensive Income

Current Tax

Remeasurements on Post-employment Defined Benefit Plans  -    -   

TOTAL  -    -   

19.1	 In view of absence of net taxable income as per provisions of Income Tax Act,1961 on account of carried forward losses of earlier years , no 
current tax provision is required to be provided for the year

20	 Other Current Liabilities		  (Amount in Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars  As at 31st March, 2025  As at 31st March, 2024

Dues Payable to Government Authorities @  20.20  40.50 

Advances from Customers  172.73  84.62 

TOTAL  192.93  125.12 

	 @ Dues Payable to Government Authorities comprise GST, sales tax, excise duty, withholding taxes, payroll taxes, service tax, value added tax, 
entry tax and other taxes payable.

21	 Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)

Particulars  For the year ended
31st March, 2025

 For the year ended 
31st March, 2024

Deferred Tax Liabilities/(Assets)  1,584.28  1,038.03 

TOTAL  1,584.28  1,038.03 

	 Significant  Movements  Deferred Tax  Assets and Liabilities during the year.

Particulars As at
31st March, 2024

 Recognised in 
Profit & Loss

 As at 
31st March, 2025

Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets  1,499.53  183.84  1,683.37 

Total Deferred Tax Liabilities  1,499.53  183.84  1,683.37 

Unabsorbed Loss (461.50) 362.41 (99.09)

Total Deferred Tax Assets (461.50) 362.41 (99.09)

Net Deferred Tax Liabilites (Assets)  1,038.03 546.25  1,584.28 

Significant  Movements  Deferred Tax  Assets and Liabilities during the year.

Particulars As at 
31st March, 2023

 Recognised in 
Profit & Loss 

 As at 
31st March, 2024

Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets  1,237.33  262.20  1,499.53 

Total Deferred Tax Liabilities  1,237.33  262.20  1,499.53 

Unabsorbed Loss (83.50) (378.00) (461.50)

Total Deferred Tax Assets (83.50) (378.00) (461.50)

Net Deferred Tax Liabilites (Assets)  1,153.83 (115.81)  1,038.03 
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22	 Revenue from Operations

Particulars As at 
31st March, 2025

As at
31st March, 2024

Sale of Products *
Manufactured Goods
     Dyes & Intermediates  12,151.44  7,554.92 
     Sythetic Food Colours  22,778.16  19,307.45 
Trading Goods  1,155.91  1,095.51 
Net Product Sales  36,085.50  27,957.89 
*(The above sales are net of (exclusive of) Inter Branch/ Unit Transfer)
Other Operating Revenues
Discounts Others  -    0.63 
Export Incentive Income  396.14  390.40 
Rates & Quality Difference  44.69  -   
Foreign Exchange Gain & Loss- Exports & Imports  198.51  22.47 
Scrap Sale Income  16.93  6.90 
Total Other Operating Revenues  656.28  420.40 

Total Revenue from Operations  36,741.78  28,378.28 

23	 Other Income	 (Amount in Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31st March, 2025

As at
31st March, 2024

Profit on Sales Investments  -    0.06 
Dividend Received  0.35  0.34 
Interest Income on
       - Fixed Deposits with Banks  18.85  18.69 
       - Staff Loan  0.60  0.33 
       - Income tax Refund  0.35  21.01 
       - Deposit with GEB & ETL  22.89  22.89 
Office Rent Income  0.12  0.12 
TOTAL  43.16  63.44 

24	 Cost of Materials Consumed

Particulars As at 
31st March, 2025

As at
31st March, 2024

Opening Stock  1,189.81  1,314.91 
Add: Purchases during the year *  19,128.42  13,412.81 

 20,318.23  14,727.72 
Less : Closing Stock  1,700.41  1,189.81 
TOTAL  18,617.82  13,537.90 
*(The above purchases are net of ( exclusive of) Inter Branch/ Unit transfers)

25	 Purchases of Stock-in-trade

Particulars As at 
31st March, 2025

As at
31st March, 2024

Chemical Items  914.08  874.44 
TOTAL  914.08  874.44 
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26	 Changes in Inventories

Particulars As at 
31st March, 2025

As at
31st March, 2024

OPENING INVENTORIES :

Finished Goods  4,210.96  4,141.44 

Finished Goods (Captive)  48.18  8.94 

Trading Stocks  2.81  21.34 

Work-in-Progress  898.42  862.06 

TOTAL  5,160.38  5,033.77 

CLOSING INVENTORIES :

Finished Goods  4,595.64  4,210.96 

Finished Goods ( Captive)  12.07  48.18 

Trading Stocks  10.45  2.81 

Work-in-Progress  1,104.63  898.42 

TOTAL  5,722.79  5,160.38 

TOTAL (562.42) (126.60)

27	 Employee Benefit Expenses	 (Amount in Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31st March, 2025

As at
31st March, 2024

Salary, Wages & Bonus  1,727.01  1,508.63 
Staff Welfare Exps.  147.52  111.88 
Salaries  & Bonus to Directors  284.29  245.69 
Refer Note No. 27.1
Contribution to Provident Fund & Other Funds  95.90  88.77 
Gratuity Inurance Premium  ( See Note 36)  25.55  32.62 
TOTAL  2,280.28  1,987.59 

27.1	 Refer Note No.38 for Related Parties Transactions

28	 Finance Costs

Particulars As at 
31st March, 2025

As at
31st March, 2024

Interest Expense on:  
    - Term Loans  356.41  579.82 
    - Cash Credit and Working Capital Demand Loan  409.77  383.13 
    - Others  77.08  97.85 
Foreign Exchange Difference regarded as an Adjustment to Borrowing Costs  218.16  178.58 
Bank and Other Finance Charges  77.81  49.51 
TOTAL  1,139.24  1,288.90 

28.1	 Refer Note No.38 for Related Parties Transactions

29	 Depreciation and Amortisation Expense

Particulars As at 
31st March, 2025

As at
31st March, 2024

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment (Refer Note 4.1)  1,635.18  1,660.56 
Amortisation of Expense  7.76  7.76 
TOTAL  1,642.93  1,668.31 

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025  				            (Amount in Rs. in Lakhs)



82 ANNUAL REPORT 2024-2025

30	 Other expenses

Particulars As at 
31st March, 2025

As at
31st March, 2024

Other Manufacturing Expenses (Refer Note 30.1)  9,125.65  7,444.75 
Repairs and Maintenance Expenses (Refer Note 30.2)  722.14  680.98 
Administrative and Other Expenses (Refer Note 30.3)  746.75  633.11 
Selling and distribution expenses (Refer Note 30.4)  112.28  150.57 
TOTAL  10,706.82  8,909.41 

30.1	 Other Manufacturing Expenses

Particulars As at 
31st March, 2025

As at
31st March, 2024

PACKING MATERIAL CONSUMED
Op. Stock  36.18  25.84 
Add: Purchases during the year  569.09  508.16 

 605.27  534.00 
Less : Closing stock  18.50  36.18 
Total  586.77  497.82 
E.T.P MATERIAL CONSUMED
Op. Stock  9.97  7.88 
Add: Purchases during the year  341.47  196.66 

 351.44  204.54 
Less : Closing stock  3.62  9.97 
Total  347.82  194.57 

POWER & FUEL CONSUMED
Electric Power & Burning  1,933.12  1,674.44 
Fuel Purchased & Consumed  1,110.72  1,306.40 
Gas Consumption Charges  1,464.21  1,207.00 
Total  4,508.05  4,187.85 
OTHER MFGS. EXPENSES
Consumable Stores  412.62  264.98 
ETP Expense  803.05  551.63 
Factory & Other Expenses  160.35  102.47 
Rates & Quality Difference (Purchase)  -    0.49 
Forwarding & Handling Charges  513.96  412.06 
Labour & Job Charges  1,487.25  1,017.76 
Transportations Expenses  305.77  215.13 
Total  3,683.01  2,564.52 

TOTAL  9,125.65  7,444.75 
30.2	 Repairs and Maintenance Expenses 

Particulars As at 
31st March, 2025

As at
31st March, 2024

Building & Premises Repairing  82.53  50.79 
Consumable Stores (Plant, MEE & Electricals)  353.33  320.18 
Repairing & Maintenance- Others  19.67  11.36 
Machinery Parts, Repairs & Maintenance  266.61  298.65 
TOTAL  722.14  680.98 
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30.3	 Administrative and Other Expenses

Particulars As at 
31st March, 2025

As at
31st March, 2024

Angadia & Courier Exp  22.48  19.97 
Consultancy & Professional Fees  49.32  38.92 
Cost Audit Fees  1.15  1.15 
Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses (Refer Note No.:30.4)  15.75  40.62 
FDA Approval Fees  94.87  35.66 
Insurance Premium  92.60  86.90 
Lab-Testing Expense  25.39  20.62 
Loss/Profits on sale/w/o of assets  3.03  2.37 
Office Electric Bill Exp.  3.77  3.33 
Other Administrative & Estabishment Exps  23.52  36.55 
Legal & Other Fees  73.68  43.44 
Payments to Auditors (Refer Note No: 30.5)  8.51  8.51 
Security Exp  88.61  77.60 
Stationery & Printing Expense  26.40  15.57 
Sitting Fees to Directors  0.96  1.36 
Telephone Exps-Others  3.09  2.18 
Travelling & Conveyance  116.29  121.61 
Water Charges  97.32  76.75 
TOTAL  746.75  633.11 

30.4	 Selling and distribution expenses					   

Particulars
 For the year ended 

31 March 2025

 For the year ended 

31 March 2024

Exhibition Exp.  32.92  21.35 

Sales Promotion Exps  6.07  12.20 

Selling Commission  73.29  117.01 

TOTAL  112.28  150.57 
30.4.1 Refer Note No.38 for Related Parties Transactions
30.5	 Payments to Auditors comprise

Particulars
 For the year ended 

31 March 2025

 For the year ended 

31 March 2024

Statutory Auditors

     - Statutory Audit Fee  8.51  8.51 
30.6	 Corporate Social Responsibility Expenditure:
	 As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a company, meeting the applicability threshold, needs to spend at least 2% of its average 

net profit for the immediately preceding three financial years on corporate social responsibility (CSR) activities. The areas for CSR activities 
are eradication of hunger and malnutrition, promoting education, art and culture, healthcare, destitute care and rehabilitation, environment 
sustainability, disaster relief, COVID-19 relief and rural development projects as specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013

	 A CSR committee has been formed by the company as per the Act. The funds were primarily utilized through the year on these activities which 
are specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013:						    
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Particulars  As at 31st March, 2025  As at 31st March, 2024 

a)    Amount required to be spent as per Section 135 of the Companies Act 
2013 for the year

 14.89  38.36

b)    Amount of expenditure incurred as approved by Board  15.05  38.37

c)    Shortfall/ (Excess) at the end of the year  (0.16)  (0.01)

d)   Total of previous years shortfall  Nil  Nil 

e)   Reason for shortfall  NA  NA 

f)     Nature of CSR activities  CSR initiatives Related to the 
Environment

 Women Empowerment, 
Medical, Rural Develop-
ment, Education, Food, 

Environment Protection etc 

g)    Details of related party transactions e.g.,contribution to a trust con-
trolled by the company in relation to CSR expenditure

0.00  00.00

h)    Where a provision is made with respect to a liability incurred by enter-
ing into a contractual obligation, the movements in the provision during the 
year should be shown separately.

 N.A  N.A 

31	 Income Tax Expense

Particulars As at 
31st March, 2025

As at
31st March, 2024

A. Tax Expense recognised in Profit or Loss

Current Tax

Current Tax on Profits for the Year

Adjustment for Current Tax of Earlier Years  0.73  11.34 

 0.73  11.34 

Deferred Tax

Origination and Reversal of Temporary Differences 546.25 (115.81)

Income Tax Expense 546.99 (104.47)

B. Tax on Other Comprehensive Income

Current Tax

Remeasurements on Post-employment Defined Benefit Plans  -    -   

31.1	 Numerical Reconciliation of Income Tax Expense to Prima Facie Tax Payable	 (Amount in Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31st March, 2025

As at
31st March, 2024

Profit before Income Tax Expense  2,046.19  301.77 

Enacted Statutory Income Tax Rate in India applicable to the Company 25.168% 25.168%

Computed Expected Income Tax Expense  514.99  75.95 

Tax effect of:

Expenses disallowed (155.31) (66.98)

Adjustment for Current Tax of Earlier Years  0.73  11.34 

Decremental of DTA on account of carry forward loss (359.68) (8.97)

Total of Tax effect (514.25) (64.61)

Current Tax Provision (A)  0.74  11.34 

Incremental DTL / (DTA) on account of Property, Plant and Equipment  183.84  262.20 

Incremental DTL / (DTA) on account of carry forward loss  362.41 (378.00)

Deferred Tax Provision (B)  546.25 (115.81)

Tax Expenses Recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss (A+B)  546.99 (104.47)
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32	 Earnings per Equity Share

Particulars As at 
31st March, 2025

As at
31st March, 2024

(A) Basic

(i) Number of Equity Shares at the Beginning of the Year  1,20,28,387  1,16,94,113 

(ii) Number of Equity Shares at the End of the Year  1,24,28,387  1,20,28,387 

(iii) Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares  1,20,56,880  1,18,55,536 

Outstanding during the Year

(iv) Face Value of Each Equity Share (Rs.)  10.00  10.00 

(v) Profit after Tax Available for Equity Shareholders Profit for the Year 1,499.21 406.24

(vi) Basic Earnings per Equity Share (Rs.) 12.43 3.43

(vi) Basic Earnings per Equity Share (Restated) 12.43 3.43

(B) Diluted

(ii) Diluted Earnings per Equity Share (Rs.) 12.43 3.43

(ii) Diluted Earnings per Equity Share (Rs.) (Restated) 12.43 3.43

33	 Information relating to Micro and Small Enterprises (MSEs)

Particulars As at 
31st March, 2025

As at
31st March, 2024

(1) The principal amount and the interest due thereon remain-
ing unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each accounting year

Principal Amount  839.40  2,122.09 

Interest Amount  -    -   

(2) The amount of interest paid by the buyer under MSMED Act, 
2006 along with the amounts of the payment made to the sup-
plier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year;

Principal Amount  -    -   

Interest Amount  -    -   

(3) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment 
(which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without add-
ing the interest specified

 -    -   

(4) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting 
year

(5) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding 
years, until such date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small enter-
prise, for the Purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure

Note: The above information has been determined based on vendors identified by the Company and confirmed by the vendors, Whenev-
er it is not confirmed, it is presented as other than Micro, or Small Enterprise.

34	 Contingent Liabilities	 (Amount in Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31st March, 2025

As at
31st March, 2024

A ) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts:
Taxes, duties and other demands (under appeal/dispute)
(i) The aggregate amount involved in the various Show Cause Notices issued by Office of the 
Superintendent of Central Excise & Customs, Range-II, Division-II, Ankleshwar regarding the 
Cenvat Credit availed by the Company on some services is not admissible to them and such 
wrongful availment and utilization of Cenvat Credit liablle to be reversed. The Company has 
filed replies to the said Show Cause Notices

 64.85  64.85 

(ii) Deemed Dividend U/s 2(22)(e) of Income Tax Act 1961, for AY 2012-13, appeal is pendnig 
with CIT Apeals-I

 12.92  12.92 

(iii) Penalty u/s 270A  of Income Tax Act 1961, for AY 2017-18, appeal is pendnig with CIT 
Apeals-I

 35.13  35.13 

(b) Guarantees
Bank Guarantees  / Letter of Credits  159.60  242.00 
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35	 Commitments

Particulars As at 
31st March, 2025

As at
31st March, 2024

(a) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and  -    -   

not provided for (net of advances)

36	 Employee Benefits :-	 				  

	 (I)    Post Employment Defined Benefits Plans :						    

	 (A)   Gratuity (Funded)						    

	 The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering eligible employees. As per the plan, the Gratuity Fund Trusts, 
administered and managed by the Trustees and funded primarily with Life Insurance Corporation of India (LICI), make payment to vested 
employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of employment, of an amount based on the respective employee’s salary and 
the tenure of employment. Vesting occurs upon completion of five years of service. The Trustees are responsible for the overall governance 
of the plan and to act in accordance with the provisions of the trust deed and rules in the best interests of the plan participants. Each year an 
Asset-Liability matching study is performed in which the consequences of the strategic investment policies are analysed in terms of risk and re-
turn profiles. Investment and contribution policies are integrated within this study. Liabilities with regard to the Gratuity Plan are determined 
by actuarial valuation as set out in Note 2(t)(ii) above, based upon which, the Company makes contributions to the Employees’ Gratuity Funds.

	 The following table sets forth the particulars in respect of the Gratuity Plan (Funded) of the Company:	 (Amount in Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31st March, 2025

As at
31st March, 2024

(a) Reconciliation of Opening and Closing Balances of the Present Value of Defined Benefit 
Obligations:-

     Present Value of Obligation at the beginning of the year  270.85  248.32 

     Current Service Cost  26.92  28.07 

     Past Service Cost  -    -   

     Interest Cost  19.56  18.62 

     Remeasurements Losses  -    -   

     Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due to Change in Demographic Assumptions  -    -   

     Actuarial Losses arising from Changes in Financial Assumptions 7.06 6.87

     Actuarial Losses arising from Changes in Experience Adjustments (17.39) (26.27)

     Benefits Paid (11.89) (4.76)

Present Value of Obligation at the end of the year  295.10  270.85 

(b) Reconciliation of the Opening and Closing Balances of the Fair Value of Plan Assets:

     Fair Value of Plan Assets at the beginning of the year  289.87  201.52 

     Interest Income  20.93  15.11 

     Remeasurements Gains  -    -   

     Actuarial Losses arising from Changes in Experience Adjustments  -    -   

     Return on Plan Assets (excluding amount included in Net Interest Cost) (1.42) 2.70

     Contributions by Employer  36.37  75.30 

     Benefits Paid (11.89) (4.76)

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the year  333.86  289.87 
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( c) Reconciliation of the Present Value of the defined benefits Obligation and the Fair Value 
of Plan Assets - Amount Recognized in the Balance Sheet:

     (Present Value of Obligation at the end of the year) (295.10) (270.85)

     Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the year 333.86 289.87

     Fund Status (Surplus/ Deficit)) 38.76 19.02

Net (Liabilities)/ Assets Recognised in the Balance Sheet 38.76 19.02

(d) Actual Return on Plan Assets  20.93  15.11 

(e) Expense Recognisable in Profit or Loss :

     Current Service Cost  26.92  28.07 

     Net Interest Cost (1.37)  3.51 

     Past Service Cost  -    -   

     Expenses Recognised in Profit or Loss for Current Period@  25.55  31.58 

(f) Expenses Recognized in the Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) for Current Period

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligation For the Period (10.34) (19.40)

Return on Plan Assets, Excluding Interest Income 1.42 (2.70)

Change in Asset Ceiling  -    -   

Net (Income)/Expense For the Period Recognized in OCI (8.92) (22.10)

(g)   Balance Sheet Reconciliation

Opening Net Liability (19.02)  46.80 

Expenses Recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss  25.55  31.58 

Expenses Recognized in OCI (8.92) (22.10)

     Net Liability/(Asset) Transfer In  -    -   

     Net (Liability)/Asset Transfer Out  -    -   

     (Benefit Paid Directly by the Employer)  -    -   

     (Employer's Contribution) (36.37) (75.30)

Net Liability/(Asset) Recognized in the Balance Sheet (38.76) (19.02)

(h) Category of Plan Assets:

     Funded with LIC 100.00% 100.00%

     Insurance fund  333.86  289.87 

     Total  333.86  289.87 

(i) Maturity profile of Defined Benefits Obligations:

     1st Following Year  45.59  46.39 

     2nd Following Year  7.43  5.70 

     3rd Following Year  20.08  7.37 

     4th Following Year  8.95  19.83 

     5th Following Year  26.20  8.59 

     Sum of Years 6 To 10  96.94  109.82 

     Sum of Years 11 and above  509.92  468.59 
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(j) Actuarial Assumptions:

     Expected Returns on Plan Assets 7.22% 7.22%

     Rate of Discounting 7.22% 7.22%

     Rate of Salary Increase 7.00% 7.00%

     Rate of Employee Turnover 2.00% 2.00%

     Mortality Rate During Employment  Indian Assured 
Lives Mortality 

2012-14 (Urban) 

 Indian Assured 
Lives Mortality 

2012-14 (Urban) 

(k) Other Details:

     No of Members in Service  468  446 

     Per Month Salary For Members in Service 62.08 61.01

     Weighted Average Duration of the Defined Benefit Obligation  11  11 

     Average Expected Future Service  20  20 

     Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO) - Total 295.10 270.85

     Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO) - Due but Not Paid  -    -   

(l) Net Interest Cost for Next Year

     Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the End of the Period 295.10 270.85

     (Fair Value of Plan Assets at the End of the Period) (333.86) (289.87)

     Net Liability/(Asset) at the End of the Period (38.76) (19.02)

     Interest Cost 20.54 19.56

     (Interest Income) (23.24) (20.93)

     Net Interest Cost for Next Year (2.70) (1.37)

(m) Expenses Recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss for Next Year

     Current Service Cost 28.71 26.92

     Net Interest Cost (2.70) (1.37)

     (Expected Contributions by  the Employees ) 0.00 0.00

     Expenses Recoginised 26.01 25.55

(n) Sensitivity Analysis

     Defined Benefit Obligation on Current Assumptions  295.10  270.85 

     Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Discounting (25.49) (23.13)

     Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Discounting  30.41  27.43 

     Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Salary Increase  26.78  24.34 

     Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Salary Increase (24.37) (22.21)

     Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Employee Turnover (0.05)  0.69 

     Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Employee Turnover (0.00) (0.84)

	 The sensitivity analysis have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of 
the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant.						    

	 The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the Defined Benefit Obligation as it is unlikely that 
the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

	 Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the Defined Benefit Obligation has been calculated using the 
projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same method as applied in calculating the Defined Benefit Obli-
gation as recognised in the balance sheet.						    

	 There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years.The estimate of future salary 
increases takes into account inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as demand and supply in the employment market.
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	 (II) Post Employment Defined Contributions Plans :

	 (A) Provident Fund

	 Certain categories of employees of the Company receive benefits from a provident fund, a defined contribution plan. Both the employee and 
employer make monthly contributions to a government administered fund at specified percentage of the covered employee’s qualifying sal-
ary. The Company has no further obligations under the plan beyond its monthly contributions. During the year, an amount of Rs. 89.77 Lakhs 
(Previous Year Rs. 81.56 Lakhs) has been recognised as expenditure towards above defined contribution plans of the Company.

	 (III) Leave Obligations

	 The Company provides for accumulation of leave by certain categories of its employees. These employees can carry forward a portion of the 
unutilised leave balances and utilise it in future periods or receive cash (only in case of earned leave) in lieu thereof as per the Company’s 
policy. The Company records a provision for leave obligations in the period in which the employee renders the services that increases this en-
titlement. The total provision recorded by the Company towards this obligation was Rs. 45.00 Lakhs, and Rs. 47.42 Lakhs at 31st March, 2025, 
and 31st March, 2024 respectively. The amount of the provision is presented as current, since the Company does not have an unconditional 
right to defer settlement for any of these obligations. However, based on past experience, the Company does not expect all employees to take 
the full amount of accrued leave or require payment within the next 12 months. 

	 (IV) Risk Exposure

	 Through its defined benefit plans, the Company is exposed to some risks, the most signifcant of which are detailed below:

	 Interest rate risk: A fall in the discount rate which is linked to the G.Sec. Rate will increase the present value of the liability requiring higher 
provision. A fall in the discount rate generally increases the mark to market value of the assets depending on the duration of asset.	

	 Salary Risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of members. As such, an 
increase in the salary of the members more than assumed level will increase the plan’s liability.				  

	 Investment Risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate which is determined by reference to 
market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds. If the return on plan asset is below this rate, it will create a plan deficit. 
Currently, for the plan in India, it has a relatively balanced mix of investments in government securities, and other debt instruments.	

	 Asset Liability Matching Risk: The plan faces the ALM risk as to the matching cash flow. Since the plan is invested in lines of Rule 101 of Income 
Tax Rules, 1962, this generally reduces ALM risk.						    

	 Mortality risk: Since the benefits under the plan is not payable for life time and payable till retirement age only, plan does not have any lon-
gevity risk.						    

	 Concentration Risk: Plan is having a concentration risk as all the assets are invested with the insurance company and a default will wipe out all 
the assets. Although probability of this is very low as insurance companies have to follow stringent regulatory				  

	 - During the year, there were no plan amendments, curtailments and settlements.

37.	 Segment Reporting

	 Description of Segments and Principal Activities						    

	 The activities of the company during the year was to manufacturing of Dyes & Intermediates. Considering the nature of business and op-
eration as well as based on reviews of operating results by chief operating decision maker to make decision about resource allocation and 
performances measurement, there is only one reporting segment in accordance with the requirement of Ind As - 108 - “ Operating Segments”.

38	 Related Party Disclosures:

38.1	 List of related parties

( i )	 Subsidiary Company
	 Cerecon Bio Sciences Private Limited
(ii)	 Associates :-
	 Dynemic Holdings Pvt Ltd.
(iii)	 Key Management Personnel :-
	 Mr. B. K. Patel		  Managing Director	
	 Mr. Rameshbhai B. Patel		  Joint Managing Director	
	 Mr. Dixit B. Patel		  Joint Managing Director	
	 Ms. Varsha Mehta		  Company Secretary	
	 Mr. Ankit Shah		  Chief Financial Officer	
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(iv)	 Independent Directors :-
	 Mr. Vikashkumar Jain
	 Mr. Iyengar Padmanabhan Kannan
	 Mrs. Rashmi K. Otavani (Woman director)
(v)	 Relatives of Key Managerial Personnel :-
	 Mr. Sachin R. Patel
	 Mr. Mukesh B.  Patel
	 Mrs. Chetna M. Patel
38.2	 Transactions with related parties :-

Sr. No. Particulars Name of Person / Entity As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024

1 Remuneration / Salary Expense Mr. B. K. Patel 111.95 99.38

Mr. Rameshbhai B. Patel 93.82 85.53

Mr. Dixit B. Patel 97.37 88.29

Ms. Varsha Mehta 12.68 11.13

Mr. Ankit Shah 13.09 12.21

Mr. Sachin R. Patel 3.53 2.92

Mr. Mukesh B.  Patel 18.71 19.05

2 Sitting Fees Mr. Jagdish S. Shah 0.00 0.40

Mr. Vikashkumar Jain 0.32 0.00

Mr. Iyengar Padmanabhan Kannan 0.32 0.00

Mr. Shankarlal B. Mundra 0.00 0.48

Mrs. Rashmi K. Otavani 0.32 0.48

3 Sale of Goods & Services Cerecon Bio Sciences Pvt. Ltd. 91.09 285.97

Dynemic Holdings Pvt Ltd 0.12 0.12

4 Purchase of Goods & Services Cerecon Bio Sciences Pvt. Ltd. 3.03 1.58

5 Commission Paid Mrs. Chetna M. Patel 22.58 23.28

Mr. Mukesh B.  Patel 11.26 0.00

6 Loan Taken Mr. B. K. Patel 0.00 132.00

Mr. Rameshbhai B. Patel 0.00 117.50

Mr. Dixit B. Patel 2.50 27.00

7 Loan Repaid Mr. B. K. Patel 90.00 42.00

Mr. Rameshbhai B. Patel 100.00 17.50

Mr. Dixit B. Patel 2.50 27.00

8 Interest Expense on Loan Mr. B. K. Patel 5.80 1.48

Mr. Rameshbhai B. Patel 12.00 12.50

Mr. Dixit B. Patel 0.08 0.37
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38.3	 Outstanding Balance :-

Sr. No. Particulars Name of Person / Entity As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024
1 Remuneration / Salary Expense Mr. B. K. Patel 6.67 0.57

Mr. Rameshbhai B. Patel 4.64 0.04
Mr. Dixit B. Patel 3.07 2.42
Ms. Varsha Mehta 0.92 0.87
Mr. Ankit Shah 1.05 0.74
Mr. Sachin R. Patel 0.26 0.22
Mr. Mukesh B.  Patel 0.94 0.57

2 Loan Mr. B. K. Patel 0.00 90.00
Mr. Rameshbhai B. Patel 0.00 100.00

38.4	 Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties Transactions relating to dividend were on the same terms and conditions that 
applied to other shareholders. The sales to and purchases from related parties are made in the ordinary course of business. Outstanding bal-
ances at the year-end are unsecured and interest free and settlement occurs in cash/cheque. No provisions are held against receivables from 
related parties. There are no loans outstanding with related parties.

39	 Fair Value Measurements

(i) Financial Instruments by Category  31st March 2025  31st March 2024 
 Carrying Amount/ Fair Value  Carrying Amount/ Fair Value 

Financial Assets
Assets Carried at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
Investments
Other Financial Assets  -    -   
Assets Carried at Amortised Cost
Investments  131.22  131.22 
Trade Receivables  6,419.97  5,506.49 
Cash and Cash Equivalents  32.08  8.81 
Other Bank Balances  167.03  162.90 
Loans  6.84  3.27 
Other Financial Assets  1,873.30  1,881.86 
Total Financial Assets  8,630.45  7,694.55 
Financial Liabilities
Liabilities Carried at Amortised Cost
Borrowings (including current
maturities and interest accrued)  9,587.54  11,453.41 
Trade Payables  7,603.46  6,821.68 
Other Financial Liabilities  3.64  97.24 
Total Financial Liabilities  17,194.63  18,372.32 

(ii)	 Fair Values						    

	 The fair values of financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability 
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Methods and assumptions used to estimate the fair values 
are consistent with those used for the year ended 31st March, 2025.						    

	 The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:						    

	 (a) In respect of investments in mutual funds, the fair values represent net asset value as stated by the issuers of these mutual fund units in 
the published statements. Net asset values represent the price at which the issuer will issue further units in the mutual fund and the price at 
which issuers will redeem such units from the investors. Accordingly, such net asset values are analogous to fair market value with respect to 
these investments, as transactions of these mutual funds are carried out at such prices between investors and the issuers of these units of 
mutual funds.			 

	 (b) The fair value of foreign exchange forward contracts is determined using forward exchange rates at the Balance Sheet date.		
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	 (c) The management assessed that fair values, of trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, other financial assets 
(current), investments in commercial papers, trade payables, borrowings (current) and other financial liabilities (current), approximate to their 
carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments. Further, management also assessed the carrying amount of 
certain loans and long-term borrowings at floating interest rates which are a reasonable approximation of their fair values and the difference 
between the carrying amounts and fair values is not expected to be significant.	 				  

	 (d) The fair value of remaining financial instruments is determined on discounted cash flow analysis using a current lending/discount rate, as 
considered appropriate. For financial assets carried at fair value, the carrying amounts are equal to their fair values.

	 (iii)	 Fair Value Hierarchy

	 This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are (a) recognised 
and measured at fair value and (b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the standalone financial statements. 
To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has classified its financial instruments 
into three levels prescribed under the accounting standard. An explanation of each level follows below.

	 Level-1 :	 Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

	 Level-2 :	 Inputs are other than quoted prices included within Level-1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as 
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).						    

	 Level-3 :	 Inputs are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). Fair values are determined in whole or in part using a 
valuation model based on the assumptions that are neither supported by prices from observable current market transactions in 
the same instrument nor are they based on available market data.

40	 Financial Risk Management					   
	 The Company’s activities expose it to credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk. In order to safeguard against any adverse effects on the finan-

cial performance of the Company, derivative financial instruments, such as foreign exchange forward contracts are entered as per Company’s 
policy to hedge certain foreign currency risk exposures. Derivatives are used exclusively for hedging purposes and not as trading or specula-
tive intruments The Company’s senior management oversees the management of above risks. The senior executives working to manage the 
financial risks are accountable to the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors. This process provides assurance to the Company’s senior 
management that the Company’s financial risks-taking activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks 
are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company’s policies and the Company’s risk appetite.

	 This Note explains the sources of risk which the entity is exposed to and how the entity manages the risk. The Board of Directors reviews and 
agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below:

	 (A) Credit Risk
	 Credit risk refers to the risk of default on its obligation by the counterparty resulting in a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk 

from its operating activities (primarily Trade Receivables) and from its investing activities (primarily Deposits with Banks and Investments in 
Mutual Funds).

	 Trade Receivables

	 Trade receivables are typically unsecured and are derived from revenue earned from customers. Customer credit risk is managed by each 
business unit subject to the Company’s policy and procedures which involve credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously mon-
itoring the credit worthiness of customers to which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business. Outstanding customer 
receivables are regularly monitored and any shipments to major customers are generally covered by letters of credit or other forms of credit 
assurance. On account of adoption of Ind AS 109, the Company uses expected credit loss model to assess the impairment loss. The Company 
uses a provision matrix to compute the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables. The provision matrix takes into account available 
external and internal credit risk factors and the Company’s historical experience with customers.

	 The Company’s exposure to customers is diversified and no single customer contributes to more than 10% of total revenues.

	 Other Financial Assets						    

	 Credit risk from balances with banks, term deposits, loans, investments and derivative instruments is managed by Company’s finance de-
partment. Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties who meet the minimum threshold requirements. The 
Company monitors ratings, credit spreads and financial strength of its counterparties. The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk for the 
components of the Balance Sheet as of 31st March, 2025, and 31st March, 2024  is the carrying amounts as disclosed in Note 39.

	 Financial Assets that are Neither Past Due Nor Impaired

	 None of the Company’s cash equivalents with banks, loans and investments were past due or impaired as at 31st March, 2025 and 31st March, 
2024 . Of the total trade receivables Rs. 6419.97 Lakhs as at 31st March, 2025 and  Rs. 5506.49 Lakhs as at 31st March, 2024 consisted of 
customer balances that were neither past due nor impaired.
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	 Financial Assets that are Past Due but Not Impaired
	 The Company’s credit period for customers generally ranges from 0 - 180 days. The ageing of trade receivables that are past due but not im-

paired (net of provisions/allowances) is given below:

Period (in days) 31st March 2025 31st March 2024 
01-90  5,327.89  5,117.76 
91-180  996.12  320.70 
More than 180  95.96  68.03 

	 Receivables are deemed to be past due or impaired with reference to the Company’s normal terms and conditions of business. These terms 
and conditions are determined on a case to case basis with reference to the customer’s credit quality and prevailing market conditions. Re-
ceivables that are classified as ‘past due’ in the above tables are those that have not been settled within the terms and conditions that have 
been agreed with that customer.

	 Other than trade receivables, the Company has no significant class of financial assets that is past due but not impaired.
	 (B) Liquidity Risk						    
	 Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able to meet its present and future cash and collateral obligations without incurring un-

acceptable losses. The Company’s objective is to, at all times maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet its cash and collateral requirements. 
The Company closely monitors its liquidity position and maintains adequate sources of financing.

	 (i) Financing Arrangements
	 The Company had access to the following undrawn borrowing facilities (excluding non-fund based facilities) at the end of the reporting period:

31st March 2025 31st March 2024 

Floating Rate

Expiring within one year (working capital facilities)  137.76  584.23 
	 The working capital facilities may be drawn at any time and may be terminated by the bank without notice.
	 Subject to the continuance of satisfactory credit ratings, the above facilities may be drawn at any time within one year.	
	 (ii) Maturities of Financial Liabilities
	 The table below analyse the Company’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual maturities.
	 The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.	

Contractual Maturities of Financial Liabilities Within 1 year  Between 1 and 3 year  Total 
31st March, 2025
Borrowings  8,824.23  763.31  9,587.54 
Trade Payables  7,603.46  -    7,603.46 
Other Financial Liabilities  3.62  0.02  3.64 
Total  16,431.31  763.33  17,194.63 
31st March, 2024

Borrowings  8,076.51  3,376.90  11,453.41 
Trade Payables  6,821.68  -    6,821.68 
Other Financial Liabilities  96.80  0.43  97.24 
Total  14,994.99  3,377.34  18,372.32 

	 (C) Market Risk

	 (i) Foreign Currency Risk

	 Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value of the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign 
exchange rates. The Company transacts business in local currency and in foreign currencies (primarily US Dollars and Euro). The Company has 
obtained foreign currency loans and has foreign currency trade receivables, trade payables and other financial assets/liabilities and is there-
fore exposed to foreign currency risk.

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025  				            (Amount in Rs. in Lakhs)
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	 (a) Foreign Currency Risk Exposure:						    

	 The Company’s exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period expressed in INR, are as follows:

31st March 2025 31st March 2024

USD EURO OTHER USD  EURO  OTHER 

Financial Assets

Trade Receivables  3,548.96  45.67  225.11  3,719.31  260.38  533.53 

Bank Balance in EEFC Account  1.27  -    -    6.79  -    -   

Other Financial Assets  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Derivative Assets  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Foreign Exchange Forward 
Contracts  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Net Exposure to Foreign 
Currency Risk (Assets)  3,550.23  45.67  225.11  3,726.10  260.38  533.53 

Financial Liabilities

Borrowings (including Current 
maturities) 3,688.36  -    -   4,104.25  -    -   

Trade Payables 1,172.52  -    -   946.90  -    -   

Other Financial Liabilities  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Derivative Assets  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Foreign Exchange Forward 
Contracts  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Net Exposure to Foreign 
Currency Risk (Liabilities) 4,860.89 0.00 0.00 5,051.15 0.00 0.00

Net Exposure to Foreign Cur-
rency Risk (Assets -Liabilities) (1,310.66) 45.67 225.11 (1,325.05) 260.38 533.53

	 (b) Sensitivity

	 The sensitivity of profit or loss to changes in the foreign exchange rates arises mainly from foreign currency denominated financial instruments.

Particulars
 Impact on Profit before tax 

 31st March, 2025  31st March, 2024 

USD Sensitivity

INR/USD -Increase by 1%* (13.11) (13.25)

INR/USD -Decrease by 1%*  13.11  13.25 

Euro Sensitivity

INR/EUR-Increase by 1%*  0.46  2.60 

INR/EUR-Decrease by 1%* (0.46) (2.60)

	 * Holding all other variables constant

	 (ii) Interest Rate Risk

	 Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest 
rates. The Company’s exposure to risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s debt interest obligation. Further 
the Company engages in financing activities at market linked rates, any changes in the interest rate environment may impact future rates of 
borrowings. To manage this, the Company may enter into interest rate swaps. The management also maintains a portfolio mix of floating and 
fixed rate debt.
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	 The Company’s fixed rate borrowings and investments in term deposits with bank are carried at amortised cost. They are therefore not subject 
to interest rate risk as defined in Ind AS 107, since neither the carrying amount nor the future cash flows will fluctuate because of changes in 
market interest rates.

	 (a) Interest Rate Risk Exposure
	 The exposure of the Company’s borrowings to interest rate changes at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Particulars  31st March 2025  31st March 2024 

Non Current - Floating (including Current Maturities)  2,544.76  4,125.52 

Non Current - Fixed (including Current Maturities)  1,080.54  2,522.12 

Working capital Loans - Floating  5,962.24  4,515.77 

Total Borrowings  9,587.54  11,163.41 
		

	 (b) Sensitivity						    
	 Profit or loss is sensitive to higher/lower interest expense from borrowings as a result of changes in interest rates.

Particulars  Impact on Profit before tax 

 31st March, 2024  31st March, 2023 

Variable Rate Borrowings

Interest Rates - Increase by 100 basis points (100 bps) * (85.07) (86.41)

Interest Rates - Decrease by 100 basis points (100 bps) * 85.07 86.41

Fixed Rate Borrowings

Interest Rates - Increase by 100 basis points (100 bps) * (10.81) (25.22)

Interest Rates - Decrease by 100 basis points (100 bps) * 10.81 25.22
	 * Holding all other variables constant
	 (iii) Commodity Price Risk
	 Exposure to market risk with respect to commodity prices primarily arises from the Company’s sales of dyes and intermediates, including the 

raw material components for such products. Cost of raw materials forms the largest portion of the Company’s cost of sales. Market forces 
generally determine prices for the goods sold by the Company. These prices may be influenced by factors such as supply and demand, pro-
duction costs (including the costs of raw material inputs) and global and regional economic conditions and growth. Adverse changes in any 
of these factors may reduce the revenue that the Company earns from the sales of goods. Commodity price risk exposure is evaluated and 
managed through operating procedures and sourcing policies. The Company has not entered into any derivative contracts to hedge exposure 
to fluctuations in commodity prices.

41	 Capital Management
	 (a) Risk Management						   
	 The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to 

provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

	 The Company monitors capital on the basis of the net debt to equity ratio. Net debt are long-term and short-term debts as reduced by cash 
and cash equivalents. The Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.

	 The following table summarises the capital of the Company:

Particulars  31st March 2025  31st March 2024 

Total Borrowings  9,587.54  11,163.41 

Less: Cash and cash equivalents  199.11  171.71 

Net Debt  9,388.42  10,991.70 

Equity  22,320.74  20,157.06 

Net Debt to Equity ratio 42.06% 54.53%

	 No changes were made to the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31st March, 2025 and 31st March, 
2024.						    
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42	 Assets Pledged/ Hypothecated as Security

Particulars  31st March 2025  31st March 2024 

Current

First Charge/Second Charge

Financial Assets  -    -   

Trade Receivables  6,419.97  5,506.49 

Trade Receivables under Bill Discounting (Refer below) (1,820.98) (1,762.13)

Non-financial Assets  -    -   

Inventories  8,222.61  6,582.85 

Sub-total  12,821.60  10,327.21 

Non-current

First Charge/Second Charge

Leasehold Land  1,340.92  1,340.92 

Buildings  8,739.05  9,007.41 

Plant and Equipments  13,270.74  13,938.47 

Furniture and Fixtures  80.46  86.71 

Office Equipments  13.06  16.20 

Vehicles  28.10  40.43 

Sub-total  23,472.34  24,430.14 

Total  36,293.94  34,757.35 

	 Trade Receivables under Bill Discounting						   
	 The carrying amount of trade receivables include receivables which are subject to bill discounting arrangement. Under this arrangement, the 

Company has discounted the relevant receivables in exchange of cash and is prevented from selling or pledging the receivables. However, the 
Company has retained late payment and credit risk. The Company therefore continues to recognise such receivables in their entirety in its 
balance sheet. The amount payable under the bill discounting arrangement is presented as secured borrowings (Refer Note 15).

43	 Relationship with Struck off Companies, if any.

Name of struck off Company Nature of transactions with 
struck-off Company

Balance outstanding  Relationship with the Struck off 
company, if any, 

NIL Investments in securities NIL  NIL 

NIL Receivables NIL  NIL 

NIL Payables NIL  NIL 

NIL Other outstanding balances NIL  NIL 

44	 Ratios Analysis:-

Name of Ratio Numerator Denominator 31st March 
2025

31st March         
2024

 % changes 
over previ-

ous year 

 Reasons 
for more 
than 25% 
changes 

(a) Current Ratio Current assets Current Liabilities  0.94  0.86 8.80%  NA 

(b) Debt-Equity Ratio Total Debt Total Equity  0.86  0.98 (12.18%)  NA 

(c) Debt Service Coverage Ratio PAT + Depreciation + 
Term Loan Interest

Term Loan Interest 
+ Term Loan Repay-

ment
 1.04  0.70 47.47%  Increase in 

PAT 
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(d) Return on Equity Ratio PAT Average Equity 7.06% 2.12% 232.71%  Increase in 
PAT 

(e) Inventory turnover ratio Total Revenue from 
Operation Average Inventory  4.96  4.33 14.53%  NA 

(f) Trade Receivables turnover 
ratio

Total Revenue from 
Operation

Average Trade Receiv-
ables  6.16  5.37 14.84%  NA 

(g) Trade payables turnover 
ratio Total Purchases Average Trade Pay-

ables  3.06  2.45 24.98%  NA 

(h) Net capital turnover ratio Total Revenue from 
Operation Net Working Capital (36.70%) (13.70%) 167.79%  Increase in 

Revenue 

(i) Net profit ratio Net Profit ( PAT) Total Revenue from 
Operation 4.08% 1.43% 185.04%  Increase in 

PAT 

(j) Return on Capital employed
"Earnings Before 

Interest 
and Taxes (EBIT)"

"Capital 
Employed = Tangible 

Net Worth + Total 
Debt + Deferred Tax 

Liability"

12.95% 6.56% 97.29%  Decrease 
in Debt 

(k) Return on investment Income generated 
from invested funds

Average of In-
vestment & Fixed 

Deposits
14.42% 14.97% (3.65%)  NA 

45	 Issue of Shares					   
	 During the year, the Company has converted 4,00,000 warrants into equity shares at an issue price of ₹308.50 per share, comprising a face 

value of ₹10.00 and a share premium of ₹298.50 per share. As a result of this conversion Issued and subscribed capital increased by ₹40.00 
lakhs and Securities premium amount increased by Rs. 1194.00 lakhs.

	 The Company has utilised net proceds to meet its working capital requirement and there is no unutilised funds.
46	 Event Occurring after The Balance Sheet Date
	 The Company evaluates events and transactions that occur subsequent to the balance sheet date but prior to approval of financial statement 

to determine the necessity for recognition and/or reporting of any of these eventsand transactions in the financial statements. As on date of 
signing this statements there were no material subsequent events to be recognized or reported that are not already disclosed.

47	 Company has used the borrowings from banks and financial institutions for the specific purpose for which it was taken at the balance sheet date.

48	 No proceedings have been initiated or pending against the company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohi-
bition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and the rules made thereunder during the year under audit.					   

49	 Company has not declared and paid any dividend during the year.
50	 Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial Institution or other lender during the year under audit.		
51	 Company has no charges or satisfaction yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory period during  the year under 

audit.	
52	 Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.
53	 The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as 

income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of 
the Income Tax Act, 1961					   

54	 The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) 
any funds  to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in 
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall:					   

	 (a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ulti-
mate Beneficiaries) or					   

	 (b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries					   
55	 The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding 

(whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:					   
	 (a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party 

(Ultimate Beneficiaries) or					   
	 (b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries					   
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56	 The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2025 have been reviewed by the audit committee and approved by 
the Board of Directors in its meeting held on 30th May, 2025.				 

57	 The figures for the corresponding previous year have been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary, to make them comparable with cur-
rent year’s figures. 

As per our report of even date						    
For, B. K. PATEL & CO.	 For and on Behalf of			 
Chartered Accountants	 DYNEMIC PRODUCTS LIMITED			 
FRN :- 112647W						    
						    
CA B. K. Patel	 B. K. Patel	 D. B. Patel 	
Partner	 Managing Director	 Joint Managing Director  	
Membership No.032199
					   
Place :  Ahmedabad.	 R. B. Patel	 Ankit Shah 	
Date  : 30.05.2025	 Joint Managing Director	 Chief Financial Officer

	 Place :  Ahmedabad.	 Varsha Mehta	
	 Date  : 30.05.2025 	 Company Secretary
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To,
The Members,
Dynemic Products Limited
REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OPINION
	 We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Dynemic Products Limited (“Holding Company”) and its subsidiary 

Company (Holding Company and its subsidiary together referred to as “the Group”), its associate, which comprise the consolidated Balance 
Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the consolidated statement of Profit and Loss, including other comprehensive Income, the consolidated State-
ment of Changes in Equity, the consolidated Cash Flows Statement for the year then ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements, 
including a summary of significant accounting policies (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated financial statements”).

	 In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid consolidated financial state-
ments, give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in con-
formity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules, 2015, as amended (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the 
Group as at March 31, 2025 and their consolidated net profit, their consolidated total comprehensive income, their consolidated statements 
of changes in equity and their consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended on that date.

BASIS FOR OPINION
	 We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 

143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the 
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the 
consolidated financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS
	 Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial 

statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a 
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters 
described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report. For each matter below, our description of how our audit ad-
dressed the matter is provided in that context described hereunder.

	 We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section 
of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to 
our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including 
the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial 
statements;

	 1)	 Accuracy of recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosures of revenues and other related balances in view of Ind AS 115 
“Revenue from Contracts with Customers”:- 

Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed this matter: -

Company recognises revenue from sales of goods in accordance 
with the requirements of Ind AS 115, Revenue from Contracts with 
Customers, measured at the value of the consideration received or 
receivable in the ordinary course of its activities. Revenue from sale 
of goods is recognised net of discounts, rebates and taxes at the 
time of transfer of goods. Goods are considered transferred when 
the customer obtains ‘control’ of the promised goods. Control is the 
ability to direct the use of and obtain, substantially all the benefits 
from the goods.

Our audit procedure with respect to above key audit matter included 
following;

a)	 Reading and evaluation of the company’s policies regarding 
revenue recognition and assessment of its compliance with 
the requirements of Ind AS 115 “Revenue from contracts 
with customers”

b)	 Evaluating the details and Internal Control System of the Com-
pany.

c)	 Assessed the internal controls with respect to determination 
of timing of revenue recognition more specifically in case of 
export sales (wherein the control transfers to customer after 
significant time from supply of goods from factory).

d)	 Duly verified the trail of documents with respect to export 
of the goods during cut- off date and ascertained that it was 
correctly recognized in compliance with transfer of control 
of goods as defined in Ind  AS 115.
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INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITORS’ REPORT THEREON

	 The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included 
in the Annual Report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

	 Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express any form of assurance 
conclusion thereon.

	 In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information identified above 
when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial 
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

	 The other information is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report. When we read the other information, if 
we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance. 
We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF MANAGEMENT AND THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

	 The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these consolidated financial statements 
in term of the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated 
financial performance and consolidated cash flows of the Group including its Subsidiaries and Jointly controlled entity in accordance with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. The respective 
Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its subsidiaries and associates entity are responsible for maintenance of 
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and 
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that 
are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating 
effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial 
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for 
the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

	 In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its subsid-
iaries and associates entity are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group and of its subsidiaries and associates entity to continue as a 
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management 
either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

	 The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are also responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process 
of the Group and Associate.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

	 Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level 
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected 
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

	 As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We 
also:

•	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design 
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as 
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

•	 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the cir-
cumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the 
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

•	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures 
made by management.

•	 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence 
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the 
Group and its subsidiaries and associate entity to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are 
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclo-
sures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s 
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group and its subsidiaries and associate entity to cease to continue as a 
going concern.
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•	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and 
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair pres-
entation.

•	 Obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entity or business activities within the 
Group and its subsidiaries and associate entity to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible 
for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such entities included in the consolidated 
financial statements of which we are the independent auditors.

	 We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities included in the consolidated financial 
statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and signifi-
cant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

	 We also provided those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding inde-
pendence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, 
and where applicable, related safeguards.

	 From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit 
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our au-
ditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine 
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to 
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

OTHER MATTERS

(a)	 The accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements include the financial statements and other financial information of 1 subsidiary, 
whose financial statements include total assets of Rs.120.59 lakhs as at March 31, 2025, total revenues of Rs.101.42 lakhs, total net 
profit after tax of Rs.1.42 lakhs for the year ended on March 31, 2025, which have been audited by us.

	 The accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements also include the financial statements and other financial information of 1 Asso-
ciate Company, whose financial statements include Group’s share of net loss of Rs.0.57 lakhs for the year ended on March 31, 2025, 
which have been audited by us.

(b)	 Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements below, is not 
modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors and the 
financial statements / financial information certified by the Management.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

1.	 As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

	 (a)	 We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for 
the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements;

	 (b)	 In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements 
have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors except for the matter 
stated in the paragraph 1(h)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014;

	 (c)	 The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the 
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for 
the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements;

	 (d)	 In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of 
the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

	 (e)	 On the basis on the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as on March 31, 2025 
taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company, none of the directors of the Group’s companies, incorporated in 
India, is disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

	 (f)	 With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Group and the operating effectiveness of 
such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure-A” to this report;

	 (g)	 In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2025 has been paid/provided by the Holding Company to 
their directors in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act;

	 (h)	 With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us 
and based on the consideration of the report on separate financial statements as also the other financial information of the group 
company, as noted in the ‘Other Matters’ paragraph:
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	 i.	 As informed to us, the consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the consolidated financial posi-
tion of the Group.

	 ii.	 The Group and its associate entity did not have any material foreseeable losses on long- term contracts including derivative contracts.

	 iii.	 There have been no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Holding 
Company and its subsidiary company and.

iv)	 (a) 	 the respective management of the Company and its subsidiary and Associate has represented that, to the best of its knowl-
edge and belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (ei-
ther from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) 
or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, 
that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 
whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf 
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

	 (b)	 the respective management of the Company and its subsidiaries and associate has represented, that, to the best of it’s knowl-
edge and belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the company from any 
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or 
otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any 
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the 
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

	 (c)	 Based on such audit procedures that we have considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances; nothing has come 
to their notice that has caused them to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) contain any material 
mis-statement.

	 v)	 No dividend has been declared and paid by the group and associate during the year.

	 vi)	 Based on our examination, which include test checks, the Company has used accounting software for maintaining its books of account 
for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the feature of recording 
audit trail (edit log) facility was operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software except for the 
instances mentioned below.

		  In respect of 1 subsidiary and 1 associate, accounting software’s audit trail feature was made operated for part of the year, as reported 
in their respective audit report.

		  Further, for the period where audit trail (edit log) facility was enabled and operated for the respective accounting software, we did not 
come across any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with and the audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per 
the statutory requirements for record retention.

2.	 With respect to the matters specified in paragraphs 3(xxi) and 4 of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (the “Order”/ “CARO”) 
issued by the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, to be included in the Auditor’s report, according to the information 
and explanations given to us, and based on the CARO reports issued by us for the Company, its subsidiary Company and its Associate Company 
included in the consolidated financial statements of the Company, to which reporting under CARO is applicable, we report that there are no 
qualifications or adverse remarks in these CARO reports.

 

	 For, B. K. PATEL & CO
	 Chartered Accountants
	 Firm Regn No. 112647W

	 B. K. Patel
	 Partner
Ahmedabad	 Membership No.032199
30-05-2025	 UDIN: 25032199BMZXAC1259
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ANNEXURE-“A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’

section of our report to the Members of Dynemic Products Limited of even date.

REPORT ON THE INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING UNDER CLAUSE
(i) OF SUB-SECTION 3 OF SECTION 143 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 (“THE ACT”)

	 In conjunction with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements of Group which includes Associate as of and for the year ended March 
31, 2025, we have audited the internal financial controls over with reference to consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company, its 
subsidiary (the Holding Company and its subsidiary together referred to as “the Group”) and its Associate, which are companies incorporated 
in India, as of that date.

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

	 The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company, its subsidiary company and associate company which are companies incorporated 
in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting cri-
teria established by the Holding Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These 
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively 
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its 
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely prepara-
tion of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

	 Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Holding Company, its subsidiary company and associate company, which are companies in-
corporated in India, internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these Consolidated Financial Statements based on our 
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, both, issued by Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India, and deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial 
controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these Consolidated Finan-
cial Statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

	 Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting with reference to these Consolidated Financial Statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls 
over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these 
Consolidated Financial Statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating 
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the assess-
ment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

	 We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms of their reports referred 
to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls 
system over financial reporting with reference to these Consolidated Financial Statements.

MEANING OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING WITH REFERENCE TO THESE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

	 A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these Consolidated Financial Statements is a process designed 
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purpos-
es in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting with reference 
to these Consolidated Financial Statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in rea-
sonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance 
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and 
directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or 
disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

INHERENT LIMITATIONS OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING WITH REFERENCE TO THESE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS

	 Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these Consolidated Financial State-
ments, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may 
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to 
these Consolidated Financial Statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting 
with reference to these Consolidated Financial Statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of 
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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OPINION

	 In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of our reports of, 
as referred to in Other Matters paragraph below, the Holding Company, its subsidiary company and associate company, which are companies 
incorporated in India, have, maintained in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to 
these Consolidated Financial Statements and such internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these Consolidated Fi-
nancial Statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established 
by the Holding Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

OTHER MATTERS

	 Our report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting with reference to these Consolidated Financial Statements is of the Holding Company , one Subsidiary Company and one Associate 
Company.

	 For, B. K. PATEL & CO
	 Chartered Accountants
	 Firm Regn No. 112647W

	 B. K. Patel
	 Partner
Ahmedabad	 Membership No.032199
30-05-2025	 UDIN: 25032199BMZXAC1259
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH 2025	 (Amount in Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars Note As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023 

ASSETS :
NON-CURRENT ASSETS :
Property, Plant & Equipments & Intangibale Assets
     Property, Plant & Equipments 4  23,475.69  24,433.57 
     Goodwill 5  29.11  29.11 
     Intangible assets 5  0.19  0.19 
Financial Assets:
     Investments 6  97.84  98.40 
     Loans 10  2.27  1.81 
     Other Financial Assets 11  1,852.97  1,861.44 
Other Non Current Assets 13  246.40  256.51 
TOTAL NON CURRENT ASSETS  25,704.47  26,681.03 
CURRENT ASSETS:
     Inventories 12  8,222.61  6,582.85 
Financial Assets:-
     Investments  -    -   
     Trade Receivables 7  6,512.32  5,607.78 
     Cash and cash equivalents 8  50.75  19.29 
     Other Bank Balances 9  167.03  162.90 
     Loans 10  4.57  1.46 
     Other Financial Assets 11  20.41  20.41 
Other Current Assets 13  926.26  912.68 
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS  15,903.95  13,307.38 
TOTAL -ASSETS  41,608.42  39,988.41 
EQUITIES AND LAIBILITIES:
EQUITY
     Equity Share Capital 14.1  1,242.84  1,202.84 
     Other Equity 14.2  21,185.23  19,060.74 
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS  22,428.08  20,263.58 
Non Controlling Interest  7.18  7.15 
TOTAL EQUITY  22,435.25  20,270.73 
LAIBILITIES
NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
Financial Liabilities
     Borrowings 15  763.31  3,376.90 
     Other Financial Liabilities 17  0.02  0.43 
     Provisions 18  35.70  38.37 
     Deferred Tax Liabilities(Net) 21  1,584.96  1,038.70 
TOTAL NON CURRENT LIABILITIES  2,383.99  4,454.41 
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Financial Liabilities
     Borrowings 15  8,824.23  8,076.51 
     Trade Payables 16
     Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprise  839.40  2,122.09 
     Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprise  6,764.32  4,700.24 
     Other Financial Liabilities 17  3.62  96.80 
     Provisions 18  164.23  140.23 
     Current Tax Liabilities 19  0.44  2.26 
     Other Current Liabilities 20  192.93  125.12 
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES  16,789.17  15,263.26 
TOTAL LIABILITIES  19,173.16  19,717.67 
TOTAL - EQUITIES AND LIABILITIES  41,608.42  39,988.41 

The accompanying Notes form an integral part of the Consolidation Balance Sheet.						    
As per our report of even date						    

For, B. K. PATEL & CO.	 For and on Behalf of			 
Chartered Accountants	 DYNEMIC PRODUCTS LIMITED			 
FRN :- 112647W						    

CA B. K. Patel	 B. K. Patel	 D. B. Patel 	
Partner	 Managing Director	 Joint Managing Director  	
Membership No.032199						    

Place :  Ahmedabad.	 R. B. Patel	 Ankit Shah 	
Date  : 30.05.2025	 Joint Managing Director	 Chief Financial Officer	

	 Place :  Ahmedabad.	 Varsha Mehta	
	 Date  : 30.05.2025	 Company Secretary
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2025      (Amount in Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars Note  As at

31st March, 2025
As at

31st March, 2024
Revenue from Operations 22  36,752.10  28,404.48 
Other Income 23  43.16  68.24 
Total Income  36,795.26  28,472.72 
EXPENESES :
Cost of Materials Consumed 24  18,617.82  13,537.90 
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 25  914.08  874.44 
Changes in Inventories 26 (562.42) (126.60)
Employee Benefits Expenses 27  2,280.93  1,988.24 
Finance Costs 28  1,139.38  1,289.28 
Depreciation & Amortisations 29  1,643.02  1,668.40 
Other Expenses 30  10,714.30  8,930.91 
Total Expenses  34,747.11  28,162.58 
Profit Before Share Of Profit / (Loss) Of Associates And Joint Ventures, 
Exceptional Item And Tax

2,048.15 310.14

Share of Profit / (Loss) of Associates and Joint Ventures (0.57) (0.57)
Profit Before Tax 2,047.58 310.70
Income Tax Expense 31
                  Current Tax 0.54 2.26
                  Deferred Tax 546.25 (64.41)
Add/ (Less):- Taxation of earlier years (Refunds/Paid)  0.75  10.96 
Total Tax Expense 547.55 (51.18)
Net Profit for the Year 1,500.03 361.89
Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be Reclassified to Profit or Loss 36 8.92 22.10
Remeasurements on Post-employment Defined Benefit Plans
Income Tax on Above 31 0.00 0.00
Total Other Comprehensive Income, Net of Tax 8.92 22.10
Total Comprehensive Income for the Year 1,508.96 383.99
Profit Attributable to:
               Owners of the Company 1,500.00 361.76
               Non Controling Interest 0.03 0.12

1,500.03 361.89

Particulars Note  For the year ended 
Sunday, March 31, 2025

 For the year ended 
Friday, March 31, 2024

Other Comprehensive Income Attributable to:
               Owners of the Company 8.92 22.10
               Non Controling Interest 0.00 0.00

8.92 22.10
Total Comprehensive Income Attributable to:
               Owners of the Company 1,508.92 383.87
               Non Controling Interest 0.03 0.12

1,508.96 383.99
Earnings per Equity Share (Nominal Value Rs. 10/- per Share) 32
               Basic 12.44 3.49
               Diluted 12.44 3.46

The accompanying Notes form an integral part of the Consolidation Balance Sheet.						    
As per our report of even date						    

For, B. K. PATEL & CO.	 For and on Behalf of			 
Chartered Accountants	 DYNEMIC PRODUCTS LIMITED			 
FRN :- 112647W						    

CA B. K. Patel	 B. K. Patel	 D. B. Patel 	
Partner	 Managing Director	 Joint Managing Director  	
Membership No.032199						    

Place :  Ahmedabad.	 R. B. Patel	 Ankit Shah 	
Date  : 30.05.2025	 Joint Managing Director	 Chief Financial Officer	

	 Place :  Ahmedabad.	 Varsha Mehta	
	 Date  : 30.05.2025	 Company Secretary 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 31ST MARCH 2025
A. Equity Share Capital (Amount in Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars  No. of 
Shares  Amount 

Balance as at 1st April 2023  1,16,94,113  1,168.63 

Changes in equity share capital during the year

350000 Equity share fully paid up of Rs.10 each  3,50,000  35.00 

15726 Forfeited equity share partly paid up of Rs.5 each (15,726) (0.79) 

Balance as at 31st March 2024  1,20,28,387  1,202.84 

Changes in equity share capital during the year

400000 Equity share fully paid up of Rs.10 each (Warrants 
converted)

 4,00,000  40.00 

Balance as at 31st March 2025  1,24,28,387  1,242.84 

B. Other Equity -Reserves & Surplus- Refer Note No 14.2

Particulars Securities 
Premium

General 
Reserve

Retained 
Earnings

Capital 
Reserve

 Warrants  Total 

As at 1st April, 2023  2,543.44  502.18  14,075.52  -    -    17,121.15 

Changes in accounting policy/prior period errors

Add: Addition during the year (Net)  959.60  17.69  578.44  1,555.73 

Comprehensive Income for the Year  -   361.76  361.76 

Other Comprehensive Income (Net of Tax) -Remeasure-
ments on Post employment Defined Benefit Plans

 -    -   22.10  -    -    22.10 

Less: Dividends  -    -    -    -    -    -   

As at 31st March, 2024  3,503.05  502.18  14,459.39  17.69  578.44  19,060.74 

Changes in accounting policy/prior period errors  -   

Add: Addition during the year (Net)  1,194.00  655.56  1,849.56 

Comprehensive Income for the Year  1,500.00  1,500.00 

Other Comprehensive Income (Net of Tax) -Remeasure-
ments on Post employment Defined Benefit Plans

 8.92  8.92 

Less: Warrants converted into equity shares  -    -    -    -    1,234.00  1,234.00 

Less: Dividends  -    -    -    -    -    -   

As at 31st March, 2025  4,697.05  502.18  15,968.31  17.69  -    21,185.23 

The accompanying Notes form an integral part of the Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity.

		
As per our report of even date						    
For, B. K. PATEL & CO.	 For and on Behalf of			 
Chartered Accountants	 DYNEMIC PRODUCTS LIMITED			 
FRN :- 112647W						    
						    
CA B. K. Patel	 B. K. Patel	 D. B. Patel 	
Partner	 Managing Director	 Joint Managing Director  	
Membership No.032199
					   
Place :  Ahmedabad.	 R. B. Patel	 Ankit Shah 	
Date  : 30.05.2025	 Joint Managing Director	 Chief Financial Officer

	 Place :  Ahmedabad.	 Varsha Mehta	
	 Date  : 30.05.2025 	 Company Secretary
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CONSOLIDATE CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 31ST MARCH 2025	 (Amount in Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31st March, 2025

As at
31st March, 2024

A. Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Profit before Tax 2,047.58 310.70
Adjustments for:
Share of net profit/(loss) of Associates  0.57 (0.57)
Depreciation and Amortisation Expense  1,643.02  1,668.40 
Finance Costs  1,139.38  1,289.28 
Bad Debts/Advances/ Creditors Written Off  -    -   
Interest Income Classified as Investing Cash Flows (18.85) (23.49)
Net Gain on Investments Carried at Fair Value through Profit or Loss  -    -   
(Gain)/Loss on Disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment (Net)  3.03  2.37 
Foreign Exchange Differences (Net) (201.77) (26.08)
Operating Profit before Changes in Operating assets and Liabilities  4,612.95  3,220.61 
Changes in Operating Assets and Liabilities
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payables  781.73  325.83 
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Financial Liabilities (95.48) (0.60)
Increase/(Decrease) in Provisions  21.31 (73.12)
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities  67.81 (127.49)
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories (1,639.76) (69.00)
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade Receivables (913.42) (526.42)
(Increase)/Decrease in Loans (3.57) (2.39)
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Financial Assets  8.47 (54.50)
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Non-current Assets  10.11  56.99 
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Current Assets 9.06  288.09 
Cash Generated from Operations (1,753.75) (182.61)
Income Taxes Paid (16.07) (12.03)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES  2,843.13  3,025.97 
B. Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Payments for Acquisition of Property, Plant, Equipment (691.50) (280.20)
Proceeds on Investment  -    45.74 
Proceeds on Disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment  3.37  3.48 
Proceeds as Capital subsidy on Fixed Assets  13.64  68.20 
Interest Received  18.85  23.49 
Proceeds from Maturity of Deposits with Banks  81.85  76.21 
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (573.79) (63.08)
C. Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Finance Costs Paid (1,139.38) (1,289.28)
Proceeds from Preferential equity shares (Net)  -    1,011.51 
Proceeds from Warrants (Net)  655.56  578.44 
Repayment of Long-term Borrowings (3,222.33) (3,200.67)
Proceeds from Long-term Borrowings 199.99 0.00
Short-term Borrowings - Receipts/(Payments)  1,066.47 (142.52)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES (2,439.69) (3,042.52)
D. Exchange Differences on Translation of Foreign Currency  201.77  26.08 
Net Cash (Outflow)/ Inflow  31.46 (53.55)
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Opening (Refer Note 8)  19.29  72.84 
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Closing (Refer Note 8)  50.75  19.29 
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CONSOLIDATE CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 31ST MARCH 2025
1) The above Consolidate Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the ‘Indirect Method’ as set out in Ind AS 7, ‘Statement of Cash Flows’.
2) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities			   (Amount in Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars 01-04-2024  Cash Inflow  Other Adujt-
ments 31-03-2025

Long-Term Borrowings (Including Current Matuaties of Long Term Debt)  6,647.64 (3,022.34)  -    3,625.30 
Short-Term Borrowings  4,515.77 1,446.47  -    5,962.24 
Total Borrowings  11,163.41 (1,575.87)  -   9,587.54

Particulars 01-04-2023  Cash Inflow  Other Adujt-
ments 31-03-2024

Long-Term Borrowings (Including Current Matuaties of Long Term Debt)  9,848.31 (3,200.67)  -    6,647.64 
Short-Term Borrowings  4,948.29 (432.52)  -    4,515.77 
Total Borrowings  14,796.60 (3,633.19)  -   11,163.41

The accompanying Notes form an integral part of the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement								    
				  

As per our report of even date						    

For, B. K. PATEL & CO.	 For and on Behalf of			 
Chartered Accountants	 DYNEMIC PRODUCTS LIMITED			 
FRN :- 112647W						    

CA B. K. Patel	 B. K. Patel	 D. B. Patel 	
Partner	 Managing Director	 Joint Managing Director  	
Membership No.032199						    

Place :  Ahmedabad.	 R. B. Patel	 Ankit Shah 	
Date  : 30.05.2025	 Joint Managing Director	 Chief Financial Officer	

	 Place :  Ahmedabad.	 Varsha Mehta	
	 Date  : 30.05.2025	 Company Secretary
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1.	 Group Background
	 The consolidated financial statements comprise financial statements of Dynemic Products Limited (the holding company) and its subsidiaries 

(holding and subsidiary companies collectively, the Group) for the year ended 31st March 2025. Dynemic Products Limited (the ‘Parent Com-
pany’) is a public limited company, incorporated with its CIN: L24100GJ1990PLC013886 and domiciled in India. The equity shares of the Com-
pany are listed on the National Stock Exchange of India Limited and the BSE Limited in India. The registered office of the Company is located 
at B-301, Satyamev-I, Opp. Gujarat High Court, S G Road, Sola, Ahmedabad-380060, Gujarat, India. The Parent Company and its subsidiary, 
Cerecon Bio Sciences Private Limited & its associates Dynemic Holdings Pvt Ltd, (collectively referred to as “the Group”) is mainly engaged in 
the business of manufacturing and selling of Dyes & Dye Intermediates as single operational segment. The consolidated financial statements 
were approved and authorized for issue in accordance with the resolution of the Company’s Board of Directors on 30th May, 2025.

2.	 Significant Accounting Policies
	 This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements. These pol-

icies have been consistently applied to all through the year presented, unless otherwise stated.
	 (a)	 Basis of Preparation
	 (i)	 Compliance with Ind AS
	 The consolidated financial statements comply in all material respects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of 

the Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] as amended from time to time and other provi-
sions of the Act.

	 (ii)	 Basis of Measurement
	 The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on accrual basis and under historical cost basis, except for  the following:
	 -	 Certain financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments) that is measured at fair value.
	 -	 Defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value.
	 -	 All amounts disclosed in the consolidated financial statements and notes have been present in INR and have been rounded off to 		

	 the nearest Rupee in Lakhs as per the requirement of Schedule-III, unless otherwise stated.
	 (iii)	 Current versus Non-Current Classification
	 The Group presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/non-current classification in accordance with Ind AS-1.
	 An asset is classified as current when it is:
	 a)	 expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle,
	 b)	 held primarily for the purpose of trading,
	 c)	 expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or
	 d)	 cash or cash equivalents unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the 		

	 reporting period.
	 All other assets are classified as non-current. A liability is classified as current when:
	 a)	 it is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle,
	 b)	 it is held primarily for the purpose of trading,
	 c)	 it is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
	 d)	 There is no unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.
	 All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
	 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current.
	 The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents. The Com-

pany has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.
	 (b)	 Principal of Consolidation:-
	 The consolidated financial statements relate to Dynemic Products Limited (‘the Company’) and its subsidiary company, and associate. The 

consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the following basis:
	 (i)	 The financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary are combined on a line by line basis by adding together like items of assets, 

liabilities, equity, incomes, expenses and cash flows, after fully eliminating intra-group balances and intra-group transactions.
	 (ii)	 The excess of cost to the Company of its investments in the subsidiary company over its share of equity of the subsidiary companies 

at the dates on which the investments in the subsidiary companies are made, is recognized as “Goodwill “being an assets in the con-
solidated financial statements.

	 (iii)	 Minority interest in the net assets of standalone subsidiary consist of the amount of equity attributable to the minority shareholders 
at the dates on which investments are made by the Company and further movements in their share in the equity , subsequent to the 
dates of investments.
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	 (iv)	 Investment in Associate has been accounted under the equity method as per Ind AS 28 - Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures.
	 (v)	 The Company accounts for its share of post-acquisition changes in net assets of associates, after eliminating unrealized profits and 

losses resulting from transactions between the Company and its associates to the extent of its share, through its Consolidated Profit 
and Loss Statement, to the extent such change is attributable to the associates’ Profit and Loss Statement and through its reserves for 
the balance based on available information.

	 (vi)	 As far as possible, the consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other 
events in similar circumstances and are presented in the same manner as the Company’s separate financial statements.

	 (c)	 Significant accounting estimates, assumptions and judgments
	 The preparation of consolidated Financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgments, estimates and as-

sumptions, that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income, expenses and disclosures 
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of these consolidated Financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses 
for the years presented. Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed at each Balance 
Sheet date. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised and future periods affected.

	 This Note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgment or complexity, and of items which are more likely to be 
materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out to be different than those originally assessed. Detailed information about 
each of these estimates and judgments is included in relevant notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected 
line item in the consolidated financial statements.

	 Estimates and assumptions
	 The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk 

of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described hereinafter. The 
Group based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and 
assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control 
of the Group. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

	 The areas involving critical estimates or judgments are:
	 Employee Benefits (Estimation of Defined Benefit Obligation) 
	 Post-employment benefits represent obligations that will be settled in future and require assumptions to estimate benefit obligations. 

Post-employment benefit accounting is intended to reflect the recognition of benefit costs over the employees’ approximate service period, 
based on the terms of the plans and the investment and funding decisions made. The accounting requires the Group to make assumptions re-
garding variables such as discount rate and salary growth rate. Changes in these key assumptions can have a significant impact on the defined 
benefit obligations.

	 Estimation of Expected Useful Life of Property, Plant and Equipment
	 Management reviews its estimate of useful lives of property, plant and equipment at each   reporting date, based on the expected utility of 

the assets. Uncertainties in these estimates relate to technical and economic obsolescence that may change the utility of property, plant and 
equipment.

	 Contingencies
	 Legal proceedings covering a range of matters are pending against the Group. Due to the uncertainty inherent in such matters, it is often diffi-

cult to predict the final outcome. The cases and claims against the Group often raise factual and legal issues that are subject to uncertainties 
and complexities, including the facts and circumstances of each particular case/ claim, the jurisdiction and the differences in applicable law. 
The Group consults with legal counsel and other experts on matters related to specific litigations where considered necessary. The Group 
accrues a liability when it is determined that an adverse outcome is probable and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. In the 
event an adverse outcome is possible or an estimate is not determinable, the matter is disclosed.

	 Valuation of Deferred Tax assets
	 Deferred income tax expense is calculated based on the differences between the carrying value of assets and liabilities for financial reporting 

purposes and their respective tax bases that are considered temporary in nature. Valuation of deferred tax assets is dependent on manage-
ment’s assessment of future recoverability of the deferred tax benefit. Expected recoverability may result from expected taxable income in the 
future, planned transactions or planned optimizing measures. Economic conditions may change and lead to a different conclusion regarding 
recoverability.

	 (d) 	 Summary of Significant accounting policies 
	 1.	 Revenue Recognition
	 Revenue from contract with customer is recognized when control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer at an amount that 

reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Revenue from contract with 
customer is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Amounts disclosed as revenue are exclusive of taxes & 
duties and net of returns, trade discounts, rebates. The inter-divisional transfer between Unit-1, 2 and 3 of the company are deducted from 
respective sales & purchases, It has no impact on profit or loss.
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	 The Group recognizes revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to 
the Group and specific criteria have been met for each of the Group’s activities as described below. The Group bases its estimates on historical 
results, taking into consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

	 Sale of Products:- Revenue from sale of products is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the products have 
passed to the buyer as per the terms of contract. The group considers whether there are other promises in the contract that are separate 
performance obligations to which a portion of the transaction price needs to be allocated. In determining the transaction price for the sale of 
goods, the group considers the effects of variable consideration, the existence of significant financing components, non-cash consideration, 
and consideration payable to the customer (if any).

	 Sales is net of inter branch transfers. It has no impact on profit or loss.
	 Sale of Services:- Revenue from services rendered is recognized as the services are rendered and is booked based on agreements/ arrange-

ments with the concerned parties.
	 Other Operating Revenues
	 Export entitlements under various schemes notified by government are recognized when the right to receive credit as per the terms of the 

schemes is established in respect of the exports made by the Group and where there is no significant uncertainty regarding the ultimate col-
lection of the relevant export proceeds.

	 Rent income
	 Rental income is accounted on the basis of lease terms and is included in other income in the statement of profit and loss.
	 Interest Income
	 Interest income from debt instruments is recognized using the effective interest rate method. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly 

discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset. 
When calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the fi-
nancial instrument but does not consider the expected credit losses.

	 Dividend
	 Dividend is recognized in profit or loss only when the right to receive payment is established, it is probable that the economic benefits associ-

ated with the dividend will flow to the Group, and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.
2.	 Property, Plant and Equipment:
	 Freehold/ GIDC Lease hold land is carried at historical cost. All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less 

accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the 
acquisition of the items. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only 
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured 
reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognized when replaced. All other repairs and main-
tenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

	 Depreciation Method, Estimated Useful Lives and Residual Values
	 Depreciation is calculated on a pro-rata basis using the straight-line method to allocate their cost, net of their estimated residual values, over 

their estimated useful lives in accordance with Schedule II to the Act. Each component of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost 
that is significant in relation to the cost of that item is depreciated separately if its useful life differs           from the other components of the 
item.

	 Estimated useful lives of the assets are taken as per Schedule II of the Companies Act 2013, which is broadly defined as under:-
	 Buildings - 3 to 60 years
	 Plant and equipment - 5 to 40 years 
	 Furniture and Fixtures - 10 years 
	 Vehicles - 8 to 10 years
	 Office Equipment - 3 to 6 years
	 Leasehold land is from GIDC and has not been amortized, as the lease cost has been fully paid. The useful lives, residual values and the method 

of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. Gains and 
losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are included in profit or loss within ‘Other Income’/‘Oth-
er Expenses’. Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each balance sheet date is classified as 
‘Capital Advances’ under other non- current assets.

3.	 Intangible Assets
	 Intangible assets (Computer Software) has a finite useful life and are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impair-

ment losses, if any.
	 Computer Software
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	 Software for internal use, which is primarily acquired from third-party vendors is capitalized. Subsequent costs associated with maintaining 
such software are recognized as expense as incurred. Cost of software includes license fees and cost of implementation/system integration 
services, where applicable.

	 Amortization Method and Period
	 Computer software are amortized on a pro-rata basis using the straight-line method over their estimated useful life of 5 years, from the date 

they are available for use. Amortization method and useful lives are reviewed periodically at each financial year end.
4.	 Impairment of Non-Financial assets
	 Assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An 

impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount 
is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. Subsequently, if there is a change in the indication, since the last im-
pairment was recognized, so that recoverable amount of an asset exceeds its carrying amount, an impairment recognized for an asset in prior 
accounting period is reversed for the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately 
identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or group of assets (cash generating units).

5.	 Leases
	 The Group applied a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases for which it is the lessee, except for short-term leases and 

leases of low value assets. The Group recognised lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use 
the underlying assets. 

	 The Group elected to use the recognition exemptions for lease contracts that, at the commencement date, have a lease term of 12 months 
or less and do not contain a purchase option (short-term leases), and lease contracts for which the underlying asset is of low value (low-value 
assets).

	 Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to the Group as lessee are classified as operat-
ing leases. Payments made under operating leases are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease unless the 
payments are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases. 

	 This is not applicable to GIDC Lease, as there is no periodic payments are made for uses of leased asset, which is GIDC Land. Land (Leasehold) 
is carried at cost less amortization; Leasehold land is amortized on the straight line method over the period of lease.

6.	 Inventories
	 Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost of inventories comprises cost of purchases and all other costs incurred 

in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost of work-in-progress and finished goods comprises direct materials, 
direct labour and an appropriate proportion of variable and fixed overhead expenditure, the latter being allocated on the basis of normal 
operating capacity. Costs are assigned to individual items of inventory on approximation average basis. Net realizable value is the estimated 
selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

7.	 Investments 
	 a.	 Investments in Subsidiaries
	 Investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost less provision for impairment, if any. Investments   in subsidiaries are tested for impairment 

whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for 
the amount by which the carrying amount of investments exceeds its recoverable amount.

	 b.	 Investments (other than Investments in Subsidiaries) and Other Financial Assets
	 (i)	 Classification
	 The Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:-
	 -	 those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income or  through profit or loss), and
	 -	 those to be measured at amortized cost.
	 The classification depends on the Group’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows. For 

assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income. Though the Group 
do not have any debt instruments, but for investments in debt instruments, this will depend on the business model in which the investment 
is held. For investments in equity instruments, this will depend on whether the Group has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial 
recognition to account for the equity investment at fair value through other comprehensive income.

	 (ii)	 Measurement
	 At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a  financial asset not at fair value through profit 

or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at 
fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss. Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when 
determining whether their cash flows are solely payment of principal and interest.

	 All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, 
described as under, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
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	 • Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
	 • Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly ob-

servable.
	 • Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable. 
	 For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have 

occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

	 The Group’s management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement, such as unquoted financial 
assets measured at fair value, and for non-recurring measurement, such as assets held for distribution in discontinued operations.

8.	 Debt Instruments
	 Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Group’s business model for managing the asset and the cash flow character-

istics of the asset. There are three measurement categories into which the Group classifies its debt instruments:
	 1.	 Amortized Costs
	 Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are 

measured at amortized cost. A gain or loss on a debt   instrument that is subsequently measured at amortized cost is recognized in profit or 
loss when the asset is derecognized or impaired.

	 2.	 Fair Value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI):
	 Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely 

payments of principal and interest, are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI). Movements in the carrying 
amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest income and foreign exchange gains and losses 
which are recognized in the profit or loss. When the financial asset is derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCI is 
reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognized in ‘Other Income’.

	 3.	 Fair value through Profit & Loss A/c
	 Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortized cost or FVOCI are measured at fair value through profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt 

investment that is subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss is recognized in profit or loss and presented net in the Statement 
of Profit and Loss within ‘Other Income’ in the period in which it arises.

9.	 Equity Instruments
	 The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value. Where the Group’s management has elected to present fair value gains 

and losses on equity investments in other comprehensive income, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit 
or loss. Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognized in ‘Other Income’ in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss.

10.	 Impairment
	 a)	 Impairment of Financial Assets
	 The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets which are not fair valued through profit 

or loss. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk. Note given herein after 
details how the Group determines whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk. For trade receivables only, the Group applies 
the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109, ‘Financial Instruments’, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognized from initial 
recognition of the receivables.	

	 b)	 Impairment of financial assets (other than at fair value)
	 The Group assesses at each date of balance sheet whether a financial asset or a group of Financial Assets is impaired.
	 Ind AS 109 requires expected credit losses to be measured through a loss allowance. The Group recognizes lifetime expected losses for all 

contract assets and / or all trade receivables that do not constitute a financing transaction. In determining the allowances for doubtful trade 
receivables, the Group has used a practical expedient by computing the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables based on a pro-
vision matrix. The provision matrix takes into account historical credit loss experience and is adjusted for forward looking information. The 
expected credit loss allowance is based on the ageing of the receivables that are due and allowance rates used in the provision matrix. For all 
other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-months expected credit losses or at an amount equal 
to the life time expected credit losses if the credit risk on the financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition.

11.	 De-recognition of Financial Assets
	 A financial asset is de-recognized only when
	 -	 the Group has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or
	 -	 Retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash 		

flows to one or more recipients.
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	 Where the entity has transferred an asset, the Group evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of 
the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is de-recognized. Where the entity has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards 
of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is not de-recognized.

	 Where the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the 
financial asset is de-recognized if the Group has not retained control of the financial asset. Where the Group retains control of the financial 
asset, the asset is continued to be recognized to the extent of continuing involvement in the financial asset.

12.	 Fair Value of Financial Instruments
	 In determining the fair value of financial instruments, the Group uses a variety of methods and          assumptions that are based on market 

conditions and risks existing at each reporting date. The methods used to determine fair value include discounted cash flow analysis and avail-
able quoted market prices. All methods of assessing fair value result in general approximation of value, and such value may never actually be 
realized.

	 a.	 Derivative Instruments- 
	 Group has no Derivative Instruments during the year.
	 b.	 Offsetting Financial Instruments
	 Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet where there is a legally enforceable right to offset 

the recognized amounts and there is an intention of the management to settle on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability simul-
taneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business 
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Group or the counterparty.

13.	 Trade Receivables
	 Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or services rendered in the ordinary course of business. Trade receivables 

are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less provision for im-
pairment.

14.	 Cash and Cash Equivalents
	 For the purpose of presentation in the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with Banks 

and financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convert-
ible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

15.	 Trade Payables
	 Trade Payables represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year which are unpaid. Trade and 

other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are recognized 
initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

16.	 Borrowings
	 Borrowings are recognized at amortized cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount 

is recognized in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan 
facilities are recognized as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some  or all of the facility will be drawn down. In 
this case, the fee is deferred until the draw down  occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility 
will be drawn down, the fee is capitalized as a prepayment for liquidity services and amortized over the period of the facility to which it relates.

	 Borrowings are removed from the Balance Sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired.
	 Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 

months after the reporting period.
17.	 Financial Guarantee Contracts
	 Financial guarantee contracts are recognized as a financial liability at the time the guarantee is issued. The liability is initially measured at fair 

value and subsequently at the higher of the amount determined in accordance with Ind AS 37 and the amount initially recognized less cumu-
lative amortization, where appropriate.

18.	 Borrowing Costs
	 General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are cap-

italized during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets 
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale.

	 Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
19.	 Foreign Currency Transactions and Translation
	 (i)	 Functional and Presentation Currency
	 Items included in the consolidated financial statements of the Group are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment 

in which the Group operates (‘the functional currency’). The consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee in Lakhs (Rs. in 
Lakhs), which is the Group’s functional and presentation currency.
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	 (ii)	 Transactions and Balances
	 Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. At the year-

end, monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are restated at the year - end exchange rates. The exchange differences 
arising from settlement of foreign currency transactions and from the year-end restatement are recognized in profit and loss.

	 Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the       exchange rates at the date when the fair 
value was determined. Translation differences on assets  and liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.

20.	 Employee benefits
	 (i)	 Short Term Employee Benefits
	 Liabilities for short-term employee benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the 

employees render the related service are recognized in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured 
at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as ‘Employee Benefits Payable’ within ‘Other 
Current Liabilities’ in the Balance Sheet.

	 (ii)	 Post-Employment Benefits
	 Defined Benefit Plans
	 The liability or asset recognized in the Balance Sheet in respect of defined benefit plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation 

at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuaries using the 
projected unit credit method.

	 The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to market 
yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation.

	 The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan 
assets. This cost is included in ‘Employee Benefits Expense’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

	 Re-measurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized in the period in 
which they occur, directly in Other Comprehensive Income. These are included in ‘Retained Earnings’ in the Statement of Changes in Equity.

	 Defined Contribution Plans
	 Contributions under Defined Contribution Plans payable in keeping with the related schemes are recognized as expenses for the period in 

which the employee has rendered the service.
	 (iii)	 Other Long term Employee Benefits
	 The liabilities for leave which are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the  period in which the employees 

render the related service. They are therefore measured annually   by actuaries as the present value of expected future benefits in respect of 
services provided by  employees up to the end of the reporting period using the projected unit credit method. The  benefits are discounted 
using the market yields at the end of the reporting period that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation. Re-measure-
ment as a result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized in profit or loss.

	 The liabilities are presented as ‘Employee Benefits Payable’ within ‘Other Non-Current Liabilities’ in the Balance Sheet.
21.	 Income Tax
	 The income tax expense for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income based on the applicable income tax rate 

adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences, unused tax credits and to unused tax losses.
	 The current tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted   at the end of the reporting period. Man-

agement periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to inter-
pretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

	 Deferred tax is provided in full, using the balance sheet approach, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and lia-
bilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognized if they arise 
from the initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability 
in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax 
loss). Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting 
period and are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset is realized or the deferred tax liability is settled.

	 Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses only if 
it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilize those temporary differences, tax credits and losses.

	 Deferred tax assets are not recognized for temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax bases of investments in subsidiaries 
where it is not probable that the differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will not be available against which the 
temporary difference can be utilized.

	 The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that 
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be utilized.
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	 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities and when the 
deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforce-
able right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

	 Current and deferred tax are recognized in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in other comprehensive in-
come or directly in equity, if any. In this case, the tax is also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

22.	 Provisions and Contingencies
	 Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an out-

flow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated.
	 Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at 

the end of the reporting period. A disclosure for contingent liabilities is made when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the 
existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or nonoccurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the 
control of the Group or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources embod-
ying economic benefits will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.

23.	 Dividend
	 The Group recognises a liability for dividends to equity holders of the Group when the dividend is authorised and the dividend is no longer 

at the discretion of the Group. As per the corporate laws in India, a dividend is authorised when it is approved by the shareholders. A corre-
sponding amount is recognised directly in equity.

24.	 Earnings per Share
	 (i)	 Basic Earnings per Share
	 Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing: -
	 -	 the profit attributable to owners of the Group 
	 -	 by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year
	 (ii)	 Diluted Earnings per Share
	 Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take into account:-
	 -	 the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity shares, and
	 -	 the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive  

	 potential equity shares.
25.	 Segment Reporting
	 Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker.
	 The chief operating decision maker is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments and has been 

identified as the Managing Director of the Group. Presently Group has been working in single segment- Dyes & Dyes Intermediates.
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Group Information
	 For disclosures mandated by Schedule III of the Companies Act 2013, by way of additional information, refer belew;	
	 The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Parent Company and its wholly owned subsidiary company 

and its associates as detailed below. Unless otherwise stated, they have share capital consisting solely of equity shares that are held by the 
Group and the proportion of ownership interests held equals the voting rights held by the Group.

Name of Entity Place of Business/
Country of Incorporation

Proportion of ownership interest 
held by the group

Principal Business 
Activity

2024-25 2023-24
1) Cerecon Bio Sciences Private Limited 
(Formerly known as Dynamic Overseas 
(India) Pvt Ltd)

India 98.10% 98.10% Trading of Dyes Interme-
diates, & other chemi-
cals. Also manufacturing 
and trading of Medical 
equipments, bulk drugs, 
and other Pharmaceu-
tical items and its allied 
products.

2) Dynemic Holdings Priavte Limited India 49.22% 49.22% Investments in shares & 
securities

Name of Entity

As at 31st March, 2025 For the year ended 31st 
March, 2025

For the year ended 31st 
March, 2025

For the year ended 31st 
March, 2025

Net Assets, i.e Total As-
sets minus total Liabilites

Share in Profit & Loss 
A/c

Share in Other Compre-
hensive Income

Share in Total Compre-
hensive Income

% in Con-
solidated 

Assets

Rs. In 
Lakhs

% in Con-
solidated 

Assets

Rs. In 
Lakhs

% in Con-
solidated 

Assets

Rs. In 
Lakhs

% in Con-
solidated 

Assets

Rs. In 
Lakhs

Parent
Dynemic Products Limited 99.48% 22,320.74 99.91% 1,499.21 100.00% 8.92 1,508.12
Subsidiary
1) Cerecon Bio Sciences Private 
Limited (Formerly known as Dy-
namic Overseas (India) Pvt Ltd)

0.52% 116.55 0.09% 1.39 0.00% 0.00 1.39

Sub Total 22,437.29 1,500.60 8.92 1,509.52
Inter Company elimination and 
Consolidation adjustments

(2.04) (0.57) 0.00 (0.57)

Grand Total 22,435.25 1,500.03 8.92 1,508.95
Minority Interest 7.18 0.03 0.00 0.03

Name of Entity

As at 31st March, 2024 For the year ended 31st 
March, 2024

For the year ended 31st 
March, 2024

For the year ended 31st 
March, 2024

Net Assets, i.e Total As-
sets minus total Liabilites

Share in Profit & Loss 
A/c

Share in Other Compre-
hensive Income

Share in Total Compre-
hensive Income

% in Con-
solidated 

Assets

Rs. In 
Lakhs

% in Con-
solidated 

Assets

Rs. In 
Lakhs

% in Con-
solidated 

Assets

Rs. In 
Lakhs

% in Con-
solidated 

Assets

Rs. In 
Lakhs

Parent
Dynemic Products Limited 99.43% 20,157.06 98.46% 406.24 100.00% 22.10 428.34
Subsidiary
1) Cerecon Bio Sciences Private 
Limited (Formerly known as Dy-
namic Overseas (India) Pvt Ltd)

0.57% 115.15 1.54% 6.36 0.00% 0.00 6.36

Sub Total 20,272.21 412.59 22.10 434.70
Inter Company elimination and 
Consolidation adjustments

(1.47) (50.71) 0.00 (50.71)

Grand Total 20,270.73 361.89 22.10 383.99
Minority Interest 7.15 0.12 0.00 0.12
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025	 (Amount in Rs. in Lakhs)

4.2	 Title deeds of Immovable Properties not held in name of the Company

Relevant line 
item in the 

Balance sheet

Description 
of item of 
property

Gross 
carrying 

value

Title deeds 
held in the 

name of

Whether title deed holder is a 
promoter, director or relative# of 
promoter*/director or employee 

of promoter/director

 Property held 
since which 

date 

 Reason for not 
being held in 

the name of the 
company 

PPE NIL

4.3	 The Company has taken borrowings from banks which carry charge over certain property, plant and equipment ( Refer Note 42 for details).

4.4	 Contractual obligations - Refer Note 35(a) for disclosure of contractual commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment.		
				  

4.5	 Aggregate amount of depreciation has been included under ‘Depreciation and Amortisation Expense’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss 
(Refer Note 29).

4.6	 Title deeds of immovable properties set out in Note 4.1 above, where applicable, are in the name of the Company.

4.7	 Lease period of land at GIDC is 95 years. On expiry of the said lease term of 5 years, the Company has an option to renew the lease for a further 
period of 5 years which compnay is certain to excerise the option.

4.8    	  There is no Capital work in progress in current year as well as in previous year.

4.9     There is no intangibles asset under development during the year  as well as in previous year.	 	 	 	 	 	

4.10   There is no Benami property held by the company.	 	 	 	 	 	

5	 Intangible Assets and Goodwill

Particulars Intangible Assets Goodwill

Year ended 31st March, 2024

Gross Carrying Amount

Opening Balance  26.47  29.11 

Additions  -    -   

Disposals  -    -   

Closing Balance  26.47  29.11 

Accumulated Depreciation

Opening Balance  26.28  -   

For the Year  -    -   

On Disposals  -    -   

Closing Balance  26.28  -   

Net Carrying Amount  0.19  29.11 

Year ended 31st March, 2025

Gross Carrying Amount

Opening Balance  26.47  29.11 

Additions  -    -   

Disposals  -    -   

Closing Balance  26.47  29.11 

Accumulated Depreciation

Opening Balance  26.28  -   

For the Year  -    -   

On Disposals  -    -   

Closing Balance  26.28  -   

Net Carrying Amount  0.19  29.11 
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5.1     The amortisation has been included under ‘Depreciation and Amortisation Expense’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss (Refer Note 29).	

6	 Investments

Particulars Face Value Number  As at 
31st March, 2025

 As at 
31st March, 2024

Unquoted:

Non-current Investments

Investments in Equity Instruments (At cost)

INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING EQUITY METHOD

In Other Associates Body Corporates

     * Dynemic Holding Pvt. Ltd.

(At Original Cost) 10 1010000  101.00  101.00 

Add/ Less: Share of Accumulated Profit/ Loss (12.78) (12.22)

Net Investment in Associates  88.22  88.78 

Non-current Investments

Investments in Equity Instruments

   In Other Body Corporates

     * Enviro Technology Ltd. Shares 10 15000  1.50  1.50 

     * Bharuch Enviro Infrastructure Ltd. 10 1750  0.18  0.18 

     * Bharuch Eco-Aqua Infra.Ltd 10 78450  7.85  7.85 

     * Ank.Res. &.Analy.Inf.Ltd. 10 1000  0.10  0.10 

TOTAL  9.62  9.62 

TOTAL Non-current Investments  97.84  98.40 

Current Investments  -    -   

TOTAL  97.84  98.40 

6.1	 Refer Note 39 for information about fair value measurements and Note 40 for credit risk and market risk on investments.

6.2	 Aggregate amount of Investments

Particulars  As at 31st March, 2025  As at 31st March, 2024

Aggregate amount of Unquoted Investments 9.62 9.62

Aggregate amount of Quoted Investments  -    -   

Total Investments 9.62 9.62

7	 Trade Receivables

Particulars  As at 31st March, 2025  As at 31st March, 2024

Current

Unsecured Considered Good

(a) Trade Receivables considered good - Secured;  -    -   

(b) Trade Receivables considered good - Unsecured;  6,512.32  5,607.78 

(c) Trade Receivables which have significant increase in Credit Risk  -    -   

(d) Trade Receivables - credit impaired  -    -   

Less: Allowance for Expected Credit Losses  -    -   

TOTAL  6,512.32  5,607.78 

7.1	 Refer Note 42 for receivables secured against borrowings and Note 40 for information about credit risk and market risk on receivables.	

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025	 (Amount in Rs. in Lakhs)
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7.2	 Trade Receivables ageing schedule (the previous year figures are in brackets)

Particulars
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Less than 6 
months

6 months 
-1 year

1-2 years 2-3 years  More than 
3 years 

 Total 

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables – considered good  6,416.36  30.94  0.03  64.99  6,512.32 

(5,539.75) (6.39) (61.64) (5,607.78)

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables – which have signif-
icant increase in credit risk

(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables – credit impaired  -    -    -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables–considered good  -    -    -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

(v) Disputed Trade Receivables – which have signifi-
cant increase in credit risk

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables – credit impaired  -    -    -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

Total  6,416.36  30.94  0.03  64.99  -    6,512.32 

(5,539.75) (6.39) (61.64)  -    -   (5,607.78)

Note:- The figures in brackets are for the previous year.

8	 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Particulars  As at 31st March, 2025  As at 31st March, 2024

Balances with Banks

      In Current Accounts  48.26  17.24 

      In Fixed Deposits  -    -   

Cash on Hand  2.49  2.05 

TOTAL  50.75  19.29 

8.1	 There are no repatriation restrictions with regard to Cash and Cash Equivalents as at the end of the current reporting period and prior periods.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025	 (Amount in Rs. in Lakhs)
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9	 Other Bank Balances

Particulars  As at 31st March, 2025  As at 31st March, 2024

Earmarked balances with banks

  - Unpaid Dividend Accounts  3.59  5.07 

   - Fixed Deposit held for guarantees (with original maturity of more than three 
months but less than twelve months) (Lodged with Government Authority/Others)

 163.44  157.83 

Accrued Interest on Fixed Deposits  -    -   

TOTAL  167.03  162.90 

9.1	 Fixed deposits held for guarantees are not available for immediate use being in the nature of security offered.

10	 Loans

Particulars  As at 31st March, 2025  As at 31st March, 2024

Non-current

Loans to Employees

(a)Loans Receivables considered good - Unsecured;  2.27  1.81 

TOTAL  2.27  1.81 

Current (At Amortised Cost)

Loans to Employees

(a) Loans Receivables considered good - Unsecured;  4.57  1.46 

TOTAL  4.57  1.46 

11	 Other Financial Assets

Particulars  As at 31st March, 2025  As at 31st March, 2024

Non-current

Unsecured, Considered Good :

Security Deposits  1,805.57  1,726.57 

Fixed Deposits with Banks** (with Maturity of more than Twelve Months) (Lodged 
with Government Authority/Others)

 47.41  134.88 

Accrued Interest on Fixed Deposits**  -    -   

TOTAL  1,852.97  1,861.44 

Current (At Amortised Cost)

Unsecured, Considered Good :

Security Deposits  -    -   

Interest Accrued on Electricity Deposits  20.41  20.41 

TOTAL  20.41  20.41 

**Financial Assets carried at Amortised Cost

11.1	 Fixed deposits held for guarantees are not available for immediate use being in the nature of security offered.

11.2	 Security deposits are receivables from various government and non government authorites.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025	 (Amount in Rs. in Lakhs)
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12	 Inventories

Particulars  As at 31st March, 2025  As at 31st March, 2024

-Valued at Lower of Cost and Net Realisable Value

     Raw Materials  1,700.41  1,189.81 

     Packing Material  18.50  36.18 

     ETP stock  3.62  9.97 

     Fuel- Non Coking stock  777.28  186.50 

     Trading Materials  10.45  2.81 

     Work in progress  1,104.63  898.42 

     Finished Goods  4,595.64  4,210.96 

     Finished Goods (Captive)  12.07  48.18 

TOTAL  8,222.61  6,582.85 

12.1     Refer Note 42 for Information on Inventories Pledged as Security.

13	 Other Assets

Particulars  As at 31st March, 2025  As at 31st March, 2024

Non-current

Unsecured, Considered Good :

     Capital Advances  140.95  168.89 

     Balances with Government Authorities @  3.80  3.80 

     Prepaid/Advance for Expenses  -    1.99 

    Gratuity provision (Surplus)  38.76  19.02 

     IT Refund Receivables  62.88  62.80 

TOTAL  246.40  256.51 

Current

Unsecured, Considered Good :

    Export Entitlements Receivable  43.72  91.09 

    Balances with Government Authorities @  713.74  551.61 

    Advance to Suppliers/Service Providers (other than capital)  34.23  29.20 

    Capital Advances  8.75  10.42 

    Prepaid/Advance for Expenses  111.45  221.07 

    Advance Income Tax Paid ( Included TDS & TCS)  14.38  9.31 

TOTAL  926.26  912.68 

	 @ Balances with Government Authorities primarily include amounts realisable from the GST and customs authorities of India and the unu-
tilised GST input credits on purchases. These are generally realised within one year or regularly utilised to offset the GST liability on goods 
manufactured by the Company.		 	 	 	 	

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025	 (Amount in Rs. in Lakhs)
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14.1	 Equity Share Capital

Particulars  As at 31st March, 2025  As at 31st March, 2024

Authorised Share Capital

1,30,00,000 (Previous Year- 1,30,00,000 ) Equity Share of Rs. 10/- each 	  1,300.00  1,300.00 

Issued and Subscribed share capital

 1,24,28,387 (Previous Year- 1,20,28,387) Equity Share of Rs. 10/- each @  1,242.84  1,203.63 

Subscribed and Partly paid up

 12,028,387 (Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up) @  1,242.84  1,202.84 

TOTAL  1,242.84  1,202.84 

	 @ During the year, the Company has converted 4,00,000 warrants into equity shares at an issue price of ₹308.50 per share, comprising a face 
value of ₹10.00 and a share premium of ₹298.50 per share. As a result of this conversion Issued and subscribed capital increased by ₹40.00 
lakhs and Securities premium amount increased by Rs. 1194.00 lakhs.	 	 	 	 	

(a) 	 The Company has one class of Equity Shares having a par value of Rs. 10/- per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held. 
The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting except 
in case of interim dividend. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company, 
after distribution of all preferential amounts in proportion to their shareholding.

(b)	 Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the Year

Particulars  No. of Shares  Amount 

Balance as at 31st March 2023  1,16,94,113  1,168.63 

Changes in equity share capital during the year

350000 Equity share fully paid up of Rs.10 each  3,50,000  35.00 

15726 Forfeited equity share partly paid up of Rs.5 each (15,726.00) (0.79)

Balance as at 31st March 2024  1,20,28,387  1,202.84 

Changes in equity share capital during the year

400000 Equity share fully paid up of Rs.10 each (Warrants converted)  4,00,000  40.00 

Balance as at 31st March 2025  1,24,28,387  1,242.84 

(c)	 Details of Shareholder holding more than 5% Equity Shares of the Company

Name of the Shareholders
As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024

Nos of Shares % of Total Shares Nos of Shares  % of Total Shares 

Bhagwandas Kalidas Patel  13,03,541 10.49%  12,67,541 10.54%

Rameshkumar Bhagwandas Patel  7,41,993 5.97%  7,13,993 5.94%

Total  20,45,534 16.46%  19,81,534 16.47%

(d)	 Details of shares held by the promoter at the end of the year:

Shares held by promoters at the end of the year
As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024

Nos of 
Shares

% of Total 
Shares

% Change
During the Year

Nos of 
Shares

 % of Total 
Shares 

 % Change 
During the Year 

Bhagwandas K Patel - HUF  71,925 0.58% 0.00%  71,925 0.60% 0.00%

Bhagwandas Kalidas Patel  13,03,541 10.49% 3.00%  12,67,541 10.54% 0.00%

Jayantilal K Patel  43,802 0.35% 0.00%  43,802 0.36% 0.00%

Rameshkumar Bhagwandas Patel  7,41,993 5.97% 4.00%  7,13,993 5.94% 0.00%

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025	 (Amount in Rs. in Lakhs)
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Kirtikumar Bhagwandas Patel  1,49,758 1.20% 23.00%  1,21,758 1.01% 0.00%

Vimalaben Bhagawandas Patel  3,37,497 2.72% 0.00%  3,37,497 2.81% 0.00%

Mukeshbhai B Patel  1,20,310 0.97% 0.00%  1,20,310 1.00% 0.00%

Vishnubhai Bhagwanbhai Patel  89,671 0.72% 0.00%  89,671 0.75% 0.00%

Dixit Bhagwandas Patel  2,10,652 1.69% 14.00%  1,85,502 1.54% 0.00%

Dalchhiben Bhagwanbhai Patel  43,155 0.35% 0.00%  43,155 0.36% 0.00%

Kaminiben Vishnubhai Patel  51,528 0.41% 0.00%  51,528 0.43% 0.00%

Chetnaben M Patel  1,38,600 1.12% 0.00%  1,38,600 1.15% 0.00%

Mittal Dixit Patel  33,600 0.27% 0.00%  33,600 0.28% 0.00%

Kantilal Kalidas Patel  55,150 0.44% 0.00%  55,150 0.46% 0.00%

Hansaben Rameshbhai Patel  31,021 0.25% 0.00%  31,021 0.26% 0.00%

Bhagvatiben Kirtibhai Patel  45,638 0.37% 0.00%  45,638 0.38% 0.00%

Sachin R Patel  20,038 0.16% 0.00%  20,038 0.17% 0.00%

Dixit Bhagwandas Patel Huf  12,180 0.10% 0.00%  12,180 0.10% 0.00%

Dynemic Holdings Private Limited  1,56,320 1.26% 0.00%  1,56,320 1.30% 0.00%

Total  36,56,379 29.42%  35,39,229 29.42%

	 As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholder / members and other declarations received from shareholders regarding 
beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares.

(e) 	 For the period of 5 years immediately preceding the balance sheet date, aggregate number and class of shares allotted (a) as fully paid up pur-
suant to contract(s) without payment being received in cash -Nil, (Previous year - Nil) (b) as fully paid up by way of bonus shares  -Nil  (Previous 
year - Nil) and (c) shares bought back  Nil (Previous year - Nil)

(f) 	 Thare is no call unpaid by Directors or any Officers of the Company during the year.

14.2	 Other Equity

Particulars  As at 31st March, 2025  As at 31st March, 2024

Securities Premium Account

Opening Balance  3,503.05  2,543.44 

Add : Premium received on issue of equity shares  1,194.00  1,027.84 

Less : Share issue expesnes adjusted against Security Premium  -    68.24 

Closing Balance  4,697.05  3,503.05 

General Reserve

Opening Balance  502.18  502.18 

Less: Utilised / Transfer during the year  -    -   

Closing Balance  502.18  502.18 

Retained Earnigs

Opening Balance  14,459.39  14,075.52 

Profit for the Year  1,500.00  361.76 

Items of Other Comprehensive Income recognised directly in Retained Earnings

Remeasurements on Post-employment Defined Benefit Plans, Net of Tax  8.92  22.10 

Transfer to General Reserve

Closing Balance  15,968.31  14,459.39 
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Capital Reserve

Opening Balance  17.69  -   

Add: Addition during the year  -    17.69 

Less: Capital Reserve used during the year  -    -   

Closing Balance  17.69  17.69 

Warrants

Opening Balance  578.44  -   

Add: Warrants issued during the year  655.56  578.44 

Less: Shares issued against warants  1,234.00  -   

Closing Balance  -    578.44 

Total Other Equity  21,185.23  19,060.74 

	 Nature and purpose of each Reserve

	 Securities Premium Account

	 Securities Premium Account is used to record premium received on issue of shares. This reserve may be utilised in accordance with the provi-
sions of Section 52 of the Act.	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 During the year, the Company has converted 4,00,000 warrants into equity shares at an issue price of ₹308.50 per share, comprising a face 
value of ₹10.00 and a share premium of ₹298.50 per share. As a result of this conversion Issued and subscribed capital increased by ₹40.00 
lakhs and Securities premium amount increased by Rs. 1194.00 lakhs.	 	 	 	 	 	

15	 Borrowings

Particulars  As at 31st March, 2025  As at 31st March, 2024

Non-current
Secured
 * HDFC Bank Ltd.- Car Loans  4.52  7.43 
(Secured against the specific cars)
Defaults:-    NIL
Terms of Repayment -  60 Monthly instalments
Principal Amount- Rs. 14.00
Date of start of repayments- 05/09/2021
Nos of Installments- 36 monthly installments
Due Date of Last Installment- 05/08/2026
Rate of Interest- 13.06% 
Less: Current Maturities of Long-term Debt  3.14  2.91 
 * HDFC Bank Ltd.- Car Loans 8.64 10.44
(Secured against the specific cars)

Defaults:-    NIL
Terms of Repayment -  60 Monthly instalments
Principal Amount- Rs. 10.72
Date of start of repayments- 05/02/2024
Nos of Installments- 60 monthly installments
Due Date of Last Installment- 05/01/2029
Rate of Interest- 9.15% 
Less: Current Maturities of Long-term Debt  1.97  1.80 
Net Non Current Amount  8.05  13.16 
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  * Citi Bank N.A.-- Term Loan FCTL-1  482.81  1,388.13 
Defaults:-    NIL
Terms of Repayment -   20 Quarterly Intallments after 12 months moratorium
Principal Amount- Total Amt.USD 5674526.54 equivalent of INR 4000.00 LACS
Principal Amount-1- USD 2870264.06 equivalent of INR 2000.00 LACS
Date of start of repayments-  29/08/2020
Nos of Installments- 20 Quarterly installments
Due Date of Last Installment- 29/05/2025
Rate of Interest- 5.60%
Terms of Repayment -   20 Quarterly Intallments after 12 months moratorium
Principal Amount-2- USD 2804262.48 equivalent of INR 2000.00 LACS
Date of start of repayments-  31/03/2021
Nos of Installments- 20 Quarterly installments
Due Date of Last Installment- 31/12/2025
Rate of Interest- 5.30%
Less: Current Maturities of Long-term Debt  482.81  927.22 
  * Citi Bank N.A.-- Term Loan FCTL-2  584.57  1,116.12 
Defaults:-    NIL
Terms of Repayment -   16 Quarterly Intallments after 12 months moratorium
Principal Amount-  USD 2732240.44 equivalent of INR 2000.00 LACS
Date of start of repayments-  30/06/2022
Nos of Installments- 16 Quarterly installments
Due Date of Last Installment- 30/03/2026
Rate of Interest- 4.00%
Less: Current Maturities of Long-term Debt  584.57  558.06 
Net Non Current Amount  -    1,018.97 

Particulars  As at 31st March, 2025  As at 31st March, 2024

  * HDFC Bank-- Term Loan  800.00  1,600.00 

Defaults:-    NIL

Terms of Repayment -   20 Quarterly Intallments after 12 months moratorium

Principal Amount- INR 4000.00 LACS

Date of start of repayments-  01/07/2021

Nos of Installments- 20 Quarterly installments

Due Date of Last Installment- 17/03/2026

Rate of Interest- 3_M_T_BILL + 4.40% or 11.30% p.a.

Less: Current Maturities of Long-term Debt  800.00  800.00 

 * HDFC Bank Ltd (GECL) Loan-Term Loan-INR)  307.08  642.08 

Defaults:-    NIL

Terms of Repayment -   48 Monthly Intallments after 12 months moratorium

Principal Amount- INR 1340.00 LACS

Date of start of repayments-  01/04/2022

Nos of Installments- 48 Monthly installments

Due Date of Last Installment- 27/02/2026

Rate of Interest- 3_M_T_BILL + 0.85% or 7.19% p.a.

Less: Current Maturities of Long-term Debt  307.08  335.00 
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 * HDFC Bank Ltd (GECL) Loan-Term Loan-INR)  1,237.69  1,883.44 

Defaults:-    NIL

Terms of Repayment -   48 Monthly Intallments after 12 months moratorium

Principal Amount- INR 2583.00 LACS

Date of start of repayments-  01/04/2023

Nos of Installments- 48 Monthly installments

Due Date of Last Installment- 01/03/2027

Rate of Interest- 3_M_T_BILL + 1.20% or 7.54% p.a.

Less: Current Maturities of Long-term Debt  645.75  645.75 

* Kotak Mahindra Bank Ltd -- Term Loan - INR  199.99  -   

Defaults:-    NIL

Terms of Repayment - 60 Monthly Intallments

Principal Amount- INR 199.99 Lakhs

Date of start of repayments-  01/05/2025

Nos of Installments- 60 Monthly installments

Due Date of Last Installment- 01/04/2030

Rate of Interest- REPO Rate + 3.25 or 9.50% p.a.

Less: Current Maturities of Long-term Debt  36.66  -   

Net Non Current Amount  755.26  2,344.77 

TOTAL NON CURRENT AMOUNT  763.31  3,376.90 

Particulars  As at 31st March, 2025  As at 31st March, 2024

Current

Secured (At amortized cost)

Loans Repayable on Demand from Banks*

Bill Discounting Facilities

  * Citi Bank N.A. - PCFC  1,330.39  1,345.38 

  * HDFC BANK - PCFC  490.60  416.75 

  * Kotak Mahindra Bank Ltd - PIF  731.37  -   

Cash Credit/Export Credit Facilities

  * Citi Bank N.A.  990.88  730.36 

  * Axis Bank Ltd.  -    597.79 

  * Kotak Mahindra Bank Ltd  751.43  -   

  * HDFC Bank Ltd (C/C A/C)  1,667.57  1,425.50 

Loans Repayable on Demand from Banks Total  5,962.24  4,515.77 

Current Maturities of Long-term Debt

 * HDFC Bank Ltd.- Car Loans  5.11  4.71 

  * Citi Bank N.A.-- Term Loan FCTL-1  482.81  927.22 

  * Citi Bank N.A.-- Term Loan FCTL-2  584.57  558.06 

  * HDFC Bank-- Term Loan  800.00  800.00 

  * Kotak Mahindra Bank Ltd -- Term Loan  36.66  -   

 * HDFC Bank Ltd (GECL) Loan-Term Loan-INR)  307.08  335.00 

 * HDFC Bank Ltd (GECL) Loan-Term Loan-INR)  645.75  645.75 

Current Maturities of Long-term Debt  Total  2,861.99  3,270.74 
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Unsecured (At amortized cost)

Loan from Directors  -    190.00 

Loan from Others  -    100.00 

TOTAL CURRENT AMOUNT  8,824.23  8,076.51 

15.1	 Refer Note No. 38 for Related parties transaction.

*Security for Working Capital						    

	 (a) 	 First pari passu hypothecation charge shared with HDFC Bank, Citi Bank and Kotak Mahindra Bank on all existing and future current 
assets of the Company.	 	 	 	 	 	

	 (b) 	 Second pari passu hypothecation charge shared with HDFC Bank, Citi bank and Kotak Mahindra Bank on all Movable Fixed Assets of 
the company at Unit 1 (situated at GIDC, Ankleshwar) and Unit 2 (situated at GIDC, Ankleshwar).	 	 	 	

	 (c) 	 Second pari passu hypothecation charge shared with HDFC Bank and Citi bank on Movable Fixed Assets of the company at Unit 3 
(situated at GIDC, Dahej).	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

*Security for Term loan						    

	 (a) 	 Second pari passu hypothecation charge shared with HDFC Bank, Citi Bank and Kotak Mahindra Bank on all existing and future current 
assets of the Company.	 	 	 	 	 	

	 (b) 	 First pari passu hypothecation charge shared with HDFC Bank, Citi Bank and Kotak Mahindra Bank on all Movable Fixed Assets of the 
Company at Unit 1 (situated at GIDC, Ankleshwar) and Unit 2 (situated at GIDC, Ankleshwar).		

	 (c) 	 First pari passu hypothecation charge shared with HDFC Bank and Citi Bank on Movable Fixed Assets and Immovable assets of the 
company at Unit 3 (situated at GIDC, Dahej).	 	 	 	 	 	

	 (d) 	 First Paripassu registered mortgage charge shared with HDFC Bank, Citi Bank and Kotak Mahindra Bank on immoveable properties 
at Unit 1 (situated at GIDC, Ankleshwar), Unit 2 (situated at GIDC, Ankleshwar) and Head office (Registered Office situated at Ah-
medabad).	 	 	 	 	 	

*Security for ECLGS Loan						    

	 (a) 	 Second pari passu hypothecation charge shared with HDFC Bank on all existing and future current assets	 	 	

	 (b) 	 Second pari passu hypothecation charge shared with HDFC Bank on all Movable Fixed Assets of the company of Unit 1 (situated at 
GIDC, Ankleshwar), Unit 2 (situated at GIDC, Ankleshwar) and Unit 3 (situated at GIDC, Dahej).	

	 (c) 	 Second Paripassu registered mortgage charge shared with HDFC Bankon immoveable properties at Unit 1 (situated at GIDC, Ankle-
shwar), Unit 2 (situated at GIDC, Ankleshwar) and Unit 3 (situated at GIDC, Dahej) and Head office (Registered Office situated at Ah-
medabad)	 	 	 	 	

* By personal guarantee of directors Shri  Bhagwandas K Patel, Shri Ramesh B Patel, & Shri Dixit B Patel.  	 	 	 	

	 (e)	 Reconciliation of quarterly returns submitted to banks where borrowings have been availed based on security of current assets.

Quarter 
Ended Particulars Amount as per 

books of account

"Amount as report-
ed in the quarterly 
return/statement"

Amount of differ-
ence

Reason for differ-
ences

Jun-24
Inventory  7,851.51  7,836.80  14.71 

Trade Receivable 
submitted to Bank 
considering Net of 

Advance.

Trade Receivables  6,002.91  5,753.88  249.03 

Sep-24
Inventory  7,965.48  7,863.44  102.04 

Trade Receivables  6,723.80  6,706.73  17.08 

Dec-24
Inventory  7,450.23  7,451.30 (1.07)

Trade Receivables	  6,880.18  6,949.86 (69.69)

Mar-25
Inventory  8,222.61  8,222.61  -   

Trade Receivables	  6,419.97  6,419.97  -   

15.1	 Refer Note 42 for details of carrying amount of assets pledged/ hypothecated as security for secured borrowings and Note 40 for informatio 
about liquidity risk and market risk on borrowings.
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16	 Trade Payables

Particulars  As at 31st March, 
2025

 As at 31st March, 
2024

Current

Trade Payables

Dues of Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises (Refer Note 33)  839.40  2,122.09 

Dues of Creditors other than Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises  6,764.32  4,700.24 

TOTAL  7,603.72  6,822.33 

16.1    Refer Note 40 for information about liquidity risk and market risk on trade payables.

16.2	 Trade Payables ageing schedule					   

Particulars
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment#

Less than 1 
year 1-2 years 2-3 years  More than 3 

years  Total 

i) MSME  839.40  -    -    -    839.40 

(2,122.09)  -    -    -   (2,122.09)

(ii) Others  6,586.73  129.64  8.96  38.73  6,764.06 

(4,577.36) (51.45) (70.77)  -   (4,699.58)

(iii) Disputed dues – MSME  -    -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -    -   

(iv) Disputed dues - Others  -    -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -    -   

Total                                    FY  24-25 7,426.13 129.64 8.96 38.73 7,603.46

Total                                    FY  23-24 (6,699.45) (51.45) (70.77)  -   (6,821.68)

Note:-  The figures in brackets are for the previous year.

17	 Other Financial Liabilities

Particulars  As at 31st March, 2025  As at 31st March, 2024

Non-current

Other Sundry Creditors Payable for Expenses  -    0.01 

Security Deposits- Employee Bonds  0.02  0.42 

TOTAL  0.02  0.43 

Current

Business Credit card  0.03  91.73 

Unpaid Dividends (refer Note No.17.1 below)  3.59  5.07 

TOTAL  3.62  96.80 

17.1	 There are no due for transfer to the Investor Education and Protection Fund during the year as at the Balance Sheet date.
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18	 Provisions

Particulars  As at 31st March, 2025  As at 31st March, 2024

Non-current

Provisions for Employee Benefits (Refer Note 36)  35.70  38.37 

TOTAL  35.70  38.37 

Current

Provision For Expenses  11.69  9.66 

Provisions for Employee Salary & Benefits (Refer Note 36)  152.54  130.57 

TOTAL  164.23  140.23 

19	 Current Tax Liabilities

Particulars  As at 31st March, 2025  As at 31st March, 2024

A. Tax Expense Recognised in Profit or Loss

Curent Tax

Current Tax Liabilities  0.44  2.26 

B. Tax on Other Comprehensive Income

Current Tax

Remeasurements on Post-employment Defined Benefit Plans  -    -   

TOTAL  0.44  2.26 

19.1 	 In view of absence of net taxable income in Parent company as per provisions of Income Tax Act,1961 on account of carried forward losses of 
earlier years , no current tax provision is required to be provided for the year

20	 Other Current Liabilities

Particulars  As at 31st March, 2025  As at 31st March, 2024

Dues Payable to Government Authorities @  20.20  40.50 

Advances from Customers  172.73  84.62 

TOTAL  192.93  125.12 

	 @ Dues Payable to Government Authorities comprise GST, sales tax, excise duty, withholding taxes, payroll taxes, service tax, value added tax, 
entry tax and other taxes payable.

21	 Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)

Particulars  As at 31st March, 2025  As at 31st March, 2024

Deferred Tax Liabilities/(Assets  1,584.96  1,038.70 

TOTAL  1,584.96  1,038.70 

	 Significant  Movements  Deferred Tax  Assets and Liabilities during the year.

Particulars As at
31st March, 2024

 Recognised in 
Profit & Loss

 As at 
31st March, 2025

Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets  1,500.21  183.84  1,684.05 

Total Deferred Tax Liabilities  1,500.21  183.84  1,684.05 

Unabsorbed Loss (461.50) 362.41 (99.09)

Total Deferred Tax Assets (461.50) 362.41 (99.09)

Net Deferred Tax Liabilites (Assets)  1,038.70 546.25  1,584.96 
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Significant  Movements  Deferred Tax  Assets and Liabilities during the year.

Particulars As at 
31st March, 2023

 Recognised in 
Profit & Loss 

 As at 
31st March, 2024

Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets  1,187.99  312.22  1,500.21 

Total Deferred Tax Liabilities  1,187.99  312.22  1,500.21 

Unabsorbed Loss (83.50) (378.00) (461.50)

Total Deferred Tax Assets (83.50) (378.00) (461.50)

Net Deferred Tax Liabilites (Assets)  1,104.49 (65.78)  1,038.70 

22	 Revenue from Operations

Particulars As at 
31st March, 2025

As at
31st March, 2024

Sale of Products *

Manufactured Goods

     Dyes & Intermediates  12,151.44  7,554.92 

     Sythetic Food Colours  22,778.16  19,307.45 

Trading Goods  1,160.15  1,109.21 

Net Product Sales  36,089.74  27,971.58 

*(The above sales are net of (exclusive of) Inter Branch/ Unit Transfer)

Other Operating Revenues

Discounts Others  -    0.63 

Export Incentive Income  398.96  399.29 

Foreign Exchange Gain & Loss- Exports & Imports  201.77  26.08 

Rates & Quality Difference  44.69  -   

Scrap Sale Income  16.93  6.90 

Total Other Operating Revenues  662.36  432.90 

Total Revenue from Operations  36,752.10  28,404.48 

23	 Other Income

Particulars As at 
31st March, 2025

As at
31st March, 2024

Profit on Sales Investments  -    0.06 
Dividend Received  0.35  0.34 
Interest Income on
       - Fixed Deposits with Banks  18.85  23.49 
       - Staff Loan  0.60  0.33 
       - Income tax Refund  0.35  21.01 
       - Deposit with GEB & ETL  22.89  22.89 
Office Rent Income  0.12  0.12 
TOTAL  43.16  68.24 

24	 Cost of Materials Consumed

Particulars As at 
31st March, 2025

As at
31st March, 2024

Opening Stock  1,189.81  1,314.91 
Add: Purchases during the year *  19,128.42  13,412.81 

 20,318.23  14,727.72 
Less : Closing Stock  1,700.41  1,189.81 
TOTAL  18,617.82  13,537.90 
*(The above purchases are net of ( exclusive of) Inter Branch/ Unit transfers)
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25	 Purchases of Stock-in-trade

Particulars As at 
31st March, 2025

As at
31st March, 2024

Chemical Items  914.08  874.44 
TOTAL  914.08  874.44 

26	 Changes in Inventories

Particulars As at 
31st March, 2025

As at
31st March, 2024

OPENING INVENTORIES :

Finished Goods  4,210.96  4,141.44 

Finished Goods (Captive)  48.18  8.94 

Trading Stocks  2.81  21.34 

Work-in-Progress  898.42  862.06 

TOTAL  5,160.38  5,033.77 

CLOSING INVENTORIES :

Finished Goods  4,595.64  4,210.96 

Finished Goods ( Captive)  12.07  48.18 

Trading Stocks  10.45  2.81 

Work-in-Progress  1,104.63  898.42 

TOTAL  5,722.79  5,160.38 

TOTAL (562.42) (126.60)

27	 Employee Benefit Expenses

Particulars As at 
31st March, 2025

As at
31st March, 2024

Salary, Wages & Bonus  1,727.66  1,509.28 
Staff Welfare Exps.  147.52  111.88 
Salaries  & Bonus to Directors  284.29  245.69 
Refer Note No. 27.1
Contribution to Provident Fund & Other Funds  95.90  88.77 
Gratuity Inurance Premium  ( See Note 36)  25.55  32.62 
TOTAL  2,280.93  1,988.24 

27.1	 Refer Note No.38 for Related Parties Transactions

28	 Finance Costs

Particulars As at  31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024
Interest Expense on:  
    - Term Loans  356.41  579.82 
    - Cash Credit and Working Capital Demand Loan  409.77  383.13 
    - Others  77.16  98.20 
Foreign Exchange Difference regarded as an Adjustment to Borrowing Costs  218.16  178.58 
Bank and Other Finance Charges  77.87  49.55 
TOTAL  1,139.38  1,289.28 

28.1	 Refer Note No.38 for Related Parties Transactions
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29	 Depreciation and Amortisation Expense

Particulars As at 
31st March, 2025

As at
31st March, 2024

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment (Refer Note 4.1)  1,635.26  1,660.64 
Amortisation of Expense  7.76  7.76 
TOTAL  1,643.02  1,668.40 

30	 Other expenses

Particulars As at 
31st March, 2025

As at
31st March, 2024

Other Manufacturing Expenses (Refer Note 30.1)  9,126.53  7,446.25 
Repairs and Maintenance Expenses (Refer Note 30.2)  722.14  680.98 
Administrative and Other Expenses (Refer Note 30.3)  750.15  635.69 
Selling and distribution expenses (Refer Note 30.4)  115.48  167.99 
TOTAL  10,714.30  8,930.91 

30.1	 Other Manufacturing Expenses

Particulars As at 
31st March, 2025

As at
31st March, 2024

PACKING MATERIAL CONSUMED
Op. Stock  36.18  25.84 
Add: Purchases during the year  569.09  508.16 

 605.27  534.00 
Less : Closing stock  18.50  36.18 
Total  586.77  497.82 
E.T.P MATERIAL CONSUMED
Op. Stock  9.97  7.88 
Add: Purchases during the year  341.47  196.66 

 351.44  204.54 
Less : Closing stock  3.62  9.97 
Total  347.82  194.57 

POWER & FUEL CONSUMED
Electric Power & Burning  1,933.12  1,674.44 
Fuel Purchased & Consumed  1,110.72  1,306.40 
Gas Consumption Charges  1,464.21  1,207.00 
Total  4,508.05  4,187.85 
OTHER MFGS. EXPENSES
Consumable Stores  412.62  264.98 
ETP Expense  803.05  551.63 
Factory & Other Expenses  160.35  102.47 
Rates & Quality Difference (Purchase)  -    0.49 
Forwarding & Handling Charges  514.85  413.55 
Labour & Job Charges  1,487.25  1,017.76 
Transportations Expenses  305.77  215.13 
Total  3,683.89  2,566.01 

TOTAL  9,126.53  7,446.25 
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30.2	 Repairs and Maintenance Expenses 

Particulars As at 
31st March, 2025

As at
31st March, 2024

Building & Premises Repairing  82.53  50.79 
Consumable Stores (Plant, MEE & Electricals)  353.33  320.18 
Repairing & Maintenance- Others  19.67  11.36 
Machinery Parts, Repairs & Maintenance  266.61  298.65 
TOTAL  722.14  680.98 

30.3	 Administrative and Other Expenses

Particulars As at 
31st March, 2025

As at
31st March, 2024

Angadia & Courier Exp  22.48  19.97 
Consultancy & Professional Fees  49.32  38.92 
Cost Audit Fees  1.15  1.15 
Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses (Refer Note No.:30.4)  15.75  40.62 
FDA Approval Fees  94.87  35.66 
Insurance Premium  92.70  86.90 
Lab-Testing Expense  25.39  20.62 
Loss/Profits on sale/w/o of assets  3.03  2.37 
Office Electric Bill Exp.  4.76  4.44 
Other Administrative & Estabishment Exps  24.86  37.25 
Legal & Other Fees  74.25  43.81 
Payments to Auditors (Refer Note No: 30.5)  8.91  8.91 
Security Exp  88.61  77.60 
Stationery & Printing Expense  26.40  15.57 
Sitting Fees to Directors  0.96  1.36 
Telephone Exps-Others  3.09  2.18 
Travelling & Conveyance  116.29  121.61 
Water Charges  97.32  76.75 
TOTAL  750.15  635.69 

30.4	 Selling and distribution expenses					   

Particulars
 For the year ended 

31 March 2025

 For the year ended 

31 March 2024

Exhibition Exp.  32.92  21.35 

Sales Promotion Exps  9.27  29.20 

Selling Commission  73.29  117.44 

TOTAL  115.48  167.99 
30.4.1 Refer Note No.38 for Related Parties Transactions
30.5 	 Payments to Auditors comprise

Particulars
 For the year ended 

31 March 2025

 For the year ended 

31 March 2024

(i)    Statutory Auditors

       As Auditor  8.91  8.91 

       As Audit Fee -Financial Statements

30.6	 Corporate Social Responsibility Expenditure:
	 As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a company, meeting the applicability threshold, needs to spend at least 2% of its average 

net profit for the immediately preceding three financial years on corporate social responsibility (CSR) activities. The areas for CSR activities 
are eradication of hunger and malnutrition, promoting education, art and culture, healthcare, destitute care and rehabilitation, environ-
ment sustainability, disaster relief, COVID-19 relief and rural development projects as specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013
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	 A CSR committee has been formed by the company as per the Act. The funds were primarily utilized through the year on these activities which 
are specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013:	 	 	 	 	 	

 As at 31st March, 2025  As at 31st March, 2024 

a)    Amount required to be spent as per Section 135 of the Companies Act 
2013 for the year

 14.89  38.36

b)    Amount of expenditure incurred as approved by Board  15.05  38.37

c)    Shortfall/ (Excess) at the end of the year  (0.16)  (0.01)

d)   Total of previous years shortfall  Nil  Nil 

e)   Reason for shortfall  NA  NA 

f)     Nature of CSR activities CSR initiatives Related to the 
Environment

 Women Empowerment, 
Medical, Rural Develop-
ment, Education, Food, 

Environment Protection etc 

g)    Details of related party transactions e.g.,contribution to a trust con-
trolled by the company in relation to CSR expenditure

0.00  00.00

h)    Where a provision is made with respect to a liability incurred by enter-
ing into a contractual obligation, the movements in the provision during the 
year should be shown separately.

 N.A  N.A 

31	 Income Tax Expense

Particulars As at 
31st March, 2025

As at
31st March, 2024

A. Tax Expense recognised in Profit or Loss

Current Tax

Current Tax on Profits for the Year  0.54  2.26 

Adjustment for Current Tax of Earlier Years  0.75  10.96 

 1.29  13.22 

Deferred Tax

Origination and Reversal of Temporary Differences 546.25 (64.41)

Income Tax Expense  547.54 (51.18)

B. Tax on Other Comprehensive Income

Current Tax

Remeasurements on Post-employment Defined Benefit Plans  -    -   

31.1	 Numerical Reconciliation of Income Tax Expense to Prima Facie Tax Payable

Particulars As at 
31st March, 2025

As at
31st March, 2024

Profit before Income Tax Expense 2,048.15 310.14

Enacted Statutory Income Tax Rate in India applicable to the Company 25.168% 25.168%

Computed Expected Income Tax Expense  515.50  78.12 

Tax effect of:

Expenses disallowed (155.29) (66.89)

Adjustment for Current Tax of Earlier Years  0.75  10.96 

Decremental of DTA on account of carry forward loss (359.68) (8.97)

Total of Tax effect (514.21) (64.90)

Current Tax Provision (A)  1.29  13.22 
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Incremental DTL / (DTA) on account of Property, Plant and Equipment  183.84  313.60 

Incremental DTL / (DTA) on account of carry forward loss  362.41 (378.00)

Deferred Tax Provision (B) 546.25 (64.41)

Tax Expenses Recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss (A+B)  547.54 (51.18)

32	 Earnings per Equity Share

Particulars As at 
31st March, 2025

As at
31st March, 2024

(A) Basic

(i) Number of Equity Shares at the Beginning of the Year  1,20,28,387  1,16,94,113 

(ii) Number of Equity Shares at the End of the Year  1,24,28,387  1,20,28,387 

(iii) Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares  1,20,56,880  1,18,55,536 

Outstanding during the Year

(iv) Face Value of Each Equity Share (Rs.)  10.00  10.00 

(v) Profit after Tax Available for Equity Shareholders Profit for the Year 1,500.03 361.89

(vi) Basic Earnings per Equity Share (Rs.) 12.44 3.49

(vi) Basic Earnings per Equity Share (Restated) 12.44 3.46

(B) Diluted

(ii) Diluted Earnings per Equity Share (Rs.) 12.44 3.49

(ii) Diluted Earnings per Equity Share (Rs.) (Restated) 12.44 3.46

33	 Information relating to Micro and Small Enterprises (MSEs)

Particulars As at 
31st March, 2025

As at
31st March, 2024

(1) The principal amount and the interest due thereon remain-
ing unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each accounting year

Principal Amount  839.40  2,122.09 

Interest Amount  -    -   

(2) The amount of interest paid by the buyer under MSMED Act, 
2006 along with the amounts of the payment made to the sup-
plier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year;

Principal Amount  -    -   

Interest Amount  -    -   

(3) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment 
(which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without add-
ing the interest specified

 -    -   

(4) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting 
year

(5) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding 
years, until such date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small enter-
prise, for the Purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure

Note: The above information has been determined based on vendors identified by the Company and confirmed by the vendors, Whenev-
er it is not confirmed, it is presented as other than Micro, or Small Enterprise.
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34	 Contingencies -

Particulars As at 
31st March, 2025

As at
31st March, 2024

A ) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts:
Taxes, duties and other demands (under appeal/dispute)
(i) The aggregate amount involved in the various Show Cause Notices issued by Office of the 
Superintendent of Central Excise & Customs, Range-II, Division-II, Ankleshwar regarding the 
Cenvat Credit availed by the Company on some services is not admissible to them and such 
wrongful availment and utilization of Cenvat Credit liablle to be reversed. The Company has 
filed replies to the said Show Cause Notices

 64.85  64.85 

(ii) Deemed Dividend U/s 2(22)(e) of Income Tax Act 1961, for AY 2012-13, appeal is pendnig 
with CIT Apeals-I

 12.92  12.92 

(iii) Penalty u/s 270A   of Income Tax Act 1961, for AY 2017-18, appeal is pendnig with CIT 
Apeals-I

 35.13  35.13 

(b) Guarantees
Bank Guarantees  / Letter of Credits  159.60  242.00 

35	 Contingencies -

Particulars As at 
31st March, 2025

As at
31st March, 2024

(a) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and  -    -   

not provided for (net of advances)

36	 Employee Benefits :-	 				  

	 (I)    Post Employment Defined Benefits Plans :						    

	 (A)   Gratuity (Funded)	 	 	 	 	 	

	 The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering eligible employees. As per the plan, the Gratuity Fund Trusts, 
administered and managed by the Trustees and funded primarily with Life Insurance Corporation of India (LICI), make payment to vested 
employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of employment, of an amount based on the respective employee’s salary and 
the tenure of employment. Vesting occurs upon completion of five years of service. The Trustees are responsible for the overall governance 
of the plan and to act in accordance with the provisions of the trust deed and rules in the best interests of the plan participants. Each year an 
Asset-Liability matching study is performed in which the consequences of the strategic investment policies are analysed in terms of risk and re-
turn profiles. Investment and contribution policies are integrated within this study. Liabilities with regard to the Gratuity Plan are determined 
by actuarial valuation as set out in Note 2(t)(ii) above, based upon which, the Company makes contributions to the Employees’ Gratuity Funds.

	 The following table sets forth the particulars in respect of the Gratuity Plan (Funded) of the Company:	 (Amount in Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31st March, 2025

As at
31st March, 2024

(a) Reconciliation of Opening and Closing Balances of the Present Value of Defined Benefit 
Obligations:-

     Present Value of Obligation at the beginning of the year  270.85  248.32 

     Current Service Cost  26.92  28.07 

     Past Service Cost  -    -   

     Interest Cost  19.56  18.62 

     Remeasurements Losses  -    -   

     Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due to Change in Demographic Assumptions  -    -   

     Actuarial Losses arising from Changes in Financial Assumptions 7.06 6.87

     Actuarial Losses arising from Changes in Experience Adjustments (17.39) (26.27)

     Benefits Paid (11.89) (4.76)

Present Value of Obligation at the end of the year  295.10  270.85 
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(b) Reconciliation of the Opening and Closing Balances of the Fair Value of Plan Assets:

     Fair Value of Plan Assets at the beginning of the year  289.87  201.52 

     Interest Income  20.93  15.11 

     Remeasurements Gains  -    -   

     Actuarial Losses arising from Changes in Experience Adjustments  -    -   

     Return on Plan Assets (excluding amount included in Net Interest Cost) (1.42) 2.70

     Contributions by Employer  36.37  75.30 

     Benefits Paid (11.89) (4.76)

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the year  333.86  289.87 

( c) Reconciliation of the Present Value of the defined benefits Obligation and the Fair Value 
of Plan Assets - Amount Recognized in the Balance Sheet:

     (Present Value of Obligation at the end of the year) (295.10) (270.85)

     Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the year 333.86 289.87

     Fund Status (Surplus/ Deficit)) 38.76 19.02

Net (Liabilities)/ Assets Recognised in the Balance Sheet 38.76 19.02

(d) Actual Return on Plan Assets  20.93  15.11 

(e) Expense Recognisable in Profit or Loss :

     Current Service Cost  26.92  28.07 

     Net Interest Cost (1.37)  3.51 

     Past Service Cost  -    -   

     Expenses Recognised in Profit or Loss for Current Period@  25.55  31.58 

(f) Expenses Recognized in the Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) for Current Period

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligation For the Period (10.34) (19.40)

Return on Plan Assets, Excluding Interest Income 1.42 (2.70)

Change in Asset Ceiling  -    -   

Net (Income)/Expense For the Period Recognized in OCI (8.92) (22.10)

(g)   Balance Sheet Reconciliation

Opening Net Liability (19.02)  46.80 

Expenses Recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss  25.55  31.58 

Expenses Recognized in OCI (8.92) (22.10)

     Net Liability/(Asset) Transfer In  -    -   

     Net (Liability)/Asset Transfer Out  -    -   

     (Benefit Paid Directly by the Employer)  -    -   

     (Employer's Contribution) (36.37) (75.30)

Net Liability/(Asset) Recognized in the Balance Sheet (38.76) (19.02)

(h) Category of Plan Assets:

     Funded with LIC 100.00% 100.00%

     Insurance fund  333.86  289.87 

     Total  333.86  289.87 
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(i) Maturity profile of Defined Benefits Obligations:

     1st Following Year  45.59  46.39 

     2nd Following Year  7.43  5.70 

     3rd Following Year  20.08  7.37 

     4th Following Year  8.95  19.83 

     5th Following Year  26.20  8.59 

     Sum of Years 6 To 10  96.94  109.82 

     Sum of Years 11 and above  509.92  468.59 

(j) Actuarial Assumptions:

     Expected Returns on Plan Assets 7.22% 7.22%

     Rate of Discounting 7.22% 7.22%

     Rate of Salary Increase 7.00% 7.00%

     Rate of Employee Turnover 2.00% 2.00%

     Mortality Rate During Employment  Indian Assured 
Lives Mortality 

2012-14 (Urban) 

 Indian Assured 
Lives Mortality 

2012-14 (Urban) 

(k) Other Details:

     No of Members in Service  468  446 

     Per Month Salary For Members in Service 62.08 61.01

     Weighted Average Duration of the Defined Benefit Obligation  11  11 

     Average Expected Future Service  20  20 

     Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO) - Total 295.10 270.85

     Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO) - Due but Not Paid  -    -   

(l) Net Interest Cost for Next Year

     Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the End of the Period 295.10 270.85

     (Fair Value of Plan Assets at the End of the Period) (333.86) (289.87)

     Net Liability/(Asset) at the End of the Period (38.76) (19.02)

     Interest Cost 20.54 19.56

     (Interest Income) (23.24) (20.93)

     Net Interest Cost for Next Year (2.70) (1.37)

(m) Expenses Recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss for Next Year

     Current Service Cost 28.71 26.92

     Net Interest Cost (2.70) (1.37)

     (Expected Contributions by  the Employees ) 0.00 0.00

     Expenses Recoginised 26.01 25.55

(n) Sensitivity Analysis

     Defined Benefit Obligation on Current Assumptions  295.10  270.85 

     Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Discounting (25.49) (23.13)

     Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Discounting  30.41  27.43 

     Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Salary Increase  26.78  24.34 

     Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Salary Increase (24.37) (22.21)

     Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Employee Turnover (0.05)  0.69 

     Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Employee Turnover (0.00) (0.84)
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The sensitivity analysis have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the report-
ing period, while holding all other assumptions constant.	 	 	 	 	 	

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the Defined Benefit Obligation as it is unlikely that the 
change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the Defined Benefit Obligation has been calculated using the projected 
unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same method as applied in calculating the Defined Benefit Obligation as recognised 
in the balance sheet.						    

There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years.

The estimate of future salary increases takes into account inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as demand and supply in the 
employment market.	 	 	 	 	 	

(II) 	 Post Employment Defined Contributions Plans :						    

(A) 	 Provident Fund						    

	 Certain categories of employees of the Company receive benefits from a provident fund, a defined contribution plan. Both the employee and 
employer make monthly contributions to a government administered fund at specified percentage of the covered employee’s qualifying sal-
ary. The Company has no further obligations under the plan beyond its monthly contributions. During the year, an amount of Rs. 89.77 Lakhs 
(Previous Year Rs. 81.56 Lakhs) has been recognised as expenditure towards above defined contribution plans of the Company.

(III) 	 Leave Obligations						    

	 The Company provides for accumulation of leave by certain categories of its employees. These employees can carry forward a portion of the 
unutilised leave balances and utilise it in future periods or receive cash (only in case of earned leave) in lieu thereof as per the Company’s 
policy. The Company records a provision for leave obligations in the period in which the employee renders the services that increases this en-
titlement. The total provision recorded by the Company towards this obligation was Rs. 45.00 Lakhs, and Rs. 47.42 Lakhs at 31st March, 2025, 
and 31st March, 2024 respectively. The amount of the provision is presented as current, since the Company does not have an unconditional 
right to defer settlement for any of these obligations. However, based on past experience, the Company does not expect all employees to take 
the full amount of accrued leave or require payment within the next 12 months. 		 	 	 	 	 	

(IV) 	 Risk Exposure						    

	 Through its defined benefit plans, the Company is exposed to some risks, the most signifcant of which are detailed below: 	 	

	 Interest rate risk: A fall in the discount rate which is linked to the G.Sec. Rate will increase the present value of the liability requiring higher 
provision. A fall in the discount rate generally increases the mark to market value of the assets depending on the duration of asset.	

	 Salary Risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of members. As such, an 
increase in the salary of the members more than assumed level will increase the plan’s liability.	 	 	 	

	 Investment Risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate which is determined by reference to 
market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds. If the return on plan asset is below this rate, it will create a plan deficit. 
Currently, for the plan in India, it has a relatively balanced mix of investments in government securities, and other debt instruments.	

	 Asset Liability Matching Risk: The plan faces the ALM risk as to the matching cash flow. Since the plan is invested in lines of Rule 101 of Income 
Tax Rules, 1962, this generally reduces ALM risk.	 	 	 	 	 	

	 Mortality risk: Since the benefits under the plan is not payable for life time and payable till retirement age only, plan does not have any lon-
gevity risk.	 	 	 	 	 	

	 Concentration Risk: Plan is having a concentration risk as all the assets are invested with the insurance company and a default will wipe out 
all the assets. Although probability of this is very low as insurance companies have to follow stringent regulatory	 	 	

	 - During the year, there were no plan amendments, curtailments and settlements.	 	 	 	 	

37	 Segment Reporting					   

	 Description of Segments and Principal Activities						    

	 The activities of the company during the year was to manufacture Dyes & Intermediates. Considering the nature of business and operation as 
well as based on reviews of operating results by chief operating decision maker to make decision about resource allocation and performances 
measurement, there is only one reporting segment in accordance with the requirement of Ind As - 108 - “ Operating Segments”.	 	

38	 Related Party Disclosures:

38.1	 List of related parties

( i )	 Subsidiary Company
	 Cerecon Bio Sciences Private Limited
(ii)	 Associates :-
	 Dynemic Holdings Pvt Ltd.
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(iii)	 Key Management Personnel :-
	 Mr. B. K. Patel	 	 Managing Director	
	 Mr. Rameshbhai B. Patel	 	 Joint Managing Director	
	 Mr. Dixit B. Patel	 	 Joint Managing Director	
	 Ms. Varsha Mehta	 	 Company Secretary	
	 Mr. Ankit Shah	 	 Chief Financial Officer	
(iv)	 Independent Directors :-
	 Mr. Vikashkumar Jain
	 Mr. Iyengar Padmanabhan Kannan
	 Mrs. Rashmi K. Otavani (Woman director)
(v)	 Relatives of Key Managerial Personnel :-
	 Mr. Sachin R. Patel	 	 	 	 	
	 Mr. Mukesh B.  Patel	 	 	 	 	
	 Mrs. Chetna M. Patel
(vi)	 Parties where KMP or Director have substantial interest :-
	 Dynemic Foundation
38.2	 Transactions with related parties :-

Sr. No. Particulars Name of Person / Entity As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024

1 Remuneration / Salary Expense Mr. B. K. Patel 111.95 99.38

Mr. Rameshbhai B. Patel 93.82 85.53

Mr. Dixit B. Patel 97.37 88.29

Ms. Varsha Mehta 12.68 11.13

Mr. Ankit Shah 13.09 12.21

Mr. Sachin R. Patel 3.53 2.92

Mr. Mukesh B.  Patel 18.71 19.05

2 Sitting Fees Mr. Jagdish S. Shah 0.00 0.40

Mr. Vikashkumar Jain 0.32 0.00

Mr. Iyengar Padmanabhan Kannan 0.32 0.00

Mr. Shankarlal B. Mundra 0.00 0.48

Mrs. Rashmi K. Otavani 0.32 0.48

3 Sale of Goods & Services Dynemic Holdings Pvt Ltd 0.12 0.12

4 Commission Paid Mrs. Chetna M. Patel 22.58 23.28

Mr. Mukesh B.  Patel 11.26 0.40

5 Loan Taken Mr. B. K. Patel 0.00 132.00

Mr. Rameshbhai B. Patel 0.00 117.50

Mr. Dixit B. Patel 2.50 27.00

6 Loan Repaid Mr. B. K. Patel 90.00 42.00

Mr. Rameshbhai B. Patel 100.00 17.50

Mr. Dixit B. Patel 2.50 27.00

7 Interest Expense on Loan Mr. B. K. Patel 5.80 1.48

Mr. Rameshbhai B. Patel 12.00 12.50

Mr. Dixit B. Patel 0.08 0.37
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38.3	 Outstanding Balance :-

Sr. No. Particulars Name of Person / Entity As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024
1 Remuneration / Salary Expense Mr. B. K. Patel 6.67 0.57

Mr. Rameshbhai B. Patel 4.64 0.04
Mr. Dixit B. Patel 3.07 2.42
Ms. Varsha Mehta 0.92 0.87
Mr. Ankit Shah 1.05 0.74
Mr. Sachin R. Patel 0.26 0.22
Mr. Mukesh B.  Patel 0.94 0.57

2 Loan Mr. B. K. Patel 0.00 90.00
Mr. Rameshbhai B. Patel 0.00 100.00

38.4	 Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties Transactions relating to dividend were on the same terms and conditions that 
applied to other shareholders. The sales to and purchases from related parties are made in the ordinary course of business. Outstanding bal-
ances at the year-end are unsecured and interest free and settlement occurs in cash/cheque. No provisions are held against receivables from 
related parties. There are no loans outstanding with related parties.

39	 Fair Value Measurements

(i) Financial Instruments by Category  31st March 2025  31st March 2024 
 Carrying Amount/ Fair Value  Carrying Amount/ Fair Value 

Financial Assets
Assets Carried at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
Investments
Other Financial Assets  -    -   
Assets Carried at Amortised Cost
Investments  97.84  98.40 
Trade Receivables  6,512.32  5,607.78 
Cash and Cash Equivalents  50.75  19.29 
Other Bank Balances  167.03  162.90 
Loans  6.84  3.27 
Other Financial Assets  1,873.38  1,881.86 
Total Financial Assets  8,708.16  7,773.50 
Financial Liabilities
Liabilities Carried at Amortised Cost
Borrowings (including current
maturities and interest accrued)  9,587.54  11,453.41 
Trade Payables  7,603.72  6,822.33 
Other Financial Liabilities  3.64  97.24 
Total Financial Liabilities  17,194.90  18,372.98 

(ii)	 Fair Values						    
	 The fair values of financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability 

in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Methods and assumptions used to estimate the fair values 
are consistent with those used for the year ended 31st March, 2025.	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:	 	 	 	 	 	
(a) 	 In respect of investments in mutual funds, the fair values represent net asset value as stated by the issuers of these mutual fund units 

in the published statements. Net asset values represent the price at which the issuer will issue further units in the mutual fund and 
the price at which issuers will redeem such units from the investors. Accordingly, such net asset values are analogous to fair market 
value with respect to these investments, as transactions of these mutual funds are carried out at such prices between investors and 
the issuers of these units of mutual funds.	

(b)	 The fair value of foreign exchange forward contracts is determined using forward exchange rates at the Balance Sheet date.
(c) 	 The management assessed that fair values, of trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, other financial assets 

(current), investments in commercial papers, trade payables, borrowings (current) and other financial liabilities (current), approximate 
to their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments. Further, management also assessed the car-
rying amount of certain loans and long-term borrowings at floating interest rates which are a reasonable approximation of their fair 
values and the difference between the carrying amounts and fair values is not expected to be significant.	
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(d) 	 The fair value of remaining financial instruments is  determined on discounted cash flow analysis using a current lending/discount 
rate, as considered appropriate. For financial assets carried at fair value, the carrying amounts are equal to their fair values.

(iii)	  Fair Value Hierarchy						    

	 This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are (a) recognised 
and measured at fair value and (b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the standalone financial statements. 
To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has classified its financial instruments 
into three levels prescribed under the accounting standard. An explanation of each level follows below.

	 Level-1 : 	 Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.	 	 	

	 Level-2 :	 Inputs are other than quoted prices included within Level-1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as 
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).	 	 	 	 	 	

	 Level-3 : 	 Inputs are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). Fair values are determined in whole or in part using a 
valuation model based on the assumptions that are neither supported by prices from observable current market transactions in 
the same instrument nor are they based on available market data.	 	 	 	 	 	

40	 Financial Risk Management					   
	 The Company’s activities expose it to credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk. In order to safeguard against any adverse effects on the finan-

cial performance of the Company, derivative financial instruments, such as foreign exchange forward contracts are entered as per Company’s 
policy to hedge certain foreign currency risk exposures. Derivatives are used exclusively for hedging purposes and not as trading or specula-
tive intruments The Company’s senior management oversees the management of above risks. The senior executives working to manage the 
financial risks are accountable to the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors. This process provides assurance to the Company’s senior 
management that the Company’s financial risks-taking activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks 
are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company’s policies and the Company’s risk appetite.

	 This Note explains the sources of risk which the entity is exposed to and how the entity manages the risk. The Board of Directors reviews and 
agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below:

	 (A) Credit Risk
	 Credit risk refers to the risk of default on its obligation by the counterparty resulting in a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk 

from its operating activities (primarily Trade Receivables) and from its investing activities (primarily Deposits with Banks and Investments in 
Mutual Funds).

	 Trade Receivables
	 Trade receivables are typically unsecured and are derived from revenue earned from customers. Customer credit risk is managed by each 

business unit subject to the Company’s policy and procedures which involve credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously mon-
itoring the credit worthiness of customers to which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business. Outstanding customer 
receivables are regularly monitored and any shipments to major customers are generally covered by letters of credit or other forms of credit 
assurance. On account of adoption of Ind AS 109, the Company uses expected credit loss model to assess the impairment loss. The Company 
uses a provision matrix to compute the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables. The provision matrix takes into account available 
external and internal credit risk factors and the Company’s historical experience with customers.

	 The Company’s exposure to customers is diversified and no single customer contributes to more than 10% of total revenues.
	 Other Financial Assets						    
	 Credit risk from balances with banks, term deposits, loans, investments and derivative instruments is managed by Company’s finance de-

partment. Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties who meet the minimum threshold requirements. The 
Company monitors ratings, credit spreads and financial strength of its counterparties. The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk for the 
components of the Balance Sheet as of 31st March, 2025, and 31st March, 2024  is the carrying amounts as disclosed in Note 39.

	 Financial Assets that are Neither Past Due Nor Impaired
	 None of the Company’s cash equivalents with banks, loans and investments were past due or impaired as at 31st March, 2025 and 31st March, 

2024 . Of the total trade receivables Rs. 6512.32 Lakhs as at 31st March, 2025 and  Rs. 5598.89 Lakhs as at 31st March, 2024 consisted of 
customer balances that were neither past due nor impaired.

	 Financial Assets that are Past Due but Not Impaired
	 The Company’s credit period for customers generally ranges from 0 - 180 days. The ageing of trade receivables that are past due but not im-

paired (net of provisions/allowances) is given below:

Period (in days) 31st March 2025 31st March 2024 
01-90  5,327.89  5,210.16 
91-180  1,088.47  320.70 
More than 180  95.96  68.03 
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	 Receivables are deemed to be past due or impaired with reference to the Company’s normal terms and conditions of business. These terms 
and conditions are determined on a case to case basis with reference to the customer’s credit quality and prevailing market conditions. Re-
ceivables that are classified as ‘past due’ in the above tables are those that have not been settled within the terms and conditions that have 
been agreed with that customer.

	 Other than trade receivables, the Company has no significant class of financial assets that is past due but not impaired.
	 (B) Liquidity Risk						    
	 Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able to meet its present and future cash and collateral obligations without incurring un-

acceptable losses. The Company’s objective is to, at all times maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet its cash and collateral requirements. 
The Company closely monitors its liquidity position and maintains adequate sources of financing.

	 (i) Financing Arrangements
	 The Company had access to the following undrawn borrowing facilities (excluding non-fund based facilities) at the end of the reporting period:

Period (in days) 31st March 2025 31st March 2024 
Floating Rate

Expiring within one year (working capital facilities)  137.76  584.23 
	 The working capital facilities may be drawn at any time and may be terminated by the bank without notice.
	 Subject to the continuance of satisfactory credit ratings, the above facilities may be drawn at any time within one year.	
	 (ii) Maturities of Financial Liabilities
	 The table below analyse the Company’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual maturities.
	 The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.	

Contractual Maturities of Financial Liabilities Within 1 year  Between 1 and 3 year  Total 
31st March, 2025
Borrowings  8,824.23  763.31  9,587.54 
Trade Payables  7,603.72  -    7,603.72 
Other Financial Liabilities  3.62  0.02  3.64 
Total  16,431.57  763.33  17,194.90 
31st March, 2024
Borrowings  8,076.51  3,376.90  11,453.41 
Trade Payables  6,822.33  -    6,822.33 
Other Financial Liabilities  96.80  0.43  97.24 
Total  14,995.65  3,377.34  18,372.98 

	 (C) Market Risk

	 (i) Foreign Currency Risk

	 Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value of the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign 
exchange rates. The Company transacts business in local currency and in foreign currencies (primarily US Dollars and Euro). The Company has 
obtained foreign currency loans and has foreign currency trade receivables, trade payables and other financial assets/liabilities and is there-
fore exposed to foreign currency risk.
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	 (a) Foreign Currency Risk Exposure:	 	 	 	 	 	

	 The Company’s exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period expressed in INR, are as follows:

31st March 2025 31st March 2024

USD EURO OTHER USD  EURO  OTHER 

Financial Assets

Trade Receivables  3,550.04  45.67  225.11  3,720.44  260.38  533.53 

Bank Balance in EEFC Account  1.27  -    -    6.79  -    -   

Other Financial Assets  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Derivative Assets  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Foreign Exchange Forward 
Contracts  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Net Exposure to Foreign 
Currency Risk (Assets)  3,551.31  45.67  225.11  3,727.23  260.38  533.53 

Financial Liabilities

Borrowings (including Current 
maturities)  3,688.36  -    -    4,104.25  -    -   

Trade Payables  1,172.52  -    -    946.90  -    -   

Other Financial Liabilities  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Derivative Assets  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Foreign Exchange Forward 
Contracts  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Net Exposure to Foreign 
Currency Risk (Liabilities) 4,860.89 0.00 0.00 5,051.15 0.00 0.00

Net Exposure to Foreign Cur-
rency Risk (Assets -Liabilities) (1,309.58) 45.67 225.11 (1,323.92) 260.38 533.53

	 (b) Sensitivity

	 The sensitivity of profit or loss to changes in the foreign exchange rates arises mainly from foreign currency denominated financial instruments.

Particulars
 Impact on Profit before tax 

 31st March, 2025  31st March, 2024 

USD Sensitivity

INR/USD -Increase by 1%* (13.10) (13.24)

INR/USD -Decrease by 1%*  13.10  13.24 

Euro Sensitivity

INR/EUR-Increase by 1%*  0.46  2.60 

INR/EUR-Decrease by 1%* (0.46) (2.60)

	 * Holding all other variables constant

	 (ii) Interest Rate Risk

	 Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest 
rates. The Company’s exposure to risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s debt interest obligation. Further 
the Company engages in financing activities at market linked rates, any changes in the interest rate environment may impact future rates of 
borrowings. To manage this, the Company may enter into interest rate swaps. The management also maintains a portfolio mix of floating and 
fixed rate debt.
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	 The Company’s fixed rate borrowings and investments in term deposits with bank are carried at amortised cost. They are therefore not subject 
to interest rate risk as defined in Ind AS 107, since neither the carrying amount nor the future cash flows will fluctuate because of changes in 
market interest rates.

	 (a) Interest Rate Risk Exposure

	 The exposure of the Company’s borrowings to interest rate changes at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Particulars  31st March 2025  31st March 2024 

Non Current - Floating (including Current Maturities)  2,544.76  4,125.52 

Non Current - Fixed (including Current Maturities)  1,080.54  2,522.12 

Working capital Loans - Floating  5,962.24  4,515.77 

Total Borrowings  9,587.54  11,163.41 

	 (b) Sensitivity

	 Profit or loss is sensitive to higher/lower interest expense from borrowings as a result of changes in interest rates.

Particulars  Impact on Profit before tax 

 31st March, 2025  31st March, 2024 

Variable Rate Borrowings

Interest Rates - Increase by 100 basis points (100 bps) * (85.07) (86.41)

Interest Rates - Decrease by 100 basis points (100 bps) * 85.07 86.41

Fixed Rate Borrowings

Interest Rates - Increase by 100 basis points (100 bps) * (10.81) (25.22)

Interest Rates - Decrease by 100 basis points (100 bps) * 10.81 25.22

	 * Holding all other variables constant

	 (iii) Commodity Price Risk

	 Exposure to market risk with respect to commodity prices primarily arises from the Company’s sales of dyes and intermediates, including the 
raw material components for such products. Cost of raw materials forms the largest portion of the Company’s cost of sales. Market forces 
generally determine prices for the goods sold by the Company. These prices may be influenced by factors such as supply and demand, pro-
duction costs (including the costs of raw material inputs) and global and regional economic conditions and growth. Adverse changes in any 
of these factors may reduce the revenue that the Company earns from the sales of goods. Commodity price risk exposure is evaluated and 
managed through operating procedures and sourcing policies. The Company has not entered into any derivative contracts to hedge exposure 
to fluctuations in commodity prices.

41	 Capital Management

	 (a) Risk Management		 	 	 	 	

	 The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to 
provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

	 The Company monitors capital on the basis of the net debt to equity ratio. Net debt are long-term and short-term debts as reduced by cash 
and cash equivalents. The Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.

	 The following table summarises the capital of the Company:

Particulars  31st March, 2024  31st March, 2023 

Total Borrowings  9,587.54  11,163.41 

Less: Cash and cash equivalents  217.79  182.19 

Net Debt  9,369.75  10,981.22 

Equity  22,435.25  20,270.73 

Net Gearing ratio 41.76% 54.17%

	 No changes were made to the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31st March, 2025 and 31st March, 
2024.						    
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42	 Assets Pledged/ Hypothecated as Security

Particulars  31st March 2025  31st March 2024 

Current

First Charge/Second Charge

Financial Assets

Trade Receivables under Bill Discounting (Refer below)  6,512.32  5,607.78 

Other Trade Receivables (1,820.98) (1,762.13)

Non-financial Assets  -    -   

Inventories  8,222.61  6,582.85 

Sub-total  12,913.94  10,428.50 

Non-current

First Charge/Second Charge

Leasehold Land  1,340.92  1,340.92 

Buildings  8,742.40  9,010.84 

Plant and Equipments  13,270.74  13,938.47 

Furniture and Fixtures  80.46  86.71 

Office Equipments  13.06  16.20 

Vehicles  28.10  40.43 

Sub-total  23,475.69  24,433.57 

Total  36,389.63  34,862.07 

	 Trade Receivables under Bill Discounting						   

	 The carrying amount of trade receivables include receivables which are subject to bill discounting arrangement. Under this arrangement, the 
Company has discounted the relevant receivables in exchange of cash and is prevented from selling or pledging the receivables. However, the 
Company has retained late payment and credit risk. The Company therefore continues to recognise such receivables in their entirety in its 
balance sheet. The amount payable under the bill discounting arrangement is presented as secured borrowings (Refer Note 15).

43	 Relationship with Struck off Companies, if any.

Name of struck off Company Nature of transactions with 
struck-off Company

Balance outstanding  Relationship with the Struck off 
company, if any, 

NIL Investments in securities NIL  NIL 

NIL Receivables NIL  NIL 

NIL Payables NIL  NIL 

NIL Other outstanding balances NIL  NIL 

44	 Issue of Shares					   

	 During the year, the Company has converted 4,00,000 warrants into equity shares at an issue price of ₹308.50 per share, comprising a face 
value of ₹10.00 and a share premium of ₹298.50 per share. As a result of this conversion Issued and subscribed capital increased by ₹40.00 
lakhs and Securities premium amount increased by Rs. 1194.00 lakhs.

	 The Company has utilised net proceds to meet its working capital requirement and there is no unutilised funds.

45	 Event Occurring after The Balance Sheet Date

	 The Company evaluates events and transactions that occur subsequent to the balance sheet date but prior to approval of financial statement 
to determine the necessity for recognition and/or reporting of any of these events and transactions in the financial statements. As on date of 
signing this statements there were no material subsequent events to be recognized or reported that are not already disclosed.

46	 Company has used the borrowings from banks and financial institutions for the specific purpose for which it was taken at the balance sheet 
date.
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47	 No proceedings have been initiated or pending against the company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohi-
bition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and the rules made thereunder during the year under audit.	 	 	 	 	

48	 Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial Institution or other lender during the year under audit.

49	 Company has no charges or satisfaction yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory period during  the year under 
audit.	 	 	 	 	

50	 Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.	 	 	 	 	

51	 The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as 
income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of 
the Income Tax Act, 1961.

52	 The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) 
any funds  to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in 
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall:	 	 	 	 	

	 (a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ulti-
mate Beneficiaries) or	 	 	 	 	

	 (b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries	 	 	 	 	 	

53	 The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding 
(whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:	 	 	 	 	

	 (a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party 
(Ultimate Beneficiaries) or	 	 	 	 	

	 (b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries	 	 	 	 	 	

54	 The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2025 have been reviewed by the audit committee and approved by 
the Board of Directors in its meeting held on 30th May, 2025.		 	 	 	 	 	 	

55	 The figures for the corresponding previous year have been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary, to make them comparable with cur-
rent year’s figures. 

As per our report of even date	 	 	 	 	 	
For, B. K. PATEL & CO.	 For and on Behalf of			 
Chartered Accountants	 DYNEMIC PRODUCTS LIMITED	 	 	
FRN :- 112647W	 	 	 	 	 	
						    
CA B. K. Patel	 B. K. Patel	 D. B. Patel 	
Partner	 Managing Director	 Joint Managing Director  	
Membership No.032199
					   
Place :  Ahmedabad.	 R. B. Patel	 Ankit Shah 	
Date  : 30.05.2025	 Joint Managing Director	 Chief Financial Officer

	 Place :  Ahmedabad.	 Varsha Mehta	
	 Date  : 30.05.2025	 Company Secretary
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